
   
 

 

 
 

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 26, 2024 – 9:00 AM 

HYBRID MEETING 
Members of the public may attend in-person or participate remotely via Zoom. 

METRO Admin Office 
110 Vernon Street 

Santa Cruz, CA 

Zoom Link 
Dial In:  1-669-900-6833 

Meeting ID:  823 2842 5369 
The Board of Directors agenda packet can be found online at www.SCMTD.com and 
is available for inspection at Santa Cruz METRO’s Administrative Office at 110 Vernon 
Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
Public comment may be submitted via email to boardinquiries@scmtd.com.  Please 
indicate in your email the agenda item to which your comment applies.  Comments 
submitted before the meeting will be provided to the Directors before or during the 
meeting.  Comments submitted after the meeting is called to order will be included in the 
Board’s correspondence that is posted online at the Board meeting packet link.  Oral 
public comments will also be accepted during the meeting through Zoom.  Each public 
comment is limited to three minutes or less.  Board and Committee Chairs have the 
discretion to manage the public comment process in a manner that achieves the purpose 
of public communication and assures the orderly conduct of the meeting. 
The Board may take action on each item on the agenda.  The action may consist of the 
recommended action, a related action or no action.  Staff recommendations are subject 
to action and/or change by the Board of Directors.  

BOARD ROSTER 
Director Kristen Brown   City of Capitola  
Director Rebecca Downing  County of Santa Cruz 
Director Jimmy Dutra    City of Watsonville  
Director Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson    City of Santa Cruz  
Director Manu Koenig     County of Santa Cruz  
Director Donna Lind  City of Scotts Valley   
Director Bruce McPherson  County of Santa Cruz  
Director Scott Newsome  City of Santa Cruz 
Director Larry Pageler  County of Santa Cruz  
Director Vanessa Quiroz-Carter*  City of Watsonville  
Director Mike Rotkin  County of Santa Cruz 
Ex-Officio Director - Vacant  UC Santa Cruz  
Ex-Officio Director Alta Northcutt  Cabrillo College 
*205 Main Street, Watsonville, CA 
Michael Tree  METRO CEO/General Manager 
Julie Sherman  METRO General Counsel 



 
 
Board of Directors Agenda  
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

SECTION I:  OPEN SESSION 
NOTE: THE BOARD CHAIR MAY TAKE ITEMS OUT OF ORDER 

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 SWEAR IN NEW DIRECTORS 

3 ROLL CALL 
In accordance with Assembly Bill 2449, Board members may participate remotely 
due to “just cause” or “emergency” circumstances.  If applicable, following an 
announcement, the Board will take action on approving Board members’ 
emergency teleconference participation. 

4 ANNOUNCEMENTS 
4.1 Today’s meeting is being broadcast by Community Television of Santa Cruz 

County. 
4.2 Language Line Services is providing Spanish interpretation services, which 

will be available during “Oral Communications” and for any other agenda 
item for which these services are needed. 

5 NOMINATE BOARD OFFICERS AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 
Board Chair Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson 

6 BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS 

7 ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
This time is set aside for Directors and members of the general public to address 
any item not on the agenda which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Board.  No action or discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that 
any Director may respond to statements made or questions asked or may ask 
questions for clarification.  All matters of an administrative nature will be referred 
to staff.  Each public comment is limited to three minutes or less.  Board and 
Committee Chairs have the discretion to manage the public comment process in 
a manner that achieves the purpose of public communication and assures the 
orderly conduct of the meeting.  When addressing the Board, the individual may, 
but is not required to, provide his/her name and address in an audible tone for the 
record. 
7.1 Email from Elisabeth Tatum dated 12/17/23 with METRO response 
7.2 Email from Thairie Ritchie dated 12/26/23 with METRO response 
7.3 Email from Clio Bavalee dated 1/2/24 with METRO response 
7.4 Email from Nancy Pheifer dated 1/5/24 with METRO response 
7.5 Email from Brian Peoples dated 1/21/24  

8 LABOR ORGANIZATION COMMUNICATIONS 

9 ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO SUPPORT EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS 

 



 
 
Board of Directors Agenda  
January 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are 
considered to be routine and will be acted upon as one motion. All items removed will be 
considered later in the agenda. The Board Chair will allow public input prior to the 
approval of the Consent Agenda items. 

10.1 ACCEPT AND FILE: PRELIMINARY APPROVED CHECK JOURNAL DETAIL 
FOR THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2023  
Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer  

10.2 ACCEPT AND FILE MINUTES OF: 
A.    OCTOBER 18, 2023 METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
B.  DECEMBER 15, 2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager 

10.3 ACCEPT AND FILE:  THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023  
Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer  

10.4 RESOLUTION APPROVING ACTIONS REGARDING THE PACIFIC STATION 
NORTH PROJECT 
Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer, and Julie Sherman, General Counsel 

10.5 ACCEPT AND FILE:  ACCEPTANCE OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 
2023 
Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer 

10.6 ACCEPT AND FILE:  THE SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT ON THE STATUS OF 
METRO’S DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 
Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer 

10.7 APPROVE:  RECOMMENDED ACTION ON TORT CLAIMS 
 Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager 

10.8 APPROVE:  CONSIDERATION OF DESIGNATING THE CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER TO THE CALIFORNIA TRANSIT INDEMNITY POOL (CALTIP) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager  
 

10.9 APPROVE:  CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTING A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
THE FY24 REVISED CAPITAL BUDGET/PORTFOLIO 
Kristina Mihaylova, Deputy Finance Director 

10.10 APPROVE:  CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING THE CEO/GENERAL 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 4TH CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH CLEVER 
DEVICES LTD. TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT TOTAL BY $402,750 FOR ITS 
AND APC RETROFIT OF 15 BUSES 
Margo Ross, Chief Operations Officer 



Board of Directors Agenda 
January 26, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 
 

10.11 APPROVE:  REQUEST TO ENDORSE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY MEASURE K 
AND CITY OF SANTA CRUZ MEASURE L 
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson 

REGULAR  AGENDA 

11 PRESENTATION OF EMPLOYEE LONGEVITY AWARDS: 
10 YEARS: JEREMY LOVENFOSSE 
15 YEARS: ERIK BERG 
20 YEARS: CAROLYN BOWERS 

GUSTAVO CORTES 
BONNIE FARRIS 

Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson 

12 RETIREE RESOLUTIONS OF APPRECIATION FOR: 
ANNA MARIE GOUVEIA – OPERATIONS MANAGER: FIXED ROUTE; 
MICHAEL PENO – PARATRANSIT OPERATOR; AND  
DAVID VALDEZ – LEAD VEHICLE SERVICE WORKER 
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson 

13 APPROVE:  CONSIDER A RESOLUTION CALLING A PUBLIC HEARING ON 
FRIDAY, MARCH 22, 2024, DURING THE 9:00 AM REGULAR METRO 
BOARD MEETING AT THE ADMIN OFFICES, 110 VERNON STREET, SANTA 
CRUZ, CA REGARDING THE PHASE II REIMAGINE METRO SERVICE 
PROPOSALS 
John Urgo, Planning and Development Director 

14 CEO ORAL REPORT 
Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager 

SECTION II:  CLOSED SESSION 

15 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENTS (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 
54957); CEO/GM POSITION AND INTERIM CEO/GM POSITION 

SECTION III:  RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

16 REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION 
Julie Sherman, General Counsel 

17 ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING:  FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2024, AT  
9:00 AM, METRO ADMIN OFFICE, 110 VERNON STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson  

18 ADJOURNMENT 
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson 



 
 
Board of Directors Agenda  
January 26, 2024 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

TITLE 6 - INTERPRETATION SERVICES/TÍTULO 6 - SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCIÓN 
Spanish language interpretation and Spanish language copies of the agenda packet 
are available on an as-needed basis. Please make advance arrangements with the 
Executive Assistant at 831-426-6080. Interpretación en español y traducciones en 
español del paquete de la agenda están disponibles sobre una base como-necesaria. 
Por favor, hacer arreglos por adelantado con Coordinador de Servicios Administrativos 
al numero 831-426-6080. 
 
ACCESSIBILITY FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES 
This document has been created with accessibility in mind. With the exception of 
certain 3rd party and other attachments, it passes the Adobe Acrobat XI Accessibility 
Full Check. If you have any questions about the accessibility of this document, 
please email your inquiry to accessibility@scmtd.com. Upon request, Santa Cruz 
METRO will provide written agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, or 
disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to 
enable individuals with disabilities to participate in and provide comments at/related to 
public meetings. Please submit a request, including your name, phone number and/or 
email address, and a description of the modification, accommodation, auxiliary aid, 
service or alternative format requested at least two days before the meeting.  Requests 
should be emailed to boardinquiries@scmtd.com or submitted by phone to the Executive 
Assistant at 831-426-6080.  Requests made by mail (sent to the Executive Assistant, 
Santa Cruz METRO, 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060) must be received at 
least two days before the meeting. Requests will be granted whenever possible and 
resolved in favor of accessibility. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
If you wish to address the Board, please follow the directions at the top of the agenda.  
If you have anything that you wish distributed to the Board and included for the official 
record, please include it in your email. Comments that require a response may be 
deferred for staff reply.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pursuant to Section 54954.2(a)(1) of the Government Code of the State of California, 
this agenda was posted at least 72 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting at a 
public place freely accessible to the public 24 hours a day.  The agenda packet and 
materials related to an item on this agenda submitted after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection in the Santa Cruz METRO Administrative 
Office (110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz) during normal business hours.  Such 
documents are also available on the Santa Cruz METRO website at www.scmtd.com 
subject to staff’s ability to post the document before the meeting. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 





Board of Directors  
January 26, 2024  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

2024 Slate Nominations  
 

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND 

The terms of the officers and appointees of the Board of Directors in the positions 
of Chair, Vice Chair and SCCRTC appointees expire in February 2024. One of the 
SCCIC Directors’ terms is set to expire in February 2024.  

SCCIC is a non-profit public benefit corporation organized under the non-profit 
benefit corporation law in the State of California to provide financial assistance to 
METRO by acquiring, constructing and financing various public facilities, land and 
equipment and the leasing of facilities, land and equipment for use, benefit and 
enjoyment of the public served by METRO.  

Article III, Section 3.03 of the SCCIC Bylaws provides that METRO’s Board of 
Directors shall appoint METRO Directors to the SCCIC Board.   
Staff recommends that the METRO Board of Directors appoint METRO Directors 
to serve on the SCCIC Board.  At this time, one of the  appointee’s term is expiring. 
The METRO Bylaws provide that the Board of Directors shall identify nominees to 
be considered for election to the positions herein referenced.  

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

Provide slates for CY 2024 to:   

1) Elect Directors to the positions of Chair and Vice Chair  

2) Reconfirm or nominate Directors to positions on the current Standing 
Committees:  

a. Finance, Budget, and Audit Standing Committee 

b. Personnel/Human Resources Standing Committee 

c. Capital Projects Standing Committee  

3) Fill one position on the SCCIC  

4) Elect three representatives and three alternates to the SCCRTC 
 

In accordance with the METRO bylaws, nominations remain open until the 
positions are filled through election.  The election for the referenced positions is 
scheduled to be held on February 23, 2024.   

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

The actions taken in this report tie to METRO’s Stewardship and Accountability 
responsibility.  

5.2



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024  
Page 3 of 4 

2024 Slate Nominations 

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

Funding support for the positions identified in this staff report is contained under
Admin in the FY24 and FY25 Final Budget adopted June 23, 2023 and in the FY25
and FY26 budget yet to be finalized.

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE

N/A

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

None.

VIII. ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Current METRO Board Officers and Appointees 
Attachment B: Current SCCIC Board Roster 
Attachment C: Board Nominated Slate(s) Worksheet 

Prepared by: Donna Bauer, Executive Assistant 

5.3



5.4









 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



















From: Pete Rasmussen
To:
Cc: Donna Bauer; John Urgo
Subject: Shelter Jr.High School Kids
Date: Friday, January 19, 2024 3:52:26 PM

Ms. Tatum,

METRO staff from Planning and Facilities met with Bob Postle, the owner of the property directly
adjacent to the bus stop.

We explored several potential locations for a shelter for stop #1857 Soquel Dr (Aptos Gateway),
including the current location of the bus stop. We determined that, of the locations available, the
current location is the best option. However, the surface there is just dirt. A bus shelter requires a
concrete shelter pad as a base. Installing a shelter pad would require consultation with the County at
a minimum, and may require engineering work due to the location next to a creek. We will begin
exploring the feasibility of a shelter at the stop, but please recognize that there are many steps to
the process so there is no immediate fix.

Pete Rasmussen
Transportation Planner
Santa Cruz METRO

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Elisabeth Tatum 
Date: Tue, Dec 12, 2023 at 4:36 PM
Subject: This is URGENT because METRO is meeting this Friday. Title: Shelter Jr.High School Kids
To: editorial@santacruzsentinel.com <editorial@santacruzsentinel.com>

PLEASE help place a shelter from the cold, the rain and the darkness for Jr.High School students as
they wait for the METRO bus to take them home southward bound.
Sometimes they wait for an hour while the sun goes down and it rains.
For the past forty years ,since I started working at the foot of the Aptos Jr High School, the
businesses around mine have gradually put multiple signs up to keep them from finding shelter
under their eaves and/or entry ways.
YES, kids at that age can be loud, litter, etc,
etc. "They" are kids. Where are "the adults" to take responsibility for their safety ?
I have contacted METRO, the Santa Cruz Public Works, the Aptos Chamber of Commerce, and Aptos
Jr. High. The owner of the property where it is to be placed has also contacted numerous people
over at least two decades AND has donated the appropiate place for the shelter.
Soooo, what is the holdup?
Nothing has been done. Furthermore, there actually exists a field with multiple shelters available to
ber placed...What is the holdup?
Please respect those from whom you would like to be respected.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7.1.1



Start with "this" generation, "this" coming winter break. 
ElisabethTatum, LMFT
PS: Multiple south county residents who work in Aptos also depend on this transportation. What
makes "them" to be excluded?

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7.1.2



From: John Urgo
To: Donna Bauer
Subject: Re: Santa Cruz Metro Winter Schedule
Date: Thursday, December 28, 2023 11:25:27 AM
Attachments: Outlook-nfejwg0n.png

Outlook-htlyzpzf.png
Outlook-jwrb5phn.png
Outlook-seba1q5y.png
Outlook-huz3tysy.png
Outlook-4wttudof.png
Outlook-owseaszz.png

Hi Thairie,

Thank you for contacting Santa Cruz METRO. I want to apologize for the inconvenience
the current schedule is causing you. 

The 8:25 a.m. 3A from Capitola Mall is currently scheduled to arrive at Pacific Station at
8:57 a.m. but from what I understand you need it to arrive sooner so that you can get to
your job on time.  We will look at adjusting the Route 3 schedule in the morning as this is
likely an issue other customers are encountering. Unfortunately this is likely not a
change we can implement until the next scheduled service change in March but I will
see if we can make an adjustment in February when Pacific Station closes and we move
operations to River and Front.

There is a Route 2 departing Capitola Mall 14 minutes before the 8:25 a.m. 3A at 8:11
a.m., which arrives downtown at 8:30 a.m. Even though Route 2 is scheduled to depart
every 30 minutes, traffic delays due to morning congestion mean that the next trip
doesn't arrive downtown until 9:17 a.m.

The December service change increased service 10%, with much of that increase
directed at expanded hours of service on the former 66/68 corridors (new Route 3). In the
coming months, the METRO Board of Directors will review a second round of bus service
increases that could go into effect starting in June 2024. For more information and to get
involved, visit: https://www.scmtd.com/en/agency-info/planning/reimagine-metro

Please let me know if you have any additional questions or concerns.
 
 
JOHN URGO 
Director, Planning & Development  
T: (831) 420-2537| jurgo@scmtd.com  
Santa Cruz METRO 
110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
    

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7.2.1









7.3.3

Attachment



Attachment

7.3.4



7.3.5

Attachment



Attachment

7.3.6



7.3.7

Attachment



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



From: John Urgo
To:
Cc: Donna Bauer
Subject: Re: regarding bus route changes
Date: Monday, January 8, 2024 10:21:11 AM
Attachments: Outlook-lqnszzjr.png

Outlook-dog0fays.png
Outlook-3knrz3th.png
Outlook-yvkqdd2x.png
Outlook-tbplxwec.png
Outlook-b4h3qter.png
Outlook-oko2g3qz.png

Hi Nancy,

Thank you for contacting Santa Cruz METRO. I apologize that the recent service changes
have inconvenienced you.

The first wave of Reimagine METRO service changes were implemented on December
21, 2023, after a year-long planning and outreach process, with the following goals in
mind: 

More service (a 10% increase over Fall and 25% more than Spring 2023)

Higher frequency service in areas with high transit demand

Simpler, more direct routes, especially in Watsonville

Better transfers with shorter wait times and no additional fare

To provide more frequent service in Live Oak and Seabright, the hourly 66 and 68 routes
were combined into a single route running every 30 minutes (with the exception of the
3A/3B split through Twin Lakes). The current routing of the 3B is identical to Route 66
between Capitola Mall and Soquel and Poplar; if your destination is on Water, you can
transfer for free to Routes 1 or 2, running every 15 minutes, at any stop on Soquel
between Park and Frederick/San Juan.

We will consider changes to Route 3 as we plan Phase 2 of Reimagine METRO. For more
information, please visit: https://www.scmtd.com/en/reimagine

Please feel free to reach out to me directly with additional questions or concerns.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7.4.1





Trail Now has interviewed all candidates for 2nd District Supervisor and we plan to issue a 

recommended candidate soon.  This week, we met with Kristen Brown. Kristen has worked for 

many years in the public sector and has served, for the past 7 years, on the Capitola City Council. 

During our meeting, we discussed the Capitola Trestle. Kristen stated that she does NOT support 

converting the historic Capitola Trestle into a trail. She does not support railbanking. This is 

shocking as former RTC Executive Director Guy Preston recommended many times that the 

most cost effective and legal process to build the Coastal Trail is to implement federal 

railbanking. Kristen believes that the historic Capitola Trestle should remain unused until it is 

torn down and replaced for future passenger rail.   

The fact that Kristen does not listen to transportation policy experts is alarming and a possible 

indicator on how she will approach and address other important community policies.   

We are asking our supporters NOT to vote for Kristen Brown for 2nd District Supervisor. 

Stay tuned for our recommended candidate. 

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

From: Brian Peoples 
Sent: Sunday, January 21, 2024 8:33 AM
To: boardinquiries@scmtd.com>
Subject: Agenda item - oral communications

PLEASE DO NOT VOTE FOR KRISTEN BROWN FOR 2ND DISTRICT SUPERVISOR: 

7.5.1



 

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7.5.2



COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7.5.3



 

 

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7.5.4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7.5.5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



ADDITIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD 

1/26/24 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 





Dear METRO BUS People,

On December 31, 2023, I sent the following letter regarding the placement of the Bus
Stop at 7th Avenue and Bonnie Street to several METRO Bus Board members and
with little response. I am once more sending this letter with hopes that you will take a
good look at the concerns that both my neighbors and I have regarding this
METRO BUS STOP location.

Dean METRO BUS Board Members, 
I was surprised when a Metro Bus Stop was installed by my home on 7th Avenue, as
there was no prior notice to the neighborhood residents of this public installation, 
This Bus Stop should NOT be placed on the corner of 7th Avenue and Bonnie Street
for these reasons:

1. The intersection at 7th Avenue and Bonnie Street is dangerous and has had
accidents, injuries, and deaths.

2. A safety crossing light and Island were installed at this intersection, as people
and vehicles have been hit, injured and killed while crossing.

3. The Island divide narrows both the vehicle and bicycle lanes before and at this
intersection, The placement of the METRO Bus Stop here blocks and uses
both vehicle and bicycle lane.

4. A Wide Green Bicyclist’s Lane is on 7th Avenue, providing needed bicyclist
safety, this bicyclists lane is now being used by the Metro Bus to stop unload
and load passengers, blocking both the bicycle lane and the vehicle lane,
stopping all traffic,

5. There is no room for a turnout bus space at this site, causing the METRO BUS
to block and use both vehicle and bicycle traffic lanes, stopping and causing
congestion on this highly used avenue.

6. There is a RED painted curb where the Metro Bus stop is designated to stop.
The RED curb runs form the corner of Bonnie St up 7th Ave. It is there to
provide safe visibility for vehicles turning from Bonnie St. onto 7th Avenue and
has prevent collisions.

7. The sidewalk space is minimal at the corner the grandfathered in home was
built on the property line with no set back, making the entrance and exit of the
home’s residents and the bus passengers tight and uncomfortable.

I STRONGLY appeal to you to please have the Metro Bus Stop placed one block up,
at the corner of Carmel Street and 7th Avenue, where it is not a congested
intersection and wide enough for a bus turnout and it will not stop the flow of traffic.
There are also crosswalks on both Carmel Street and 7th Avenue, it is a safer
location for the Metro Bus passengers and traffic.

Very Sincerely,
Terrence & Sondra Cohelan

Santa Cruz, CA 95062
.







From:
To: boardinquiries
Subject: Include METRO Employees & Community Input in New General Manager Selection
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 12:08:59 PM

Dear Board Members,

I am sorry to see Mike Tree leave.  He made a difference in just two years with setting the goal of doubling
ridership, redesigning routes and improving frequency which are badly needed. 
Hiring a new General Manager could be the most important decision the Board makes.   I sincerely hope that the
Board will involve METRO employees and community members in the process of hiring a new GM. 

Thank you,

Jacquelyn Griffith



From:
To: boardinquiries
Subject: Please get community involved in hiring new General Manager.....
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 12:39:31 PM

Dear Board Members,

We appreciated Mike Tree’s accomplishments in just two years. Setting
the goal of doubling ridership, redesigning routes and improving
frequency are badly needed. Hiring a new General Manager could be the
most important decision the Board makes.  We ask that the Board
involve METRO employees and community members in the process of hiring
a new GM.

Thank you, Sarah Ringler



From:
To: boardinquiries
Subject: New Metro Director--request for collaboration
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 11:21:23 PM

Dear Metro Board Members,

I wish the only the best for Metro's departing General Manager. I'll be
very sorry to see Micheal Tree leave--his efforts have made significant
changes for the better for Santa Cruz Metro. Just yesterday I boarded
Bus 3a to UCSC from my home in Live Oak and was so impressed with the
route and the opportunity to take only one bus from Live Oak to UCSC and
McHenry library. I took the 3a back to my home, too. I'm not a student,
but a retired teacher and plan to use this route again.

Mr. Tree's other inspired changes--setting aspirational goals for double
ridership, improving frequency, renumbering and redesigning routes, all
have improved a Metro service that sorely needs visionary thinking.

Let's stay the course for improving Metro. With Mr. Tree's
accomplishments fresh in our minds, please allow community members and
Metro employees a voice in the hiring process of a new General Manager.
Through our collaborative work Metro can be a respected, well utilized
and supportive service for our community, one of which we can all be
proud. Your success in hiring a skilled, dynamic and responsive General
Manager will be bolstered with community engagement and participation
from interested riders and workers. I hope you pursue a collaborative
hiring process for our new General Manager.

Best regards,

Bob Morgan





Sincerely,
Elizabeth



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



 

DATE: January 26, 2024   

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer 

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE PRELIMINARY APPROVED CHECK JOURNAL 
DETAIL FOR THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2023 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Board of Directors accept and file the preliminary approved Check 
Journal Detail for the month of December 2023 

II. SUMMARY 

• This staff report provides the Board of Directors (Board) with a preliminary 
approved Check Journal Detail for the month of December 2023. 

• The Finance Department is submitting the check journal for Board 
acceptance and filing.  

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND 

This preliminary approved Check Journal Detail provides the Board with a listing 
of the vendors and amounts paid out on a monthly cash flow basis (Operating 
and Capital expenses).   
 
All invoices submitted for the month of December 2023 have been processed, 
the checks have been issued and signed by the Deputy Finance Director. 

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This report aligns to METRO’s Financial Stability, Stewardship & Accountability 
strategic plan.  

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

The check journal presents the invoices paid in December 2023 for Board review, 
agency disclosure and transparency. 

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE  

N/A.  

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
Transit District 

 

10.1.1



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024  
Page 2 of 3 

December 2023 Check Journal 

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

None.

VIII. ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Check Journal Detail for the month of December 2023 

Prepared by: Holly Alcorn, Accounting Specialist 

10.1.2



10.1.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



D
A
T
E
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
4
 

S
A
N
T
A
 
C
R
U
Z
 
M
E
T
R
O
P
O
L
I
T
A
N
 
T
R
A
N
S
I
T
 
D
I
S
T
R
I
C
T

P
A
G
E

1
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
D
E
T
A
I
L
 
B
Y
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 

A
L
L
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
F
O
R
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 

C
H

K
 #

 
C

H
K

 D
A

TE
 

 C
H

K
 A

M
T 

V
EN

D
O

R
 

ID
 

V
EN

D
O

R
 N

A
M

E 
TR

A
N

# 
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 

 A
M

O
U

N
T 

C
O

M
M

EN
T 

8
2

9
9

2
 

1
2

/5
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

  (
1

5
0

.0
0

) 
0

0
2

7
0

0
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
C

O
U

N
TY

 E
N

V
IR

O
M

EN
TA

L 
1

1
9

9
3

9
 

1
9

0
2

 P
A

C
 A

V
E 

IN
SP

EC
T 

 $
   

   
(1

5
0

.0
0

) 
**

V
O

ID
 

8
5

9
3

9
 

1
2

/1
4

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

(3
.0

0
) 

E9
2

9
 

G
U

IL
D

, W
ES

LE
Y 

1
2

3
8

4
2

 
TV

M
 T

ES
TI

N
G

 
 $

   
 (

3
.0

0
) 

**
V

O
ID

 

8
6

3
2

0
 

1
2

/2
0

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 (

2
0

.6
8

) 
M

3
1

7
 

TR
EN

T,
 V

IC
K

I 
9

0
0

9
3

5
5

 
M

ED
IC

A
L 

SU
P

P
LI

M
EN

TA
L 

 $
   

  (
2

0
.6

8
) 

**
V

O
ID

 

8
7

2
3

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

3
.0

0
  

E9
0

2
 

A
B

R
EG

O
, N

A
TH

A
N

A
EL

 
1

2
5

3
7

8
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 5
3

.0
0

  

8
7

2
3

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

8
3

 
A

G
U

IL
A

R
, A

N
G

EL
A

 
1

2
5

3
6

3
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

2
3

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,7
6

2
.6

0
  

3
8

2
 

A
IR

TE
C

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
3

4
5

 
H

V
A

C
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

SV
C

 
 $

   
  2

7
7

.0
5

  

8
7

2
3

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,7
6

2
.6

0
  

3
8

2
 

A
IR

TE
C

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
4

2
3

 
H

V
A

C
 M

A
IN

T 
SB

F 
 $

   
  2

3
7

.1
6

  

8
7

2
3

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,7
6

2
.6

0
  

3
8

2
 

A
IR

TE
C

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
4

2
4

 
H

V
A

C
 M

A
IN

T 
O

P
S 

 $
   

 3
,3

1
7

.0
0

  

8
7

2
3

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,7
6

2
.6

0
  

3
8

2
 

A
IR

TE
C

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
4

2
5

 
H

V
A

C
 M

A
IN

T 
V

ER
 

 $
   

  9
3

1
.3

9
  

8
7

2
3

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

1
.6

7
  

0
0

3
5

9
6

 
A

M
A

ZO
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

3
8

4
 

R
EP

A
Y 

C
M

 T
A

K
EN

 T
W

IC
E 

 $
   

 3
1

.6
7

  

8
7

2
3

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
  

0
0

3
6

7
6

 
A

N
D

R
EW

 J
. O

'K
EE

FE
 II

 
1

2
5

3
3

8
 

W
K

LY
 P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
V

C
S 

 $
   

 2
,0

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
3

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,7
2

9
.2

0
  

0
0

1
D

 
A

T&
T 

1
2

5
3

5
5

 
1

0
/1

3
-1

1
/1

2
P

T 
TO

 P
T1

 
 $

   
 1

,7
2

9
.2

0
  

8
7

2
4

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,3
3

4
.9

2
  

0
0

1
3

4
8

 
A

TH
EN

S 
IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E 

SE
R

V
IC

E,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
4

1
1

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
 M

O
N

TH
LY

 F
EE

 
 $

   
 4

,3
3

4
.9

2
  

8
7

2
4

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

8
4

 
B

A
ZA

R
N

IC
K

, S
EL

EN
E

 
1

2
5

3
6

4
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

2
4

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,8
5

2
.4

0
  

0
0

3
7

1
3

 
B

EN
N

ET
T 

TR
U

C
K

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T 

1
2

5
3

8
5

 
2

4
0

4
 V

EH
#1

1
0

1
6

 D
EL

 
 $

   
 1

,0
0

4
.8

0
  

8
7

2
4

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,8
5

2
.4

0
  

0
0

3
7

1
3

 
B

EN
N

ET
T 

TR
U

C
K

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T 

1
2

5
3

8
6

 
2

4
0

4
 V

EH
#1

1
0

1
8

 D
EL

 
 $

   
  9

2
3

.8
0

  

8
7

2
4

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,8
5

2
.4

0
  

0
0

3
7

1
3

 
B

EN
N

ET
T 

TR
U

C
K

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T 

1
2

5
3

8
7

 
2

4
0

4
 V

EH
#1

1
0

2
3

 D
EL

 
 $

   
  9

2
3

.8
0

  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

3
5

0
 

LI
M

E-
A

-W
A

Y 
SM

C
 

 $
   

 1
3

.7
4

  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

3
5

1
 

G
O

R
IL

LA
 G

LU
E 

W
TC

 
 $

   
 8

.1
5

  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

3
5

2
 

FE
N

C
E 

R
EP

A
IR

 M
M

F 
 $

   
 2

2
.4

0
  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
2

7
 

SM
O

K
E 

A
LA

R
M

 M
M

F 
 $

   
 8

0
.8

2
  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
2

8
 

SH
EL

V
IN

G
M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
P

R
C

 
 $

   
  3

0
6

.0
0

  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
2

9
 

SH
EL

V
IN

G
M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
P

R
C

 
 $

   
 7

7
.1

6
  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
3

0
 

SI
LI

C
O

N
E 

V
ER

 
 $

   
 2

5
.1

5
  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
3

1
 

LI
M

E-
A

-W
A

Y 
M

M
F 

 $
   

 1
3

.7
4

  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
3

2
 

H
EX

 K
EY

 S
ET

 P
R

C
 

 $
   

 3
2

.7
6

  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
3

3
 

D
R

IL
L 

B
IT

 S
ET

 O
P

S 
 $

   
 2

7
.5

2
  

8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
3

4
 

R
EB

A
R

 T
IE

 W
IR

E 
V

ER
 

 $
   

 6
.1

8
  

Attachment A

10.1A.1



8
7

2
4

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
3

6
.1

7
 

1
0

7
A

 
B

FS
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
3

5
 

H
EA

D
LI

G
H

T 
SM

C
 

 $
   

 2
2

.5
5

  

8
7

2
4

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

8
5

 
B

R
A

G
ER

, J
U

ST
IN

 
1

2
5

3
6

5
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

2
4

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
1

2
.3

0
 

1
4

9
 

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 N

EW
SP

A
P

ER
S 

P
'S

H
IP

 
1

2
5

5
4

5
 

1
3

 W
EE

K
 R

EN
EW

A
L 

SU
B

S 
 $

   
  1

1
2

.3
0

  

8
7

2
4

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
6

7
.0

0
 

0
0

3
6

5
8

 
C

A
P

D
EP

O
N

, K
A

TH
ER

IN
E 

1
2

5
4

9
9

 
V

EH
#8

0
1

 S
M

O
G

 C
ER

T 
 $

   
 4

1
.7

5
  

8
7

2
4

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
6

7
.0

0
 

0
0

3
6

5
8

 
C

A
P

D
EP

O
N

, K
A

TH
ER

IN
E 

1
2

5
5

0
2

 
V

EH
#P

C
1

1
1

1
 S

M
O

G
 C

ER
T 

 $
   

 4
1

.7
5

  

8
7

2
4

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
6

7
.0

0
 

0
0

3
6

5
8

 
C

A
P

D
EP

O
N

, K
A

TH
ER

IN
E 

1
2

5
5

0
4

 
V

EH
#P

C
1

1
0

5
 S

M
O

G
 C

ER
T 

 $
   

 4
1

.7
5

  

8
7

2
4

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
6

7
.0

0
 

0
0

3
6

5
8

 
C

A
P

D
EP

O
N

, K
A

TH
ER

IN
E 

1
2

5
5

0
6

 
V

EH
#P

C
1

1
0

1 
 $

   
 4

1
.7

5
  

8
7

2
4

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

8
6

 
C

A
SA

R
EZ

, M
A

R
Y 

1
2

5
3

6
6

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

2
4

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
9

5
.0

1
 

0
0

1
1

5
9

 
C

A
TT

O
'S

 G
R

A
P

H
IC

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
3

0
9

 
P

A
R

A
C

R
U

Z 
V

EH
 D

EC
A

LS
 

 $
   

  1
9

5
.0

1
  

8
7

2
4

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
2

,3
1

1
.6

6
 

0
0

3
6

6
1

 
C

EL
TI

S 
V

EN
TU

R
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
4

4
0

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
O

N
E 

R
ID

E 
TI

M
E 

 $
   

  1
8

,1
9

1
.2

5
  

8
7

2
4

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
2

,3
1

1
.6

6
 

0
0

3
6

6
1

 
C

EL
TI

S 
V

EN
TU

R
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
4

4
1

 
Q

4
 2

0
2

3
 S

O
C

IA
L 

M
ED

IA
 

 $
   

 5
,1

4
5

.0
0

  

8
7

2
4

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
2

,3
1

1
.6

6
 

0
0

3
6

6
1

 
C

EL
TI

S 
V

EN
TU

R
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
4

4
2

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
O

N
ER

ID
E 

M
ED

IA
 

 $
   

 1
,9

0
2

.0
8

  

8
7

2
4

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
2

,3
1

1
.6

6
 

0
0

3
6

6
1

 
C

EL
TI

S 
V

EN
TU

R
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
4

4
3

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
 M

IS
C

 C
A

M
P

A
G

I 
 $

   
 3

,2
7

6
.8

8
  

8
7

2
4

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
2

,3
1

1
.6

6
 

0
0

3
6

6
1

 
C

EL
TI

S 
V

EN
TU

R
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
4

4
4

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
 B

R
A

N
D

R
EF

R
ES

H
 

 $
   

 2
,8

4
8

.1
3

  

8
7

2
4

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
2

,3
1

1
.6

6
 

0
0

3
6

6
1

 
C

EL
TI

S 
V

EN
TU

R
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
4

4
5

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
 R

EI
M

A
G

IN
E 

 $
   

  1
7

,7
6

2
.5

0
  

8
7

2
4

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
2

,3
1

1
.6

6
 

0
0

3
6

6
1

 
C

EL
TI

S 
V

EN
TU

R
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
4

4
6

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
K

ID
S 

R
ID

EF
R

EE
 

 $
   

 2
,9

4
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
4

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
2

,3
1

1
.6

6
 

0
0

3
6

6
1

 
C

EL
TI

S 
V

EN
TU

R
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
4

4
7

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
K

ID
FR

EE
 M

ED
IA

 
 $

   
  2

4
5

.8
2

  

8
7

2
5

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

,7
5

3
.5

7
  

0
0

3
3

2
0

 
C

EN
TE

R
 F

O
R

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
TA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 
1

2
5

2
8

2
 

1
9

3
7

 E
LE

C
 B

U
S 

D
EP

LO
Y 

 $
   

 2
,4

7
2

.2
4

  

8
7

2
5

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

,7
5

3
.5

7
  

0
0

3
3

2
0

 
C

EN
TE

R
 F

O
R

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
TA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 
1

2
5

3
8

8
 

1
9

3
7

 E
LE

C
 B

U
S 

D
EP

LO
Y 

 $
   

 6
,2

8
1

.3
3

  

8
7

2
5

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 9
0

0
.0

0
 

0
0

2
1

0
9

 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z/
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 

1
2

5
3

6
1

 
M

O
N

TH
LY

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 IN
V

 
 $

   
  9

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
5

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
8

6
.7

6
 

7
3

3
 

C
LA

R
EM

O
N

T 
EA

P
 

1
2

5
3

3
5

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 E

A
P

 P
R

EM
IU

M
 

 $
   

  6
8

6
.7

6
  

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
3

0
0

 
1

1
/0

3
/2

3
 L

N
G

 C
H

G
S 

 $
   

  1
1

,5
3

3
.6

7
  

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
3

8
9

 
1

0
/2

0
 L

N
G

 C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
 $

   
 9

,7
2

0
.1

6
  

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
3

9
1

 
0

8
/2

0
2

3
 F

IX
ED

 F
EE

 
 $

   
  2

0
,6

2
8

.0
0

  

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
3

9
2

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#C
EW

1
2

6
1

4
4

3
5

 
 $

   
   

(1
9

,9
3

1
.0

0
) 

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
3

9
3

 
0

7
/2

0
2

3
 F

IX
ED

 F
EE

 
 $

   
  2

0
,6

2
8

.0
0

  

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
3

9
4

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#C
EW

1
2

6
1

4
4

3
3

 
 $

   
   

(1
9

,9
3

1
.0

0
) 

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
4

4
8

 
1

0
/2

4
/2

0
2

3
 L

N
G

 C
H

G
S 

 $
   

 9
,6

2
9

.6
8

  

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
4

4
9

 
1

1
/0

7
/2

0
2

3
 L

N
G

 C
H

G
S 

 $
   

  1
1

,5
3

3
.6

7
  

8
7

2
5

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
3

,9
6

0
.8

1
 

0
0

1
1

2
4

 
C

LE
A

N
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

1
2

5
4

5
0

 
1

1
/1

0
/2

0
2

3
 L

N
G

 C
H

G
S 

 $
   

  1
0

,1
4

9
.6

3
  

8
7

2
5

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,7
1

0
.8

5
  

0
7

5
 

C
O

A
ST

 P
A

P
ER

 &
 S

U
P

P
LY

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

4
5

1
 

JA
N

IT
O

R
IA

L 
SP

LY
 V

ER
 

 $
   

  1
0

0
.5

1
  

8
7

2
5

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,7
1

0
.8

5
  

0
7

5
 

C
O

A
ST

 P
A

P
ER

 &
 S

U
P

P
LY

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

4
5

2
 

JA
N

IT
O

R
IA

L 
SP

LY
 M

M
F 

 $
   

 1
,4

3
1

.1
7

  

8
7

2
5

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,7
1

0
.8

5
  

0
7

5
 

C
O

A
ST

 P
A

P
ER

 &
 S

U
P

P
LY

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

4
5

3
 

JA
N

IT
O

R
IA

L 
SP

LY
 M

M
F 

 $
   

 7
8

.6
6

  

8
7

2
5

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,7
1

0
.8

5
  

0
7

5
 

C
O

A
ST

 P
A

P
ER

 &
 S

U
P

P
LY

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

4
5

4
 

JA
N

IT
O

R
IA

L 
SP

LY
 O

P
S 

 $
   

  1
0

0
.5

1
  

8
7

2
5

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 9
4

3
.5

4
 

1
6

3
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

P
R

IN
TE

R
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

4
5

5
 

P
H

O
TO

TE
X

 S
IG

N
S 

M
K

TG
 

 $
   

  4
1

3
.9

5
  

8
7

2
5

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 9
4

3
.5

4
 

1
6

3
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

P
R

IN
TE

R
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

4
5

6
 

H
O

LI
D

A
Y 

C
A

R
D

S 
M

K
TG

 
 $

   
  5

2
9

.5
9

  

8
7

2
5

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 4
5

2
.0

0
 

3
6

7
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

TE
LE

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F 

1
2

5
3

3
1

 
1

0
/2

7
B

O
A

R
D

 M
TG

 C
V

R
G

 
 $

   
  4

5
2

.0
0

  

Attachment A

10.1A.2



8
7

2
5

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,2
2

9
.4

4
  

0
0

3
6

6
8

 
C

R
O

SS
LI

N
E 

SU
P

P
LY

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

3
9

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 8

1
.9

4
  

8
7

2
5

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,2
2

9
.4

4
  

0
0

3
6

6
8

 
C

R
O

SS
LI

N
E 

SU
P

P
LY

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
5

7
 

IN
V

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 1
,8

5
0

.7
0

  

8
7

2
5

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,2
2

9
.4

4
  

0
0

3
6

6
8

 
C

R
O

SS
LI

N
E 

SU
P

P
LY

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
5

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

,2
9

6
.8

0
  

8
7

2
5

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
5

0
.0

0
 

E1
0

0
9

 
C

U
M

M
IN

S,
 E

D
W

A
R

D
 

1
2

5
4

1
3

 
B

O
O

T 
R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
  2

5
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
5

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

,3
0

2
.1

4
  

0
0

3
1

1
6

 
C

U
M

M
IN

S,
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

5
9

 
V

EH
#2

3
3

3
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  1
0

5
.0

7
  

8
7

2
5

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

,3
0

2
.1

4
  

0
0

3
1

1
6

 
C

U
M

M
IN

S,
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

6
0

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  2
8

6
.2

6
  

8
7

2
5

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

,3
0

2
.1

4
  

0
0

3
1

1
6

 
C

U
M

M
IN

S,
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

6
1

 
V

EH
#1

1
0

1
2

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

9
5

.8
6

  

8
7

2
5

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

,3
0

2
.1

4
  

0
0

3
1

1
6

 
C

U
M

M
IN

S,
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

6
2

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 2
,1

9
9

.0
5

  

8
7

2
5

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

,3
0

2
.1

4
  

0
0

3
1

1
6

 
C

U
M

M
IN

S,
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

6
3

 
V

EH
#4

2
0

4
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 2
3

.1
2

  

8
7

2
5

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

,3
0

2
.1

4
  

0
0

3
1

1
6

 
C

U
M

M
IN

S,
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

6
4

 
V

EH
#1

3
0

2
 E

C
M

 C
A

LI
B

R
A

 
 $

   
 5

,3
9

2
.7

8
  

8
7

2
6

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
4

,7
5

2
.2

6
 

0
0

3
2

7
4

 
EA

ST
 B

A
Y 

TI
R

E 
C

O
. 

1
2

5
3

1
0

 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

TI
R

ES
 

 $
   

 2
,7

4
4

.0
4

  

8
7

2
6

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
4

,7
5

2
.2

6
 

0
0

3
2

7
4

 
EA

ST
 B

A
Y 

TI
R

E 
C

O
. 

1
2

5
3

1
1

 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

TI
R

ES
 

 $
   

  3
0

5
.4

0
  

8
7

2
6

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
4

,7
5

2
.2

6
 

0
0

3
2

7
4

 
EA

ST
 B

A
Y 

TI
R

E 
C

O
. 

1
2

5
4

6
5

 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

TI
R

ES
 

 $
   

 5
6

.6
5

  

8
7

2
6

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
4

,7
5

2
.2

6
 

0
0

3
2

7
4

 
EA

ST
 B

A
Y 

TI
R

E 
C

O
. 

1
2

5
4

6
6

 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

TI
R

ES
 

 $
   

 6
,8

6
0

.1
0

  

8
7

2
6

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
4

,7
5

2
.2

6
 

0
0

3
2

7
4

 
EA

ST
 B

A
Y 

TI
R

E 
C

O
. 

1
2

5
4

6
7

 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

TI
R

ES
 

 $
   

 2
,1

0
6

.8
8

  

8
7

2
6

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
4

,7
5

2
.2

6
 

0
0

3
2

7
4

 
EA

ST
 B

A
Y 

TI
R

E 
C

O
. 

1
2

5
4

6
8

 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

TI
R

ES
 

 $
   

 1
,3

7
2

.0
2

  

8
7

2
6

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
4

,7
5

2
.2

6
 

0
0

3
2

7
4

 
EA

ST
 B

A
Y 

TI
R

E 
C

O
. 

1
2

5
4

6
9

 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

TI
R

ES
 

 $
   

 1
,3

0
7

.1
7

  

8
7

2
6

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,4
1

7
.2

5
  

0
0

3
4

8
5

 
EM

P
LO

YN
ET

, I
N

C
 

1
2

5
3

9
5

 
B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

H
EC

K
 

 $
   

 6
5

.0
0

  

8
7

2
6

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,4
1

7
.2

5
  

0
0

3
4

8
5

 
EM

P
LO

YN
ET

, I
N

C
 

1
2

5
4

7
1

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/0
5

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,1

2
5

.0
0

  

8
7

2
6

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,4
1

7
.2

5
  

0
0

3
4

8
5

 
EM

P
LO

YN
ET

, I
N

C
 

1
2

5
4

7
4

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,2

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
6

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,4
1

7
.2

5
  

0
0

3
4

8
5

 
EM

P
LO

YN
ET

, I
N

C
 

1
2

5
4

7
6

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,0

2
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
6

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,4
1

7
.2

5
  

0
0

3
4

8
5

 
EM

P
LO

YN
ET

, I
N

C
 

1
2

5
4

7
7

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,0

0
7

.2
5

  

8
7

2
6

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

8
7

 
ES

P
IT

IA
, N

A
O

M
I 

1
2

5
3

6
7

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

2
6

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
5

2
.9

5
 

E6
7

2
 

ES
TR

A
D

A
, U

R
IE

L 
1

2
5

3
3

2
 

B
ID

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

  6
5

2
.9

5
  

8
7

2
6

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,1
9

4
.3

6
  

0
0

1
2

9
7

 
FA

ST
EN

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
3

0
1

 
IN

V
&

V
EN

D
 M

A
C

H
 O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  1
3

0
.6

5
  

8
7

2
6

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,1
9

4
.3

6
  

0
0

1
2

9
7

 
FA

ST
EN

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
3

9
6

 
IN

V
TR

Y/
V

EN
D

 M
A

C
H

 O
R

D
 

 $
   

  2
3

7
.6

6
  

8
7

2
6

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,1
9

4
.3

6
  

0
0

1
2

9
7

 
FA

ST
EN

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
3

9
7

 
N

O
N

-I
N

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 5
0

.7
0

  

8
7

2
6

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,1
9

4
.3

6
  

0
0

1
2

9
7

 
FA

ST
EN

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
3

9
8

 
IN

V
TR

Y/
V

EN
D

 M
A

C
H

 O
R

D
 

 $
   

  1
8

7
.5

3
  

8
7

2
6

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,1
9

4
.3

6
  

0
0

1
2

9
7

 
FA

ST
EN

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
3

9
9

 
IN

V
TR

Y/
SA

FE
TY

 O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

0
7

.6
8

  

8
7

2
6

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,1
9

4
.3

6
  

0
0

1
2

9
7

 
FA

ST
EN

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

7
9

 
N

O
N

-I
N

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 4
5

.0
3

  

8
7

2
6

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,1
9

4
.3

6
  

0
0

1
2

9
7

 
FA

ST
EN

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

8
0

 
IN

V
/V

EN
D

 M
A

C
H

 O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

8
5

.3
7

  

8
7

2
6

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,1
9

4
.3

6
  

0
0

1
2

9
7

 
FA

ST
EN

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

8
1

 
V

EN
D

 M
A

C
H

 O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 4

9
.7

4
  

8
7

2
6

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
5

,7
1

2
.2

1
 

0
0

2
2

9
5

 
FI

R
ST

 A
LA

R
M

 S
EC

U
R

IT
Y 

&
 P

A
TR

O
L 

1
2

5
4

2
6

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
 S

EC
U

R
IT

Y 
 $

   
  5

5
,7

1
2

.2
1

  

8
7

2
6

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,4
2

8
.0

1
  

0
0

3
4

3
1

 
FI

R
ST

 A
LA

R
M

 
1

2
5

3
4

6
 

FI
R

EA
LA

R
M

 R
EP

A
IR

 M
M

F 
 $

   
 2

,1
7

9
.5

1
  

8
7

2
6

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,4
2

8
.0

1
  

0
0

3
4

3
1

 
FI

R
ST

 A
LA

R
M

 
1

2
5

3
4

7
 

FI
R

EA
LA

R
M

 R
EP

A
IR

 O
P

S 
 $

   
  1

9
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
6

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,4
2

8
.0

1
  

0
0

3
4

3
1

 
FI

R
ST

 A
LA

R
M

 
1

2
5

3
4

8
 

1
0

/1
-1

2
/3

1
 F

IR
E 

SB
F 

 $
   

  4
3

0
.5

0
  

8
7

2
6

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,4
2

8
.0

1
  

0
0

3
4

3
1

 
FI

R
ST

 A
LA

R
M

 
1

2
5

3
4

9
 

1
0

/1
-1

2
/3

1
 F

IR
E 

M
M

F 
 $

   
  4

3
8

.0
0

  

Attachment A

10.1A.3



8
7

2
6

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,4
2

8
.0

1
  

0
0

3
4

3
1

 
FI

R
ST

 A
LA

R
M

 
1

2
5

4
8

2
 

A
LA

R
M

 R
EP

A
IR

 O
P

S 
 $

   
  1

9
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
6

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
7

4
.7

3
 

0
0

2
9

6
2

 
FI

S 
1

2
5

3
6

2
 

1
0

/2
0

2
3

M
ER

C
H

A
N

T 
FE

ES
 

 $
   

  6
7

4
.7

3
  

8
7

2
6

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
8

,8
7

8
.9

0
 

0
0

2
9

5
2

 
FL

YE
R

S 
EN

ER
G

Y,
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

0
0

 
1

0
/1

-1
0

/1
5

 R
EV

 F
U

EL
 

 $
   

  1
1

,5
6

4
.1

7
  

8
7

2
6

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
8

,8
7

8
.9

0
 

0
0

2
9

5
2

 
FL

YE
R

S 
EN

ER
G

Y,
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

0
1

 
1

0
/1

-1
0

/1
5

N
O

N
R

EV
FU

EL
 

 $
   

 2
,5

7
8

.8
7

  

8
7

2
6

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
8

,8
7

8
.9

0
 

0
0

2
9

5
2

 
FL

YE
R

S 
EN

ER
G

Y,
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

8
4

 
1

1
/1

-1
1

/1
5

 R
EV

 F
U

EL
 

 $
   

  1
2

,0
6

0
.1

2
  

8
7

2
6

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
8

,8
7

8
.9

0
 

0
0

2
9

5
2

 
FL

YE
R

S 
EN

ER
G

Y,
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

8
6

 
1

1
/1

-1
1

/1
5

N
O

N
R

EV
FU

EL
 

 $
   

 2
,6

7
5

.7
4

  

8
7

2
6

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

3
.7

8
  

0
0

3
2

7
9

 
FR

O
N

TI
ER

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

TI
O

N
S 

- 
3

0
2

5
 

1
2

5
4

8
8

 
1

1
/1

6
-1

2
/1

5
SK

Y-
R

IV
ER

 
 $

   
 5

3
.7

8
  

8
7

2
7

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
5

0
.0

0
 

0
0

3
6

6
2

 
G

A
LL

A
G

H
ER

 B
EN

EF
IT

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
,IN

C
 

1
2

5
4

9
3

 
C

LA
SS

 &
 C

O
M

P
 W

O
R

K
 

 $
   

  5
5

0
.0

0
  

8
7

2
7

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

8
8

 
G

A
R

C
IA

 H
ER

N
A

N
D

EZ
, E

D
G

A
R

 
1

2
5

3
6

8
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

2
7

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

8
9

 
G

H
A

I,
 R

O
H

IT
 

1
2

5
3

6
9

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

2
7

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,6
0

3
.1

0
  

1
1

7
 

G
IL

LI
G

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

3
0

2
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 6

5
.2

5
  

8
7

2
7

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,6
0

3
.1

0
  

1
1

7
 

G
IL

LI
G

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

3
1

2
 

V
EH

#0
6

2
1

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

,7
0

0
.3

3
  

8
7

2
7

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,6
0

3
.1

0
  

1
1

7
 

G
IL

LI
G

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
9

4
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

,7
3

8
.3

6
  

8
7

2
7

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,6
0

3
.1

0
  

1
1

7
 

G
IL

LI
G

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

4
9

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 9

9
.1

6
  

8
7

2
7

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
7

0
.0

0
 

0
0

3
3

1
6

 
G

LO
B

A
L 

W
A

TE
R

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

4
0

2
 

1
0

/2
0

2
3

 O
P

S 
 $

   
  2

8
5

.0
0

  

8
7

2
7

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
7

0
.0

0
 

0
0

3
3

1
6

 
G

LO
B

A
L 

W
A

TE
R

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

4
0

3
 

0
9

/2
0

2
3

 O
P

S 
 $

   
  2

8
5

.0
0

  

8
7

2
7

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

5
.5

9
  

2
8

2
 

G
R

A
IN

G
ER

 
1

2
5

3
3

9
 

R
A

TC
H

ET
 S

ET
 

 $
   

 2
5

.5
9

  

8
7

2
7

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
5

0
.0

0
 

E6
4

9
 

G
U

TI
ER

R
EZ

, A
LM

A
 

1
2

5
3

7
7

 
D

M
V

 E
X

A
M

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

E 
 $

   
  1

5
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
7

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
2

,8
3

0
.0

3
 

0
0

2
9

7
9

 
H

U
N

T 
&

 S
O

N
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

3
0

4
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
,8

3
0

.0
3

  

8
7

2
7

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
8

,6
7

1
.3

6
 

0
0

3
3

9
5

 
JA

R
R

ET
T 

W
A

LK
ER

 &
 A

SS
O

C
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

0
7

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
 R

EI
M

A
G

IN
IN

G
 

 $
   

  3
8

,6
7

1
.3

6
  

8
7

2
7

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,8
5

0
.0

0
  

T3
5

4
 

JJ
 K

A
N

E 
A

U
C

TI
O

N
EE

R
S 

1
2

5
4

0
4

 
R

EP
LA

C
E 

V
O

ID
 #

8
0

5
5

6 
 $

   
 1

,8
5

0
.0

0
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

8
3

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#K
-2

3
2

5
8

2
2

 
 $

   
   

(2
3

3
.5

7
) 

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

8
4

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 3
6

.2
6

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

8
5

 
IN

V
 &

 N
O

N
-I

N
V

 O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 5

7
.4

3
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

8
6

 
V

EH
#P

C
1

1
0

1
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

 
 $

   
  2

9
5

.0
6

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

8
7

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 5
3

.0
1

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

8
8

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  3
7

5
.0

6
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

8
9

 
R

EB
IL

L 
IN

V
#T

-2
3

4
7

6
4

6 
 $

   
 5

2
.7

7
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
0

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#K
-2

3
4

1
7

4
9

 
 $

   
   

(2
9

5
.0

6
) 

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
1

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#T
-2

3
4

5
9

9
2

 
 $

   
  (

5
3

.0
1

) 

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
2

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 2
3

.9
1

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
3

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 5
3

.6
0

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
4

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 1
9

.2
4

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
5

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 1
9

.2
4

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
6

 
N

O
N

 IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 3

0
.4

4
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
7

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#K
-2

3
5

7
1

3
1

 
 $

   
  (

1
9

.2
4

) 

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
8

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  8
2

7
.0

8
  

Attachment A

10.1A.4



8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
2

9
9

 
IN

V
 &

 N
O

N
 IN

V
 O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  8
2

3
.1

8
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

0
9

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#K
-2

0
1

0
9

2
4

 
 $

   
   

(5
5

9
.3

6
) 

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
1

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#K
-2

1
1

6
6

6
3

 
 $

   
   

(3
1

4
.6

4
) 

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
2

 
C

M
 O

R
G

#K
-2

2
8

4
7

2
5

 
 $

   
   

(1
5

7
.3

2
) 

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
3

 
V

EH
#1

0
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

5
0

.8
3

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
4

 
V

EH
#1

0
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

7
9

.4
8

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
5

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 3
7

.4
7

  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
6

 
V

EH
#1

0
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 5

6
.8

6
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
7

 
V

EH
#4

0
1

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 8

1
.7

8
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
8

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  3
4

7
.2

0
  

8
7

2
8

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
4

4
.0

2
  

1
1

1
7

 
K

EL
LE

Y'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
5

1
9

 
IN

V
TR

Y 
O

R
D

ER
/C

O
R

E 
C

R
 

 $
   

  1
5

6
.3

2
  

8
7

2
8

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
5

6
.5

0
 

8
5

2
 

LA
W

 O
FF

IC
ES

 O
F 

M
A

R
IE

 F
. S

A
N

G
 

1
2

5
5

2
0

 
C

L#
2

3
0

0
3

2
3

2
 

 $
   

  2
5

6
.5

0
  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

3
0

5
 

C
A

M
ER

A
 R

EP
A

IR
 

 $
   

  1
8

4
.5

0
  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

3
0

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
5

.4
9

  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
1

4
 

2
4

0
4

 V
EH

#1
1

0
2

6
C

A
M

ER
A

 
 $

   
  8

9
5

.3
0

  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
1

5
 

2
4

0
4

 V
EH

#1
1

0
2

6
C

A
M

ER
A

 
 $

   
  2

9
2

.6
0

  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
1

6
 

2
4

0
4

 V
EH

#1
1

0
2

6
C

A
M

ER
A

 
 $

   
  2

9
7

.8
4

  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
1

7
 

2
4

0
4

 M
IC

 C
A

B
LE

/P
LU

G
 

 $
   

  3
0

4
.4

3
  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
1

8
 

2
4

0
4

 M
IC

 &
 C

A
B

LI
N

G
 

 $
   

 1
,4

7
4

.6
5

  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
1

9
 

2
4

0
4

 B
N

C
 F

 C
O

N
N

EC
TO

R
 

 $
   

 5
3

.3
9

  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
2

0
 

2
4

0
4

 M
IC

 C
A

B
LE

&
P

LU
G

 
 $

   
 1

,6
1

6
.9

0
  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
2

1
 

2
4

0
4

 M
IC

 C
A

B
LE

&
P

LU
G

 
 $

   
  2

9
4

.9
9

  

8
7

2
8

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

,8
5

5
.6

6
  

0
0

3
3

6
2

 
LU

M
IN

A
TO

R
 T

EC
H

 G
R

O
U

P
 G

LO
B

A
L,

 
1

2
5

4
2

2
 

2
4

0
4

 A
R

TI
C

 B
U

S 
C

A
B

LE
 

 $
   

  3
1

5
.5

7
  

8
7

2
8

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

0
.0

0
  

E4
3

5
 

M
A

R
Q

U
EZ

, R
A

YM
U

N
D

O
 

1
2

5
4

1
2

 
#P

C
1

7
1

1
 F

U
EL

 R
EI

M
B

 
 $

   
 2

0
.0

0
  

8
7

2
8

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

9
0

 
M

A
R

TI
N

EZ
 H

ER
N

A
N

D
EZ

, H
EC

TO
R

 
1

2
5

3
7

0
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

2
8

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,3
9

1
.0

0
  

0
0

3
3

6
8

 
M

D
C

 S
YS

TE
M

S 
C

O
R

P
 

1
2

5
5

2
1

 
G

A
S 

SE
N

SO
R

 C
A

LI
B

 M
M

F 
 $

   
 2

,3
9

1
.0

0
  

8
7

2
8

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
8

9
.3

1
 

0
0

1
0

5
2

 
M

ID
 V

A
LL

EY
 S

U
P

P
LY

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

3
1

3
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

8
9

.3
1

  

8
7

2
8

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
1

0
.0

0
 

0
0

2
9

8
2

 
M

IR
A

N
D

A
, C

H
R

IS
TI

A
N

 
1

2
5

5
5

0
 

B
IL

IN
G

U
A

L 
EV

A
LU

A
TI

O
N

 
 $

   
  2

1
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
3

4
4

 
TO

W
EL

,M
O

P
,U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

 $
   

 2
5

.9
1

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

2
2

 
TO

W
EL

S,
M

A
TS

 P
A

R
A

C
R

U
Z 

 $
   

 1
8

.5
0

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

2
3

 
R

A
YG

O
ZA

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 R
EP

 
 $

   
 2

7
.0

0
  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

2
4

 
C

U
R

R
ER

A
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 R

EP
 

 $
   

 2
7

.0
0

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

2
5

 
ZA

M
A

R
IP

P
A

 U
N

FR
M

 R
EP

 
 $

   
 2

7
.0

0
  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

2
6

 
TO

W
EL

S 
FU

EL
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 
 $

   
  1

5
6

.0
0

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

2
7

 
TO

W
EL

,M
O

P
,U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

 $
   

 3
1

.8
5

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

2
8

 
U

N
FR

M
 S

P
LY

 V
M

U
/V

SW
 

 $
   

  3
9

0
.1

6
  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

2
9

 
TO

W
EL

,M
O

P
,M

A
T 

M
M

F 
 $

   
 4

1
.7

5
  

Attachment A

10.1A.5



8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

3
1

 
L.

R
O

C
H

A
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 R

EP
 

 $
   

 3
0

.8
2

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

3
2

 
M

.T
H

O
R

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 R

EP
 

 $
   

 2
7

.0
0

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

3
4

 
J.

C
U

R
R

EA
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 R

EP
 

 $
   

 2
7

.0
0

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

3
8

 
TO

W
EL

S 
FU

EL
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 
 $

   
  1

5
6

.0
0

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

3
9

 
TO

W
EL

,M
O

P
,U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

 $
   

 3
1

.8
5

  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

4
3

 
U

N
FR

M
 S

P
LY

 V
M

U
/V

SW
 

 $
   

  3
8

5
.5

3
  

8
7

2
8

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,4
4

5
.1

2
  

0
4

1
 

M
IS

SI
O

N
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

1
2

5
5

4
6

 
TO

W
E,

M
O

P
,M

A
T 

M
M

F 
 $

   
 4

1
.7

5
  

8
7

2
8

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 9
5

2
.8

1
 

0
0

1
7

1
1

 
M

O
H

A
W

K
 M

FG
. &

 S
U

P
P

LY
 C

O
. 

1
2

5
3

1
4

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  9
5

2
.8

1
  

8
7

2
9

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 4
0

3
.9

0
 

E0
4

5
 

M
O

N
TE

SI
N

O
, E

D
U

A
R

D
O

 
1

2
5

3
8

1
 

P
R

IN
TI

N
G

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

E 
 $

   
  3

1
9

.5
1

  

8
7

2
9

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 4
0

3
.9

0
 

E0
4

5
 

M
O

N
TE

SI
N

O
, E

D
U

A
R

D
O

 
1

2
5

3
8

2
 

M
EA

L 
R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

4
.3

9
  

8
7

2
9

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 7
0

0
.0

0
 

0
0

3
5

4
2

 
N

A
TA

LI
E 

N
IE

M
A

N
 

1
2

5
5

5
3

 
H

O
LI

D
A

Y 
A

SS
ET

 D
ES

IG
N

 
 $

   
  7

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

2
9

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
3

9
.3

8
 

0
0

4
 

N
O

R
TH

 B
A

Y 
FO

R
D

 L
IN

C
-M

ER
C

U
R

Y 
1

2
5

3
2

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

0
0

.9
5

  

8
7

2
9

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
3

9
.3

8
 

0
0

4
 

N
O

R
TH

 B
A

Y 
FO

R
D

 L
IN

C
-M

ER
C

U
R

Y 
1

2
5

3
2

6
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#2

9
0

6
7

0
 

 $
   

   
(1

8
9

.6
1

) 

8
7

2
9

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
3

9
.3

8
 

0
0

4
 

N
O

R
TH

 B
A

Y 
FO

R
D

 L
IN

C
-M

ER
C

U
R

Y 
1

2
5

3
2

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

0
0

.9
5

  

8
7

2
9

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
3

9
.3

8
 

0
0

4
 

N
O

R
TH

 B
A

Y 
FO

R
D

 L
IN

C
-M

ER
C

U
R

Y 
1

2
5

3
2

8
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

0
9

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

  1
2

7
.1

2
  

8
7

2
9

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
3

9
.3

8
 

0
0

4
 

N
O

R
TH

 B
A

Y 
FO

R
D

 L
IN

C
-M

ER
C

U
R

Y 
1

2
5

5
4

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

7
.7

4
  

8
7

2
9

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
3

9
.3

8
 

0
0

4
 

N
O

R
TH

 B
A

Y 
FO

R
D

 L
IN

C
-M

ER
C

U
R

Y 
1

2
5

5
4

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

8
2

.2
3

  

8
7

2
9

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,0
9

3
.7

0
  

0
0

9
 

P
A

C
IF

IC
 G

A
S 

&
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

 
1

2
5

5
5

5
 

1
0

/2
4

-1
1

/2
1

 E
LE

C
 S

B
F 

 $
   

 2
,7

7
9

.9
5

  

8
7

2
9

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
4

,0
9

3
.7

0
  

0
0

9
 

P
A

C
IF

IC
 G

A
S 

&
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

 
1

2
5

5
5

6
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/1
2

 P
A

R
A

C
R

U
Z 

 $
   

 1
,3

1
3

.7
5

  

8
7

2
9

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,6
5

2
.7

5
  

0
0

3
3

7
6

 
P

A
SS

P
O

R
T 

SO
FT

W
A

R
E 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
5

7
 

A
C

A
 F

U
LL

 S
V

C
 2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
,6

5
2

.7
5

  

8
7

2
9

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

9
1

 
P

EN
N

, Y
V

O
N

N
E 

1
2

5
3

7
1

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

2
9

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
7

4
.0

0
 

0
0

3
5

0
6

 
P

H
IL

IP
 J

 C
R

O
U

C
H

 
1

2
5

5
5

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  3

7
4

.0
0

  

8
7

2
9

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
9

0
.5

0
 

4
8

1
 

P
IE

D
 P

IP
ER

 E
X

TE
R

M
IN

A
TO

R
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

4
0

7
 

0
7

/2
0

2
3

 P
ES

T 
SV

C
 V

ER
 

 $
   

 6
5

.0
0

  

8
7

2
9

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
9

0
.5

0
 

4
8

1
 

P
IE

D
 P

IP
ER

 E
X

TE
R

M
IN

A
TO

R
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

5
3

0
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 P
ES

T 
SM

C
 

 $
   

 6
5

.0
0

  

8
7

2
9

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
9

0
.5

0
 

4
8

1
 

P
IE

D
 P

IP
ER

 E
X

TE
R

M
IN

A
TO

R
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

5
3

3
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 P
ES

T 
SM

C
 M

K
T 

 $
   

 5
5

.5
0

  

8
7

2
9

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
9

0
.5

0
 

4
8

1
 

P
IE

D
 P

IP
ER

 E
X

TE
R

M
IN

A
TO

R
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

5
3

5
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 P
ES

T 
SM

C
 T

A
Q

 
 $

   
 4

0
.0

0
  

8
7

2
9

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
9

0
.5

0
 

4
8

1
 

P
IE

D
 P

IP
ER

 E
X

TE
R

M
IN

A
TO

R
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

5
3

6
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 P
ES

T 
V

ER
N

O
N

 
 $

   
 6

5
.0

0
  

8
7

2
9

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
  5

7
2

,0
1

7
.5

0
 

0
0

3
4

4
3

 
P

R
O

TE
R

R
A

 O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
3

7
 

1
9

3
7

 R
H

O
M

B
U

S 
C

H
G

R
 

 $
   

   
1

1
4

,4
0

3
.5

0
  

8
7

2
9

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
  5

7
2

,0
1

7
.5

0
 

0
0

3
4

4
3

 
P

R
O

TE
R

R
A

 O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
4

0
 

1
9

3
7

 R
H

O
M

B
U

S 
C

H
G

R
 

 $
   

   
1

1
4

,4
0

3
.5

0
  

8
7

2
9

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
  5

7
2

,0
1

7
.5

0
 

0
0

3
4

4
3

 
P

R
O

TE
R

R
A

 O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
4

1
 

1
9

3
7

 R
H

O
M

B
U

S 
C

H
G

R
 

 $
   

   
1

1
4

,4
0

3
.5

0
  

8
7

2
9

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
  5

7
2

,0
1

7
.5

0
 

0
0

3
4

4
3

 
P

R
O

TE
R

R
A

 O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
4

2
 

1
9

3
7

 R
H

O
M

B
U

S 
C

H
G

R
 

 $
   

   
1

1
4

,4
0

3
.5

0
  

8
7

2
9

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
  5

7
2

,0
1

7
.5

0
 

0
0

3
4

4
3

 
P

R
O

TE
R

R
A

 O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
4

4
 

1
9

3
7

 R
H

O
M

B
U

S 
C

H
G

R
 

 $
   

   
1

1
4

,4
0

3
.5

0
  

8
7

2
9

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
5

1
.5

0
 

2
1

5
 

R
IC

O
H

 U
SA

, I
N

C
.  

TX
 

1
2

5
3

4
2

 
C

O
P

IE
R

 S
C

M
 

 $
   

  3
5

1
.5

0
  

V
O

ID
ED

 

8
7

2
9

9
 

1
2

/5
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

  (
3

5
1

.5
0

) 
2

1
5

 
R

IC
O

H
 U

SA
, I

N
C

.  
TX

 
1

2
5

3
4

2
 

C
O

P
IE

R
 S

C
M

 
 $

   
   

(3
5

1
.5

0
) 

**
V

O
ID

 

8
7

3
0

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 7
1

1
.8

7
 

0
0

3
0

1
0

 
R

JM
S 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TI

O
N

 
1

2
5

3
2

9
 

FO
R

K
LI

FT
 7

0
0

 R
EP

A
IR

 
 $

   
  7

1
1

.8
7

  

8
7

3
0

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

3
.0

0
  

E1
1

9
2

 
R

O
M

ER
O

 C
A

M
P

O
S,

 E
LV

A
 

1
2

5
3

7
2

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 3

3
.0

0
  

8
7

3
0

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

9
3

 
SA

B
A

, N
IC

H
O

LA
S 

1
2

5
3

7
3

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

Attachment A

10.1A.6



8
7

3
0

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

0
0

3
7

1
6

 
SA

N
 D

IE
G

O
 M

ET
R

O
 T

R
A

N
 D

EV
 B

O
A

R
D

 
1

2
5

4
0

5
 

2
4

0
4

 #
1

1
0

1
6

,0
1

8
,0

2
3

 
 $

   
  2

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
0

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
1

5
.0

0
 

0
0

2
7

0
0

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

C
O

U
N

TY
 E

N
V

IR
O

M
EN

TA
L 

1
2

5
4

0
6

 
1

9
0

2
 R

EP
O

R
T 

R
EV

IE
W

 
 $

   
  3

1
5

.0
0

  

8
7

3
0

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
  1

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

0
0

2
9

1
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
ET

R
O

 T
R

A
N

SI
T 

W
/C

 
1

2
5

4
0

9
 

P
R

EF
U

N
D

 C
L#

2
2

0
1

1
4

0
2

 
 $

   
  5

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
0

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
  1

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

0
0

2
9

1
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
ET

R
O

 T
R

A
N

SI
T 

W
/C

 
1

2
5

4
1

0
 

P
R

EF
N

D
 C

L#
2

0
0

0
1

0
3

1
6

3
 

 $
   

  5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

3
0

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 4
6

9
.5

2
 

0
7

9
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 

1
2

5
3

5
7

 
1

0
/1

-1
0

/3
1

 IR
R

IG
 V

ER
 

 $
   

  2
3

1
.3

0
  

8
7

3
0

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 4
6

9
.5

2
 

0
7

9
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 

1
2

5
3

5
8

 
1

0
/1

-1
0

/3
1

 IR
R

IG
 S

B
F 

 $
   

  2
3

8
.2

2
  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

3
6

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  9
3

3
.2

1
  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

4
0

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/0
5

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,1

2
4

.0
6

  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

4
1

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,0

0
5

.9
5

  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

4
3

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/0
5

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,0

1
2

.5
0

  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

5
6

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,4

1
7

.5
0

  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

4
9

 
TE

M
P

W
/E

1
1

/5
&

1
1

/1
2

/2
3

 
 $

   
 1

,2
0

9
.0

0
  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

5
1

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,0

0
0

.9
1

  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

5
2

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,0

4
6

.2
5

  

8
7

3
0

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
9

,6
9

4
.8

8
  

0
0

1
3

0
7

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

5
4

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  9
4

5
.5

0
  

8
7

3
0

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
1

2
.5

7
 

0
0

2
4

5
9

 
SC

O
TT

S 
V

A
LL

EY
 W

A
TE

R
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

1
2

5
3

5
9

 
1

0
/1

-1
0

/3
1

 IR
R

IG
 S

V
T 

 $
   

  1
7

3
.4

0
  

8
7

3
0

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
1

2
.5

7
 

0
0

2
4

5
9

 
SC

O
TT

S 
V

A
LL

EY
 W

A
TE

R
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

1
2

5
3

6
0

 
1

0
/1

-1
0

/3
1

 W
A

TE
R

 S
V

T 
 $

   
  3

3
9

.1
7

  

8
7

3
0

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 4
3

,8
2

4
.4

0
 

0
0

3
6

2
5

 
SE

LF
 IN

SU
R

ED
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
 

1
2

5
3

3
3

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 V

SP
 

 $
   

 8
,1

9
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
0

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 4
3

,8
2

4
.4

0
 

0
0

3
6

2
5

 
SE

LF
 IN

SU
R

ED
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
 

1
2

5
3

3
4

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 D

EN
TA

L 
 $

   
  3

5
,6

3
4

.4
0

  

8
7

3
1

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

6
7

 
LA

R
A

 G
O

M
EZ

, S
EV

ER
IA

N
O

 
1

2
5

3
7

6
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

3
1

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,5
8

1
.1

2
  

0
0

3
2

9
2

 
SL

IN
G

SH
O

T 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
S 

LL
C

 
1

2
5

4
7

0
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/1

2
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,5
0

1
.7

6
  

8
7

3
1

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,5
8

1
.1

2
  

0
0

3
2

9
2

 
SL

IN
G

SH
O

T 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
S 

LL
C

 
1

2
5

4
7

3
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/1

2
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,1
5

5
.2

0
  

8
7

3
1

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
3

,5
8

1
.1

2
  

0
0

3
2

9
2

 
SL

IN
G

SH
O

T 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
S 

LL
C

 
1

2
5

4
7

5
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/1

9
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  9

2
4

.1
6

  

8
7

3
1

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 5
5

4
.0

7
 

0
0

3
6

9
0

 
SN

A
P

-O
N

 IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L,
 A

 D
IV

IS
IO

N
 

1
2

5
3

0
7

 
SH

O
P

 T
O

O
L 

 $
   

  5
5

4
.0

7
  

8
7

3
1

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,7
1

0
.0

0
  

0
0

3
6

1
1

 
SO

N
IA

 M
EN

D
EZ

-P
A

C
H

EC
O

 
1

2
5

4
3

6
 

C
A

R
P

ET
 C

LE
A

N
IN

G
 P

R
C

 
 $

   
  8

1
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
1

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,7
1

0
.0

0
  

0
0

3
6

1
1

 
SO

N
IA

 M
EN

D
EZ

-P
A

C
H

EC
O

 
1

2
5

4
3

7
 

C
A

R
P

ET
 C

LE
A

N
IN

G
 S

M
C

 
 $

   
  4

5
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
1

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,7
1

0
.0

0
  

0
0

3
6

1
1

 
SO

N
IA

 M
EN

D
EZ

-P
A

C
H

EC
O

 
1

2
5

4
3

8
 

C
A

R
P

ET
 C

LE
A

N
IN

G
 V

ER
 

 $
   

 1
,1

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
1

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,7
1

0
.0

0
  

0
0

3
6

1
1

 
SO

N
IA

 M
EN

D
EZ

-P
A

C
H

EC
O

 
1

2
5

4
3

9
 

C
A

R
P

ET
 C

LE
A

N
IN

G
 O

P
S 

 $
   

  3
5

0
.0

0
  

8
7

3
1

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 8
0

8
.1

9
 

0
0

3
6

2
1

 
SP

O
R

TW
O

R
K

S 
G

LO
B

A
L 

LL
C

 
1

2
5

4
7

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  8

0
8

.1
9

  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

1
5

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 2
2

.5
0

  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

1
6

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 2
,8

8
1

.5
3

  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

1
7

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 2
3

.9
7

  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

1
8

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  7
6

7
.3

7
  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

1
9

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 3
,9

9
8

.4
0

  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

2
0

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  1
1

9
.5

9
  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

2
1

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  8
9

7
.3

0
  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

2
2

 
V

EH
#1

1
0

2
6

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 4

.4
6

  

Attachment A

10.1A.7



8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

2
3

 
V

EH
#1

1
0

2
7

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

2
.9

1
  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
3

2
4

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 8
6

.2
6

  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

8
3

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  5
0

7
.4

9
  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

8
5

 
V

EH
#1

1
0

1
8

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  6

0
9

.8
6

  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

8
7

 
V

EH
#1

1
0

2
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

0
3

.9
2

  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

8
9

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  1
9

6
.6

2
  

8
7

3
1

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 1
0

,2
8

2
.4

7
 

0
0

3
2

8
5

 
TH

E 
A

FT
ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 P

A
R

TS
 C

O
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
4

9
0

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 4
0

.2
9

  

8
7

3
1

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
2

7
.4

8
 

1
6

6
 

TH
E 

H
O

SE
 S

H
O

P
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

3
0

3
 

ST
O

C
K

 O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
1

.9
4

  

8
7

3
1

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
2

7
.4

8
 

1
6

6
 

TH
E 

H
O

SE
 S

H
O

P
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

4
9

1
 

V
EH

#9
8

1
7

 P
A

R
TS

 O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 9

3
.6

5
  

8
7

3
1

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 3
2

7
.4

8
 

1
6

6
 

TH
E 

H
O

SE
 S

H
O

P
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

4
9

2
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

1
1

.8
9

  

8
7

3
1

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,7
8

5
.8

8
  

0
0

3
2

4
2

 
TH

E 
JA

N
EK

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TI

O
N

 
1

2
5

4
9

7
 

EL
EC

TR
 IN

V
EN

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 2
,7

8
5

.8
8

  

8
7

3
1

8
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,8
8

0
.8

3
  

0
0

1
8

0
0

 
TH

ER
M

O
 K

IN
G

 O
F 

SA
LI

N
A

S,
 IN

C
 

1
2

5
3

0
8

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 1
,8

8
0

.8
3

  

8
7

3
1

9
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
1

,6
2

0
.8

1
  

E1
0

9
8

 
TR

EE
, M

IC
H

A
EL

 
1

2
5

3
8

0
 

TR
A

V
EL

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 1
,6

2
0

.8
1

  

8
7

3
2

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
5

0
.2

8
 

0
4

3
 

TR
O

W
B

R
ID

G
E 

EN
TE

R
P

R
IS

ES
 

1
2

5
3

3
0

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

P
P

LY
 

 $
   

  4
5

7
.7

5
  

8
7

3
2

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
5

0
.2

8
 

0
4

3
 

TR
O

W
B

R
ID

G
E 

EN
TE

R
P

R
IS

ES
 

1
2

5
4

9
8

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

P
P

LI
ES

 
 $

   
 5

9
.2

8
  

8
7

3
2

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
5

0
.2

8
 

0
4

3
 

TR
O

W
B

R
ID

G
E 

EN
TE

R
P

R
IS

ES
 

1
2

5
5

0
0

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

P
P

LI
ES

 
 $

   
 6

9
.0

6
  

8
7

3
2

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
5

0
.2

8
 

0
4

3
 

TR
O

W
B

R
ID

G
E 

EN
TE

R
P

R
IS

ES
 

1
2

5
5

0
1

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

P
P

LI
ES

 
 $

   
 4

2
.3

6
  

8
7

3
2

0
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
5

0
.2

8
 

0
4

3
 

TR
O

W
B

R
ID

G
E 

EN
TE

R
P

R
IS

ES
 

1
2

5
5

0
3

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

P
P

LI
ES

 
 $

   
 2

1
.8

3
  

8
7

3
2

1
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 2
5

,9
0

6
.3

0
 

0
5

7
 

U
.S

. B
A

N
K

 
1

2
5

3
8

3
 

X
X

X
X

-X
X

X
X

-X
X

X
X

-5
9

7
1 

 $
   

  2
5

,9
0

6
.3

0
  

8
7

3
2

2
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

8
.6

2
  

0
0

7
 

U
N

IT
ED

 P
A

R
C

EL
 S

ER
V

IC
E 

1
2

5
5

0
5

 
FR

EI
G

H
T 

 $
   

 8
8

.6
2

  

8
7

3
2

3
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
5

3
.0

0
  

E4
3

2
 

V
A

LD
EZ

, R
U

B
EN

 
1

2
5

3
7

9
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 5
3

.0
0

  

8
7

3
2

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
9

8
.4

8
  

4
3

4
 

V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

1
2

5
3

3
7

 
1

0
/2

-1
1

/1
M

K
TG

 T
A

B
LE

T 
 $

   
 6

0
.0

4
  

8
7

3
2

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
9

8
.4

8
  

4
3

4
 

V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

1
2

5
3

5
4

 
1

0
/2

-1
1

/1
TA

B
LE

TS
 M

M
F 

 $
   

  5
7

7
.8

0
  

8
7

3
2

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
9

8
.4

8
  

4
3

4
 

V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

1
2

5
4

0
8

 
8

/2
-9

/1
/2

3
 P

A
R

A
C

R
U

Z 
 $

   
  8

3
0

.3
2

  

8
7

3
2

4
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
2

,2
9

8
.4

8
  

4
3

4
 

V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

1
2

5
5

0
8

 
1

0
/2

-1
1

/1
/2

3
TB

LT
 P

R
C

 
 $

   
  8

3
0

.3
2

  

8
7

3
2

5
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

9
4

 
W

A
R

D
, J

U
ST

IN
 

1
2

5
3

7
4

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

3
2

6
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

   
8

9
.0

0
  

E1
1

9
5

 
ZA

R
A

TE
 G

A
R

C
IA

, J
O

SE
 

1
2

5
3

7
5

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

3
2

7
 

1
2

/4
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
   

 6
1

9
.3

9
 

0
0

3
5

3
0

 
ZO

R
O

 T
O

O
LS

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
3

5
3

 
H

EP
A

 F
IL

TE
R

 M
M

F 
 $

   
  6

1
9

.3
9

  

8
7

3
2

8
 

1
2

/7
/2

0
2

3
 

 $
  6

2
5

,2
0

0
.0

0
 

0
0

1
0

5
1

 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
EC

O
N

 D
EV

 
1

2
5

5
6

6
 

1
9

0
2

 P
A

C
 S

TN
 R

ED
EV

 
 $

   
   

6
2

5
,2

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
2

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
9

.4
0

  
0

0
3

1
5

1
 

A
B

C
 B

U
S 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
5

9
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

9
.4

0
  

8
7

3
3

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
,6

4
5

.0
0

  
0

0
3

7
1

1
 

A
D

A
R

ID
E.

C
O

M
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

6
0

 
P

A
R

A
C

R
U

Z 
EL

IG
IB

IL
IT

Y 
 $

   
 8

,6
4

5
.0

0
  

8
7

3
3

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

8
,8

7
9

.9
0

 
3

8
2

 
A

IR
TE

C
 S

ER
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

5
6

1
 

1
9

0
6

D
 G

O
LF

C
LU

B
 H

V
A

C
 

 $
   

  4
8

,8
7

9
.9

0
  

8
7

3
3

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

9
9

.2
3

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
5

6
2

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

P
P

LY
 

 $
   

 8
3

.9
3

  

8
7

3
3

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

9
9

.2
3

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
5

6
3

 
W

A
LL

 H
O

O
K

S 
M

M
F 

 $
   

 1
5

.3
0

  

8
7

3
3

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

7
,5

1
2

.6
8

  
0

0
1

D
 

A
T&

T 
1

2
5

5
6

4
 

1
0

/1
9

-1
1

/1
8

M
A

IN
 A

C
C

T
 

 $
   

 5
,9

7
8

.6
7

  

8
7

3
3

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

7
,5

1
2

.6
8

  
0

0
1

D
 

A
T&

T 
1

2
5

5
6

5
 

1
0

/1
9

-1
1

/1
9

O
C

N
 T

O
 L

P
 

 $
   

  7
8

6
.4

8
  

8
7

3
3

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

7
,5

1
2

.6
8

  
0

0
1

D
 

A
T&

T 
1

2
5

5
6

7
 

1
0

/1
9

-1
1

/1
8

O
P

S 
EL

V
TR

 
 $

   
  2

0
1

.3
3

  

Attachment A

10.1A.8



8
7

3
3

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

7
,5

1
2

.6
8

  
0

0
1

D
 

A
T&

T 
1

2
5

5
6

8
 

1
1

/0
1

-1
1

/3
0

P
T 

TO
 P

T2
 

 $
   

  5
4

6
.2

0
  

8
7

3
3

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
6

.2
0

  
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

6
9

 
C

O
N

TA
C

T 
C

EM
EN

T 
O

P
S 

 $
   

 1
2

.8
8

  

8
7

3
3

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
6

.2
0

  
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

7
0

 
C

O
N

TA
C

T 
C

EM
EN

T 
O

P
S 

 $
   

 8
.1

5
  

8
7

3
3

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
6

.2
0

  
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

7
1

 
B

U
SS

TO
P

 M
A

IN
T 

FI
EL

D
 

 $
   

 6
5

.1
7

  

8
7

3
3

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

2
5

.2
5

 
0

0
3

6
5

8
 

C
A

P
D

EP
O

N
, K

A
TH

ER
IN

E 
1

2
5

6
1

0
 

V
EH

#1
0

3
 S

M
O

G
 C

ER
T 

 $
   

 4
1

.7
5

  

8
7

3
3

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

2
5

.2
5

 
0

0
3

6
5

8
 

C
A

P
D

EP
O

N
, K

A
TH

ER
IN

E 
1

2
5

6
1

1
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
5

0
1

 S
M

O
G

 C
ER

T 
 $

   
 4

1
.7

5
  

8
7

3
3

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

2
5

.2
5

 
0

0
3

6
5

8
 

C
A

P
D

EP
O

N
, K

A
TH

ER
IN

E 
1

2
5

6
1

2
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
5

 S
M

O
G

 C
ER

T 
 $

   
 4

1
.7

5
  

8
7

3
3

6
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

9
9

.1
4

 
6

6
7

 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

SC
O

TT
S 

V
A

LL
EY

 
1

2
5

5
7

4
 

9
/1

6
-1

1
/1

5
 S

EW
ER

 S
V

T 
 $

   
  3

9
9

.1
4

  

8
7

3
3

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

4
3

.1
6

  
1

3
0

 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

W
A

TS
O

N
V

IL
LE

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 

1
2

5
5

7
5

 
1

0
/1

2
-1

1
/1

4
 F

IR
E 

W
TC

 
 $

   
 4

0
.5

9
  

8
7

3
3

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

4
3

.1
6

  
1

3
0

 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

W
A

TS
O

N
V

IL
LE

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 

1
2

5
5

7
6

 
G

A
R

B
A

G
E 

W
TC

 
 $

   
 1

,3
5

5
.7

3
  

8
7

3
3

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

4
3

.1
6

  
1

3
0

 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

W
A

TS
O

N
V

IL
LE

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 

1
2

5
5

7
7

 
1

0
/1

2
-1

1
/1

4
W

A
TE

R
 W

TC
 

 $
   

  1
1

4
.0

9
  

8
7

3
3

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

4
3

.1
6

  
1

3
0

 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

W
A

TS
O

N
V

IL
LE

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 

1
2

5
5

7
8

 
1

0
/1

2
-1

1
/1

4
IR

R
IG

 W
TC

 
 $

   
 9

6
.0

8
  

8
7

3
3

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

4
3

.1
6

  
1

3
0

 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

W
A

TS
O

N
V

IL
LE

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 

1
2

5
5

7
9

 
1

0
/1

2
-1

1
/1

4
W

A
TE

R
 W

TC
 

 $
   

  4
3

6
.6

7
  

8
7

3
3

8
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

1
4

.2
3

  
9

0
9

 
C

LA
SS

IC
 G

R
A

P
H

IC
S 

1
2

5
5

8
0

 
V

EH
#2

2
1

1
 B

O
D

Y 
R

EP
A

IR
 

 $
   

 3
,2

1
4

.2
3

  

8
7

3
3

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

9
,0

4
0

.2
2

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

5
8

1
 

1
0

/0
2

/2
3

LN
G

 C
H

G
S 

SB
F 

 $
   

  2
0

,6
2

8
.0

0
  

8
7

3
3

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

9
,0

4
0

.2
2

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

5
8

2
 

1
1

/1
3

/2
3

LN
G

-B
 C

H
G

S 
 $

   
 5

,2
0

3
.4

8
  

8
7

3
3

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

9
,0

4
0

.2
2

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

5
8

3
 

1
1

/1
4

/2
3

 L
N

G
-B

 C
H

G
S 

 $
   

  1
1

,6
9

4
.7

9
  

8
7

3
3

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

9
,0

4
0

.2
2

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

5
8

4
 

1
1

/1
7

/2
3

 L
N

G
-B

 C
H

G
S 

 $
   

  1
1

,5
1

3
.9

5
  

8
7

3
4

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,8

9
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

0
3

4
 

C
O

A
ST

A
L 

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

IN
G

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

5
8

5
 

1
2

/2
0

2
3

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

P
IN

G
 

 $
   

 2
,8

9
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
4

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

7
3

.6
7

 
0

0
3

7
0

1
 

C
R

EA
TI

V
E 

B
U

S 
SA

LE
S,

 IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
8

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

7
3

.6
7

  

8
7

3
4

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,4

1
8

.5
1

  
E1

0
2

2
 

C
R

U
M

M
IE

, D
A

W
N

 
1

2
5

5
8

7
 

TR
A

V
EL

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 1
,4

1
8

.5
1

  

8
7

3
4

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

2
,3

5
0

.8
6

 
0

0
2

1
0

4
 

D
EP

T 
O

F 
IN

D
U

ST
R

L 
R

EL
A

TI
O

N
S-

SI
P

 
1

2
5

5
8

8
 

7
/2

0
2

3
-6

/2
0

2
4

 A
SS

M
N

T 
 $

   
  4

2
,3

5
0

.8
6

  

8
7

3
4

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,5

1
0

.4
3

  
0

0
3

3
4

1
 

D
YN

A
M

IC
 S

EC
U

R
IT

Y 
TE

C
H

 IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
8

9
 

A
D

A
 B

U
TT

O
N

 V
ER

N
O

N
 

 $
   

 1
,5

1
0

.4
3

  

8
7

3
4

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,1

6
1

.3
8

  
0

0
3

2
7

4
 

EA
ST

 B
A

Y 
TI

R
E 

C
O

. 
1

2
5

5
9

0
 

R
EV

EN
U

E 
TI

R
ES

 
 $

   
 4

,4
8

7
.6

7
  

8
7

3
4

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,1

6
1

.3
8

  
0

0
3

2
7

4
 

EA
ST

 B
A

Y 
TI

R
E 

C
O

. 
1

2
5

5
9

1
 

W
H

EE
L 

C
H

EC
K

 
 $

   
 1

,6
7

3
.7

1
  

8
7

3
4

6
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

2
8

.0
0

  
0

0
3

4
8

5
 

EM
P

LO
YN

ET
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

5
9

2
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/1

9
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  7

2
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
4

6
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

2
8

.0
0

  
0

0
3

4
8

5
 

EM
P

LO
YN

ET
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

5
9

3
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/2

6
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  4

0
8

.0
0

  

8
7

3
4

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

2
2

.2
1

 
0

0
1

2
9

7
 

FA
ST

EN
A

L 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
9

4
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
2

.8
7

  

8
7

3
4

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

2
2

.2
1

 
0

0
1

2
9

7
 

FA
ST

EN
A

L 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
9

5
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

9
9

.3
4

  

8
7

3
4

8
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

7
7

.6
2

 
0

0
3

6
4

0
 

FE
R

G
U

SO
N

 U
S 

H
O

LD
IN

G
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

5
9

6
 

B
A

TH
R

O
O

M
 R

EP
A

IR
 P

R
C

 
 $

   
  1

7
7

.6
2

  

8
7

3
4

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

2
5

.0
0

 
0

0
3

6
6

2
 

G
A

LL
A

G
H

ER
 B

EN
EF

IT
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

,IN
C

 
1

2
5

5
9

7
 

D
A

TA
 C

O
LL

EC
T/

A
N

A
LY

SI
 

 $
   

  9
2

5
.0

0
  

8
7

3
5

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,4

1
6

.9
5

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

9
8

 
V

EH
#4

2
0

6
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  7
4

3
.0

0
  

8
7

3
5

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,4

1
6

.9
5

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
5

9
9

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  3
4

9
.3

7
  

8
7

3
5

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,4

1
6

.9
5

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
6

0
0

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  4
0

5
.9

2
  

8
7

3
5

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,4

1
6

.9
5

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
6

0
1

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 7
7

.1
9

  

8
7

3
5

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,4

1
6

.9
5

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
6

0
2

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 3
,8

7
5

.1
3

  

8
7

3
5

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,4

1
6

.9
5

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
6

0
3

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  9
6

6
.3

4
  

Attachment A

10.1A.9



8
7

3
5

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

6
4

.4
3

 
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
6

0
4

 
SA

FE
TY

 R
A

IN
 B

O
O

TS
 

 $
   

 4
5

.4
0

  

8
7

3
5

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

6
4

.4
3

 
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
6

0
5

 
D

O
O

R
 K

IC
K

P
LA

TE
S 

M
M

F 
 $

   
  3

9
1

.3
0

  

8
7

3
5

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

6
4

.4
3

 
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
6

0
6

 
SA

FE
TY

 IN
V

TR
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

6
3

.3
9

  

8
7

3
5

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

6
4

.4
3

 
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
6

0
7

 
C

A
U

TI
O

N
 S

IG
N

S 
M

M
F 

 $
   

 4
5

.7
4

  

8
7

3
5

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

6
4

.4
3

 
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
6

0
8

 
B

A
TH

R
O

O
M

 R
EP

A
IR

 P
R

C
 

 $
   

  1
2

2
.3

6
  

8
7

3
5

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

6
4

.4
3

 
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
6

0
9

 
R

ES
TR

O
O

M
 R

EP
A

IR
 S

M
C

 
 $

   
 9

6
.2

4
  

8
7

3
5

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

3
9

.8
4

 
0

0
3

5
5

3
 

IM
D

 F
LU

ID
 S

YS
TE

M
 T

EC
H

N
O

LO
G

IE
S 

1
2

5
6

5
5

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  7
3

9
.8

4
  

8
7

3
5

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

8
8

.8
6

 
9

1
4

 
J.

J.
R

 E
N

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

,I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
5

7
2

 
LE

X
M

A
R

K
 T

O
N

ER
 IT

 
 $

   
  2

1
3

.0
4

  

8
7

3
5

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

8
8

.8
6

 
9

1
4

 
J.

J.
R

 E
N

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

,I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
5

7
3

 
LE

X
M

A
R

K
 T

O
N

ER
 IT

 
 $

   
  3

7
5

.8
2

  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
1

3
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
   

  8
2

.1
3

  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
1

4
 

O
R

G
#2

3
7

3
0

4
0

&
2

3
7

3
2

3
6

 
 $

   
   

(1
6

2
.7

6
) 

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
1

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

3
6

.7
2

  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
1

6
 

C
M

 O
R

G
# 

K
-2

3
7

4
2

5
8

 
 $

   
  (

5
3

.7
1

) 

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
1

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  4

1
4

.0
7

  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
1

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 5

1
.3

7
  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
1

9
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

7
.5

5
  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
2

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

1
4

.1
7

  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
2

1
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
2

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
R

 
 $

   
  2

6
0

.3
0

  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
2

2
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 5

0
.2

5
  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
2

3
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
2

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
R

 
 $

   
 7

9
.9

7
  

8
7

3
5

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

0
5

.2
4

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
2

4
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

5
.1

8
  

8
7

3
5

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

2
1

.7
8

 
E1

8
2

 
LO

G
IU

D
IC

E,
 J

A
SO

N
 

1
2

5
6

2
5

 
B

O
O

T 
R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
  2

2
1

.7
8

  

8
7

3
5

6
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

7
,3

3
4

.3
5

 
0

0
3

3
6

2
 

LU
M

IN
A

TO
R

 T
EC

H
 G

R
O

U
P

 G
LO

B
A

L,
 

1
2

5
6

2
6

 
2

4
0

4
 A

R
TI

C
B

U
S 

C
M

R
A

S 
 $

   
  2

6
,8

9
7

.3
5

  

8
7

3
5

6
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

7
,3

3
4

.3
5

 
0

0
3

3
6

2
 

LU
M

IN
A

TO
R

 T
EC

H
 G

R
O

U
P

 G
LO

B
A

L,
 

1
2

5
6

2
7

 
C

A
M

ER
A

 R
EP

A
IR

 
 $

   
  2

1
8

.5
0

  

8
7

3
5

6
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

7
,3

3
4

.3
5

 
0

0
3

3
6

2
 

LU
M

IN
A

TO
R

 T
EC

H
 G

R
O

U
P

 G
LO

B
A

L,
 

1
2

5
6

2
8

 
C

A
M

ER
A

 R
EP

A
IR

 
 $

   
  2

1
8

.5
0

  

8
7

3
5

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

3
,0

9
0

.9
2

 
0

0
3

0
1

7
 

M
A

N
SF

IE
LD

 O
IL

 C
O

 O
F 

G
A

IN
SV

IL
LE

 
1

2
5

6
2

9
 

1
1

/0
8

/2
3

 D
IE

SE
L 

FU
EL

 
 $

   
  2

3
,0

9
0

.9
2

  

8
7

3
5

8
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,3

7
6

.5
9

  
0

0
1

0
5

2
 

M
ID

 V
A

LL
EY

 S
U

P
P

LY
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
6

3
0

 
JA

N
IT

O
R

IA
L 

SP
LY

 M
M

F 
 $

   
 1

,3
7

6
.5

9
  

8
7

3
5

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
1

.7
5

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

6
3

1
 

TO
W

EL
,M

O
P

,M
A

T 
M

M
F 

 $
   

 4
1

.7
5

  

8
7

3
6

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

4
6

.1
9

  
0

0
3

5
7

3
 

N
IC

K
EL

L 
FI

R
E 

P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
6

3
2

 
FI

R
E 

SP
R

N
K

LR
 R

EP
 O

P
S 

 $
   

 1
,0

4
6

.1
9

  

8
7

3
6

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

1
,1

2
9

.3
7

 
0

0
2

9
4

0
 

O
JO

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
Y,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
3

3
 

2
4

0
5

 S
EC

 C
A

M
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 
 $

   
  2

4
,5

2
7

.7
6

  

8
7

3
6

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

1
,1

2
9

.3
7

 
0

0
2

9
4

0
 

O
JO

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
Y,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

6
3

4
 

2
4

0
5

 S
EC

 C
A

M
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 
 $

   
 6

,6
0

1
.6

1
  

8
7

3
6

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

0
,7

0
8

.8
9

 
0

0
9

 
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 

1
2

5
6

3
5

 
1

0
/2

7
-1

1
/2

9
/2

3
 O

P
S 

 $
   

 5
,3

5
3

.6
4

  

8
7

3
6

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

0
,7

0
8

.8
9

 
0

0
9

 
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 

1
2

5
6

3
6

 
1

0
/2

4
-1

1
/2

2
/2

3
V

ER
N

O
N

 
 $

   
 5

,3
6

4
.5

7
  

8
7

3
6

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

0
,7

0
8

.8
9

 
0

0
9

 
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 

1
2

5
6

3
7

 
1

0
/2

4
-1

1
/2

2
/2

3
 M

M
F 

 $
   

 6
,0

2
0

.9
6

  

8
7

3
6

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

0
,7

0
8

.8
9

 
0

0
9

 
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 

1
2

5
6

3
8

 
1

0
/2

7
-1

1
/2

9
/2

3
 S

M
C

 
 $

   
 3

,7
7

8
.3

6
  

8
7

3
6

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

0
,7

0
8

.8
9

 
0

0
9

 
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 

1
2

5
6

3
9

 
1

0
/2

5
-1

1
/2

2
/2

3
G

A
SS

B
F 

 $
   

  1
9

1
.3

6
  

8
7

3
6

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,3

9
3

.9
0

  
0

0
3

0
2

0
 

Q
U

ES
T 

D
IA

G
N

O
ST

IC
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
6

4
0

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
D

O
T 

D
R

U
G

 T
ES

T 
 $

   
 1

,3
9

3
.9

0
  

Attachment A

10.1A.10



8
7

3
6

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
2

.0
7

  
5

3
6

 
R

IV
ER

SI
D

E 
LI

G
H

TI
N

G
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

6
4

1
 

LI
G

H
T 

R
EP

A
IR

 W
TC

 
 $

   
 2

2
.0

7
  

8
7

3
6

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

8
4

.5
3

 
0

0
3

1
5

4
 

R
O

M
A

IN
E 

EL
EC

TR
IC

 C
O

R
P

 
1

2
5

6
4

2
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  8

8
4

.5
3

  

8
7

3
6

6
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

  1
1

3
,1

3
2

.1
9

 
0

0
2

9
1

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

ET
R

O
 T

R
A

N
SI

T 
W

/C
 

1
2

5
6

7
1

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 R

EP
LE

N
IS

H
 

 $
   

   
1

1
3

,1
3

2
.1

9
  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
4

3
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
/2

3
 V

ER
N

O
N

 
 $

   
  6

9
3

.9
0

  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
4

4
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
/2

3
 O

P
S 

 $
   

  4
2

8
.7

1
  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
4

5
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
/2

3
 M

M
F 

 $
   

 1
,7

6
8

.1
0

  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
4

6
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
M

U
LT

IB
U

SS
T 

 $
   

 1
,1

5
5

.7
2

  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
4

7
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
 IR

R
IG

 S
B

F 
 $

   
 4

,0
2

2
.1

7
  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
4

8
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
 IR

R
IG

 M
M

F 
 $

   
 1

5
.4

2
  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
4

9
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
 B

R
EA

K
R

O
O

M
 

 $
   

 6
2

.1
6

  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
5

0
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
/2

3
 S

M
C

 
 $

   
 2

,9
3

7
.8

8
  

8
7

3
6

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

6
9

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

6
5

1
 

1
0

/1
0

-1
1

/8
/2

3
P

A
C

 IS
L 

 $
   

  1
8

5
.5

0
  

8
7

3
6

8
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

2
6

.5
9

 
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

6
5

2
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/2

6
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  6

2
6

.5
9

  

8
7

3
6

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

3
0

.7
5

 
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
6

5
3

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  1
4

5
.5

3
  

8
7

3
6

9
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

3
0

.7
5

 
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
6

5
4

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  1
8

5
.2

2
  

8
7

3
7

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,3

2
0

.1
0

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

6
5

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

7
.5

9
  

8
7

3
7

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,3

2
0

.1
0

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

6
5

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  9

0
9

.3
4

  

8
7

3
7

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,3

2
0

.1
0

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

6
5

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  5

4
1

.8
8

  

8
7

3
7

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,3

2
0

.1
0

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

6
5

9
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

,4
8

1
.5

6
  

8
7

3
7

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,3

2
0

.1
0

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

6
6

0
 

V
EH

#1
1

0
2

3
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 5
1

.3
7

  

8
7

3
7

0
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,3

2
0

.1
0

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

6
6

1
 

V
EH

#1
3

0
2

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  3

1
8

.3
6

  

8
7

3
7

1
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,6

8
0

.3
7

  
0

0
1

5
0

6
 

TO
M

 L
O

P
ES

 D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

N
G

, I
N

C
 

1
2

5
6

6
8

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 4
,6

8
0

.3
7

  

8
7

3
7

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

2
9

.2
4

 
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

6
6

2
 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 S

P
LY

 O
P

S 
 $

   
  7

0
0

.6
4

  

8
7

3
7

2
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

2
9

.2
4

 
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

6
6

3
 

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
  1

2
8

.6
0

  

8
7

3
7

3
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
0

.0
8

  
0

0
7

 
U

N
IT

ED
 P

A
R

C
EL

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
1

2
5

6
6

4
 

FR
EI

G
H

T 
 $

   
   

   
   

  6
0

.0
8

  

8
7

3
7

4
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,6

0
2

.0
7

  
4

3
4

 
V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
1

2
5

6
6

5
 

1
0

/2
3

-1
1

/2
2

 B
U

S 
W

IF
I 

 $
   

 4
,6

0
2

.0
7

  

8
7

3
7

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

7
,7

8
8

.1
3

  
0

0
1

3
5

3
 

V
IS

IO
N

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

TI
O

N
S 

1
2

5
6

6
6

 
2

3
0

3
 1

9
3

7
 

 $
   

 4
,8

6
7

.6
0

  

8
7

3
7

5
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

7
,7

8
8

.1
3

  
0

0
1

3
5

3
 

V
IS

IO
N

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

TI
O

N
S 

1
2

5
6

6
7

 
2

4
0

4
 R

A
D

IO
 IN

ST
A

LL
S 

 $
   

 2
,9

2
0

.5
3

  

8
7

3
7

6
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
8

.0
0

 
T3

7
9

 
W

H
IT

IN
G

, K
A

TE
 S

M
IT

H
 

1
2

5
6

6
9

 
P

A
R

A
C

R
U

Z 
#8

6
3

7
 R

EF
N

D
 

 $
   

  1
0

8
.0

0
  

8
7

3
7

7
 

1
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
6

.0
0

 
0

0
3

2
9

0
 

W
O

R
K

FO
R

C
EQ

A
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
6

7
0

 
1

0
/2

0
2

3
D

O
T/

D
R

U
G

 T
ES

T 
 $

   
  1

3
6

.0
0

  

8
7

3
7

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
3

.9
0

  
0

0
2

9
4

1
 

A
A

 S
A

FE
 &

 S
EC

U
R

IT
Y 

C
O

 
1

2
5

6
8

7
 

D
IS

P
LA

YC
A

SE
 K

EY
S 

V
ER

 
 $

   
 1

3
.9

0
  

8
7

3
7

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

0
2

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
5

1
 

A
B

C
 B

U
S 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

6
8

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  7

0
2

.5
5

  

8
7

3
8

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
3

.0
0

  
E1

5
7

 
A

B
R

EG
O

, E
U

LA
LI

O
 

1
2

5
6

7
4

 
C

D
L 

R
EN

EW
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

 
 $

   
 5

3
.0

0
  

8
7

3
8

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

4
3

.2
5

 
0

0
3

3
3

0
 

A
C

TI
O

N
 T

O
W

IN
G

 &
 R

O
A

D
 S

V
C

 C
O

R
P

 
1

2
5

6
8

9
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
2

 T
O

W
 

 $
   

  9
4

3
.2

5
  

8
7

3
8

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

0
1

.1
4

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
6

9
1

 
U

TI
LI

TY
 C

A
R

TS
 M

M
F 

 $
   

  5
3

4
.2

2
  

8
7

3
8

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

0
1

.1
4

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
6

9
2

 
C

A
R

D
 R

EA
D

ER
 O

P
S 

 $
   

 5
3

.9
2

  

8
7

3
8

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

0
1

.1
4

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
6

9
3

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

P
P

LY
 M

M
F 

 $
   

  1
3

7
.7

0
  

Attachment A

10.1A.11



8
7

3
8

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

0
1

.1
4

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
6

9
4

 
R

ET
R

O
FI

T 
P

R
C

 V
A

N
S 

 $
   

 6
9

.7
6

  

8
7

3
8

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

0
1

.1
4

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
6

9
5

 
R

EP
/M

A
IN

T 
SP

LY
 M

M
F 

 $
   

  1
1

9
.2

6
  

8
7

3
8

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

0
1

.1
4

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
6

9
6

 
A

C
 W

A
LL

 A
D

A
P

TE
R

 IT
 

 $
   

 1
8

.5
6

  

8
7

3
8

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

0
1

.1
4

  
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
6

9
7

 
A

D
A

P
TE

R
 &

 C
A

B
LE

S 
IT

 
 $

   
  1

6
7

.7
2

  

8
7

3
8

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
4

.3
8

  
0

0
2

8
6

1
 

A
M

ER
IC

A
N

 M
ES

SA
G

IN
G

 S
V

C
S,

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

6
9

8
 

O
N

-C
A

LL
 P

A
G

ER
S 

SV
C

 
 $

   
 3

4
.3

8
  

8
7

3
8

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

5
4

.8
3

 
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
6

9
9

 
JA

N
IT

O
R

 S
TG

 S
M

C
 

 $
   

  1
5

4
.1

4
  

8
7

3
8

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

5
4

.8
3

 
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
7

0
0

 
C

A
B

LE
 T

IE
S 

V
ER

 
 $

   
  1

6
9

.0
2

  

8
7

3
8

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

5
4

.8
3

 
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
7

0
1

 
P

A
N

EL
 IN

ST
A

LL
 S

M
C

 
 $

   
 3

1
.6

7
  

8
7

3
8

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
7

.7
4

  
E1

1
1

8
 

B
O

IS
, M

IC
H

A
EL

 
1

2
5

6
7

3
 

SU
P

V
SR

 M
TG

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
 

 $
   

 6
7

.7
4

  

8
7

3
8

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
7

.0
0

 
0

0
3

6
5

8
 

C
A

P
D

EP
O

N
, K

A
TH

ER
IN

E 
1

2
5

7
0

5
 

V
EH

#8
0

4
 S

M
O

G
 C

ER
T 

 $
   

 4
1

.7
5

  

8
7

3
8

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
7

.0
0

 
0

0
3

6
5

8
 

C
A

P
D

EP
O

N
, K

A
TH

ER
IN

E 
1

2
5

7
0

6
 

V
EH

#1
5

0
2

 S
M

O
G

 C
ER

T 
 $

   
 4

1
.7

5
  

8
7

3
8

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
7

.0
0

 
0

0
3

6
5

8
 

C
A

P
D

EP
O

N
, K

A
TH

ER
IN

E 
1

2
5

7
0

7
 

V
EH

#8
0

3
 S

M
O

G
 C

ER
T 

 $
   

 4
1

.7
5

  

8
7

3
8

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
7

.0
0

 
0

0
3

6
5

8
 

C
A

P
D

EP
O

N
, K

A
TH

ER
IN

E 
1

2
5

7
0

8
 

V
EH

#1
4

0
4

 S
M

O
G

 C
ER

T 
 $

   
 4

1
.7

5
  

8
7

3
8

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,2

5
0

.0
0

  
0

0
1

3
2

4
 

C
A

P
IT

A
LE

D
G

E 
A

D
V

O
C

A
C

Y,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
7

0
9

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
LE

G
IS

LA
TE

 S
V

C
 

 $
   

 5
,2

5
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
8

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
9

.7
6

 
0

0
3

6
3

3
 

C
IN

TA
S 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TI

O
N

 N
O

.2
 

1
2

5
7

1
0

 
FI

R
ST

A
ID

 R
ES

TO
C

K
 V

ER
 

 $
   

  1
6

9
.7

6
  

8
7

3
8

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

8
6

.7
6

 
7

3
3

 
C

LA
R

EM
O

N
T 

EA
P

 
1

2
5

7
1

3
 

1
2

/2
0

2
3

 E
A

P
 P

R
EM

IU
M

 
 $

   
  6

8
6

.7
6

  

8
7

3
9

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

2
,2

5
2

.0
9

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

7
1

1
 

1
1

/2
1

/2
3

 L
N

G
 C

H
G

S 
 $

   
  1

1
,6

2
4

.0
9

  

8
7

3
9

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

2
,2

5
2

.0
9

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

7
1

2
 

1
1

/2
9

/2
3

 M
A

IN
T 

SV
C

 
 $

   
  2

0
,6

2
8

.0
0

  

8
7

3
9

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

5
3

.9
0

 
0

7
5

 
C

O
A

ST
 P

A
P

ER
 &

 S
U

P
P

LY
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
7

1
4

 
TP

 D
IS

P
EN

SE
R

 O
P

S 
 $

   
  2

0
1

.0
2

  

8
7

3
9

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

5
3

.9
0

 
0

7
5

 
C

O
A

ST
 P

A
P

ER
 &

 S
U

P
P

LY
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
7

1
5

 
JA

N
IT

O
R

IA
L 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
  6

5
2

.8
8

  

8
7

3
9

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
,6

3
3

.9
9

 
5

8
8

 
C

TS
JP

A
 (

C
A

LT
IP

) 
1

2
5

7
0

4
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 C
O

D
E=

5
1

0
0

 
 $

   
  1

5
,6

3
3

.9
9

  

8
7

3
9

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
,4

3
2

.8
8

 
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
1

6
 

V
EH

#1
1

0
1

6
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 5
,0

1
2

.9
6

  

8
7

3
9

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
,4

3
2

.8
8

 
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
1

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 4

2
.6

7
  

8
7

3
9

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
,4

3
2

.8
8

 
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
1

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 9

4
.0

1
  

8
7

3
9

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
,4

3
2

.8
8

 
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
1

9
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
6

.1
0

  

8
7

3
9

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
,4

3
2

.8
8

 
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
2

0
 

V
EH

#1
1

0
1

2
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 4
.3

6
  

8
7

3
9

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
,4

3
2

.8
8

 
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
2

1
 

V
EH

#1
2

0
5

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 5

,1
5

2
.7

8
  

8
7

3
9

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

0
5

.4
4

 
0

0
1

5
0

1
 

D
 &

 G
 S

A
N

IT
A

TI
O

N
 

1
2

5
7

2
2

 
1

1
/2

0
-1

2
/1

9
/2

3
 F

IE
LD

 
 $

   
  4

0
5

.4
4

  

8
7

3
9

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,8

3
3

.0
7

  
0

0
3

2
7

4
 

EA
ST

 B
A

Y 
TI

R
E 

C
O

. 
1

2
5

7
2

3
 

R
EV

EN
U

E 
TI

R
ES

 
 $

   
 2

,7
4

4
.0

4
  

8
7

3
9

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,8

3
3

.0
7

  
0

0
3

2
7

4
 

EA
ST

 B
A

Y 
TI

R
E 

C
O

. 
1

2
5

7
2

4
 

R
EV

EN
U

E 
TI

R
ES

 
 $

   
  5

0
8

.8
7

  

8
7

3
9

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,8

3
3

.0
7

  
0

0
3

2
7

4
 

EA
ST

 B
A

Y 
TI

R
E 

C
O

. 
1

2
5

7
2

5
 

R
EV

EN
U

E 
TI

R
ES

 
 $

   
 1

,5
8

0
.1

6
  

8
7

3
9

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

1
9

6
 

ED
W

A
R

D
S,

 T
R

EV
O

R
 

1
2

5
6

7
5

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

3
9

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,9

4
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

4
8

5
 

EM
P

LO
YN

ET
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

7
2

6
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/2

6
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  7

2
0

.0
0

  

8
7

3
9

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,9

4
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

4
8

5
 

EM
P

LO
YN

ET
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

7
2

7
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/0

3
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,2
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

3
9

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,9

4
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

4
8

5
 

EM
P

LO
YN

ET
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

7
2

8
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/0

3
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,0
2

0
.0

0
  

8
7

3
9

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,4

5
5

.0
0

  
0

0
3

1
5

3
 

EN
V

IR
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
LO

G
IS

TI
C

S 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
7

2
9

 
1

0
/2

0
/2

3
 N

O
N

H
A

Z 
SB

F 
 $

   
 2

,4
5

5
.0

0
  

8
7

3
9

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,7

2
0

.6
4

  
4

3
2

 
EX

P
R

ES
S 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
7

3
0

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
0

/2
2

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  9
0

6
.8

8
  

Attachment A

10.1A.12



8
7

3
9

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,7

2
0

.6
4

  
4

3
2

 
EX

P
R

ES
S 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
7

3
1

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
0

/2
9

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  9
0

6
.8

8
  

8
7

3
9

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,7

2
0

.6
4

  
4

3
2

 
EX

P
R

ES
S 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
7

3
2

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/0
5

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  9
0

6
.8

8
  

8
7

4
0

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

9
7

.4
9

 
0

0
1

2
9

7
 

FA
ST

EN
A

L 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
3

3
 

IN
V

/V
EN

D
 M

A
C

H
 O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  1
0

3
.5

1
  

8
7

4
0

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

9
7

.4
9

 
0

0
1

2
9

7
 

FA
ST

EN
A

L 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
3

4
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

4
.7

2
  

8
7

4
0

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

9
7

.4
9

 
0

0
1

2
9

7
 

FA
ST

EN
A

L 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
3

5
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 4

4
.1

0
  

8
7

4
0

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

9
7

.4
9

 
0

0
1

2
9

7
 

FA
ST

EN
A

L 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

7
3

6
 

IN
V

/V
EN

D
 M

A
C

H
 O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  5
2

5
.1

6
  

8
7

4
0

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

1
9

8
 

FE
R

N
A

N
D

EZ
 R

O
C

H
A

, G
U

A
D

A
LU

P
E

 
1

2
5

6
7

7
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

4
0

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

1
9

7
 

FE
R

N
A

N
D

EZ
, R

IC
A

R
D

O
 

1
2

5
6

7
6

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

4
0

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

6
,3

6
1

.6
1

 
0

0
2

2
9

5
 

FI
R

ST
 A

LA
R

M
 S

EC
U

R
IT

Y 
&

 P
A

TR
O

L 
1

2
5

6
9

0
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 S
EC

U
R

IT
Y 

 $
   

  5
6

,3
6

1
.6

1
  

8
7

4
0

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

5
8

.5
2

 
0

0
2

9
5

2
 

FL
YE

R
S 

EN
ER

G
Y,

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

7
3

7
 

1
1

/1
5

-1
1

/3
0

 R
EV

 F
U

EL
 

 $
   

 9
,1

2
7

.1
1

  

8
7

4
0

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

5
8

.5
2

 
0

0
2

9
5

2
 

FL
YE

R
S 

EN
ER

G
Y,

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

7
3

8
 

1
1

/1
5

-1
1

/3
0

 N
O

N
-R

EV
 

 $
   

 2
,1

3
1

.4
1

  

8
7

4
0

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

7
0

5
 

FR
EE

D
O

M
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

7
3

9
 

0
1

/2
0

2
4

 R
EN

T 
FR

EE
D

O
M

 
 $

   
 3

,0
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

4
0

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

1
9

9
 

G
A

LP
ER

, C
LI

FF
 

1
2

5
6

7
8

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

4
0

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

7
8

.5
7

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
7

4
0

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  8
6

0
.4

1
  

8
7

4
0

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

7
8

.5
7

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
7

4
1

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 1
,1

4
7

.2
2

  

8
7

4
0

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

7
8

.5
7

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
7

4
2

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 7
0

.9
4

  

8
7

4
0

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

6
,6

5
8

.0
0

 
0

0
2

1
2

3
 

G
IR

O
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

7
4

3
 

0
1

/0
1

-1
2

/3
1

/2
0

2
4

 
 $

   
  9

6
,6

5
8

.0
0

  

8
7

4
0

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

8
5

.0
0

 
0

0
3

3
1

6
 

G
LO

B
A

L 
W

A
TE

R
 T

EC
H

N
O

LO
G

Y 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
7

4
4

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 W

TR
TR

EA
T 

O
P

S 
 $

   
  2

8
5

.0
0

  

8
7

4
1

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
,2

9
2

.4
4

 
0

0
3

4
2

8
 

G
O

V
ER

N
M

EN
TJ

O
B

S.
C

O
M

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
7

9
3

 
1

2
/2

7
/2

3
-1

2
/2

6
/2

4
 

 $
   

  1
1

,2
9

2
.4

4
  

8
7

4
1

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
5

.1
2

 
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
7

4
5

 
R

EP
/M

A
IN

T 
SP

LY
 M

M
F 

 $
   

  4
4

2
.0

5
  

8
7

4
1

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
5

.1
2

 
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
7

4
6

 
R

EP
/M

A
IN

T 
SP

LY
 M

M
F 

 $
   

 7
3

.0
7

  

8
7

4
1

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

9
0

.7
1

 
0

0
1

0
9

7
 

G
R

EE
N

W
A

ST
E 

R
EC

O
V

ER
Y,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
4

9
 

1
1

/0
1

-1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

 S
V

T 
 $

   
  4

7
8

.6
1

  

8
7

4
1

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

9
0

.7
1

 
0

0
1

0
9

7
 

G
R

EE
N

W
A

ST
E 

R
EC

O
V

ER
Y,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
5

0
 

1
1

/0
1

-1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

 P
R

C
 

 $
   

  5
1

2
.1

0
  

8
7

4
1

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

2
0

0
 

G
U

ER
R

ER
O

, D
A

V
ID

 
1

2
5

6
7

9
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

4
1

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

2
0

1
 

G
U

ZM
A

N
, K

A
R

IN
A

 
1

2
5

6
8

0
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
1

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 R

ET
A

IN
ER

 
 $

   
  2

7
,8

6
9

.0
0

  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
2

 
M

#0
3

2
1

1
7

.0
0

4
0

0
2

 
 $

   
 4

,7
7

5
.2

0
  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
3

 
M

#0
3

2
1

1
7

.0
0

4
0

0
3

 
 $

   
 1

,0
3

7
.6

0
  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
4

 
M

#0
3

2
1

1
7

-0
0

4
0

0
4

 
 $

   
  2

4
7

.8
0

  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
5

 
M

#0
3

2
1

1
7

.0
0

5
0

0
1

 
 $

   
 7

,0
7

6
.0

0
  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
6

 
M

#0
3

2
1

1
7

.0
0

5
0

0
2

 
 $

   
  1

3
4

.1
0

  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
7

 
M

#0
3

2
1

1
7

.0
0

6
0

1
2

 
 $

   
 1

,5
0

4
.0

0
  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
8

 
M

#0
3

2
1

1
7

.0
0

6
0

1
3

 
 $

   
  8

1
8

.8
0

  

8
7

4
1

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

3
,5

8
9

.5
5

 
0

0
3

1
0

9
 

H
A

N
SO

N
 B

R
ID

G
ET

T 
LL

P
 

1
2

5
7

5
9

 
M

#0
3

2
1

1
7

.0
0

6
0

4
2

 
 $

   
  1

2
7

.0
5

  

8
7

4
1

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

5
,0

6
6

.0
3

 
0

0
3

3
9

5
 

JA
R

R
ET

T 
W

A
LK

ER
 &

 A
SS

O
C

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

7
6

0
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 R
EM

A
G

IN
IN

G
 

 $
   

  4
5

,0
6

6
.0

3
  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

1
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#K

-2
3

8
1

7
3

8
 

 $
   

  (
6

1
.0

9
) 

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

2
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#K

-2
3

8
1

7
3

8
 

 $
   

   
(2

5
1

.4
9

) 

Attachment A

10.1A.13



8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

3
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#K

-2
3

7
6

5
8

9
 

 $
   

   
(1

2
1

.7
2

) 

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

4
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
2

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

 5
1

.3
7

  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

5
.2

2
  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

6
 

K
-2

3
8

1
8

3
1

,4
3

1
2

,1
7

3
8

 $
   

   
(1

4
8

.8
9

) 

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

7
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

  4
2

4
.9

4
  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

8
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

 2
1

.5
2

  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
6

9
 

B
A

TT
ER

Y 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
 $

   
 2

,2
2

1
.4

0
  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
7

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

1
.5

7
  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
7

1
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

0
7

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

 4
8

.0
7

  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
7

2
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  3

2
7

.5
3

  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
7

3
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

  3
3

7
.7

2
  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
7

4
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

  3
3

1
.4

6
  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
7

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
1

.7
2

  

8
7

4
1

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,4

2
7

.7
1

  
1

1
1

7
 

K
EL

LE
Y'

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IN
C

. 
1

2
5

7
7

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 8

8
.3

8
  

8
7

4
1

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

8
0

.0
0

 
0

0
2

9
9

0
 

K
IS

M
ET

 
1

2
5

7
7

7
 

C
P

R
/A

ED
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 P

R
C

 
 $

   
  8

8
0

.0
0

  

8
7

4
1

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

1
3

.7
5

  
0

0
3

4
5

0
 

LA
N

G
U

A
G

E 
LI

N
E 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 IN

C
 

1
2

5
7

7
8

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
TR

A
N

SL
A

TE
 S

V
C

 
 $

   
 1

,0
1

3
.7

5
  

8
7

4
2

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,2

4
8

.3
0

  
8

5
2

 
LA

W
 O

FF
IC

ES
 O

F 
M

A
R

IE
 F

. S
A

N
G

 
1

2
5

7
7

9
 

C
L#

2
1

0
0

6
9

4
7

 
 $

   
  7

3
5

.3
0

  

8
7

4
2

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,2

4
8

.3
0

  
8

5
2

 
LA

W
 O

FF
IC

ES
 O

F 
M

A
R

IE
 F

. S
A

N
G

 
1

2
5

7
8

0
 

C
L#

2
1

0
0

0
5

5
6

 
 $

   
  5

1
3

.0
0

  

8
7

4
2

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,6

5
7

.9
8

  
0

0
3

3
6

2
 

LU
M

IN
A

TO
R

 T
EC

H
 G

R
O

U
P

 G
LO

B
A

L,
 

1
2

5
7

8
1

 
2

4
0

4
 M

SE
T 

LI
C

EN
SE

S 
 $

   
 3

,6
5

7
.9

8
  

8
7

4
2

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

3
,7

3
0

.8
5

 
0

0
3

0
1

7
 

M
A

N
SF

IE
LD

 O
IL

 C
O

 O
F 

G
A

IN
SV

IL
LE

 
1

2
5

7
8

2
 

1
1

/2
2

/2
3

 D
IE

SE
L 

FU
EL

 
 $

   
  2

3
,7

3
0

.8
5

  

8
7

4
2

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,4

5
0

.5
6

  
0

0
3

2
7

3
 

M
G

P
 X

I R
EI

T,
LL

C
 

1
2

5
7

8
3

 
1

/2
0

2
4

 R
EN

T 
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
 

 $
   

 2
,4

5
0

.5
6

  

8
7

4
2

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,5

3
7

.9
8

  
0

0
1

0
5

2
 

M
ID

 V
A

LL
EY

 S
U

P
P

LY
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
7

8
4

 
JA

N
IT

O
R

IA
L 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
 1

,5
3

7
.9

8
  

8
7

4
2

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
2

.0
6

 
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

7
8

5
 

TO
W

EL
S 

FU
EL

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 

 $
   

  1
5

6
.0

0
  

8
7

4
2

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
2

.0
6

 
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

7
8

6
 

TO
W

EL
,M

O
P

,U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
 $

   
 3

1
.8

5
  

8
7

4
2

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
2

.0
6

 
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

7
8

7
 

U
N

IF
O

R
M

 S
P

LY
 V

M
U

/V
SW

 
 $

   
  3

2
4

.2
1

  

8
7

4
2

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

9
0

.0
0

 
8

1
6

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 V
A

LL
EY

 F
O

R
D

 
1

2
5

7
8

8
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
1

 D
IA

G
N

O
SI

S 
 $

   
  3

9
0

.0
0

  

8
7

4
2

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,2

0
4

.3
9

  
0

0
1

7
1

1
 

M
O

H
A

W
K

 M
FG

. &
 S

U
P

P
LY

 C
O

. 
1

2
5

7
8

9
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  6

8
9

.2
6

  

8
7

4
2

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,2

0
4

.3
9

  
0

0
1

7
1

1
 

M
O

H
A

W
K

 M
FG

. &
 S

U
P

P
LY

 C
O

. 
1

2
5

7
9

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

6
2

.9
4

  

8
7

4
2

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,2

0
4

.3
9

  
0

0
1

7
1

1
 

M
O

H
A

W
K

 M
FG

. &
 S

U
P

P
LY

 C
O

. 
1

2
5

7
9

1
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

5
2

.1
9

  

8
7

4
2

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

2
0

2
 

M
O

O
N

, K
IM

B
ER

LY
 

1
2

5
6

8
1

 
C

P
L 

R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

4
2

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
4

.0
0

 
T3

8
0

 
M

U
LH

O
LA

N
D

, P
A

U
L 

1
2

5
7

9
2

 
P

R
C

 C
U

ST
#8

7
7

1
 R

EF
U

N
D

 
 $

   
  1

6
4

.0
0

  

8
7

4
3

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
0

.4
2

  
0

0
3

3
2

6
 

N
ID

A
L 

H
A

LA
B

I &
 N

A
D

A
 A

LG
H

A
R

IB
 

1
2

5
7

9
4

 
N

A
M

E 
P

LA
TE

 
 $

   
 4

0
.4

2
  

8
7

4
3

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

2
0

3
 

N
O

LF
I,

 M
A

R
K

 
1

2
5

6
8

2
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

4
3

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

3
1

.3
3

 
0

0
4

 
N

O
R

TH
 B

A
Y 

FO
R

D
 L

IN
C

-M
ER

C
U

R
Y 

1
2

5
7

9
5

 
V

EH
#P

C
1

7
1

2
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

 
 $

   
  2

2
3

.6
1

  

8
7

4
3

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

3
1

.3
3

 
0

0
4

 
N

O
R

TH
 B

A
Y 

FO
R

D
 L

IN
C

-M
ER

C
U

R
Y 

1
2

5
7

9
6

 
V

EH
#P

C
1

7
1

2
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

 
 $

   
 2

1
.6

3
  

8
7

4
3

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

3
1

.3
3

 
0

0
4

 
N

O
R

TH
 B

A
Y 

FO
R

D
 L

IN
C

-M
ER

C
U

R
Y 

1
2

5
7

9
7

 
V

EH
#P

C
1

7
1

3
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

 
 $

   
 6

6
.4

2
  

8
7

4
3

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

3
1

.3
3

 
0

0
4

 
N

O
R

TH
 B

A
Y 

FO
R

D
 L

IN
C

-M
ER

C
U

R
Y 

1
2

5
7

9
8

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 1
9

.6
7

  

Attachment A

10.1A.14



8
7

4
3

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

9
6

.3
9

 
3

6
4

 
O

V
ER

H
EA

D
 D

O
O

R
 C

O
. O

F 
SA

LI
N

A
S 

1
2

5
7

9
9

 
R

O
LL

U
P

 D
O

O
R

 R
EP

 M
M

F 
 $

   
  2

9
6

.3
9

  

8
7

4
3

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,4

5
5

.6
4

  
0

0
9

 
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 

1
2

5
8

0
0

 
1

0
/2

7
-1

1
/2

8
R

IV
ER

 C
H

G
 

 $
   

 1
,9

4
8

.8
5

  

8
7

4
3

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,4

5
5

.6
4

  
0

0
9

 
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 

1
2

5
8

0
1

 
1

0
/2

4
-1

2
/5

SV
T,

W
TC

,P
N

 
 $

   
 3

,5
0

6
.7

9
  

8
7

4
3

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,8

6
0

.0
0

  
0

0
2

9
4

7
 

P
ED

X
 C

O
U

R
IE

R
 A

N
D

 C
A

R
G

O
 

1
2

5
8

0
2

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 C

O
U

R
IE

R
 S

V
C

S 
 $

   
 1

,8
6

0
.0

0
  

8
7

4
3

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
1

.0
0

  
E1

1
8

1
 

P
H

O
SO

H
, R

A
TT

H
A

P
H

U
M

 
1

2
5

8
0

3
 

C
D

L 
TE

ST
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
E 

 $
   

 4
1

.0
0

  

8
7

4
3

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

2
5

.0
0

 
4

8
1

 
P

IE
D

 P
IP

ER
 E

X
TE

R
M

IN
A

TO
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

0
4

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
 P

ES
T 

W
TC

 M
K

T 
 $

   
 7

9
.5

0
  

8
7

4
3

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

2
5

.0
0

 
4

8
1

 
P

IE
D

 P
IP

ER
 E

X
TE

R
M

IN
A

TO
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

0
5

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
 P

ES
T 

M
M

F 
 $

   
  2

1
7

.5
0

  

8
7

4
3

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

2
5

.0
0

 
4

8
1

 
P

IE
D

 P
IP

ER
 E

X
TE

R
M

IN
A

TO
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

0
6

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
P

ES
T 

O
P

S 
P

K
N

G
 

 $
   

  2
1

2
.5

0
  

8
7

4
3

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

2
5

.0
0

 
4

8
1

 
P

IE
D

 P
IP

ER
 E

X
TE

R
M

IN
A

TO
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

0
7

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
 P

ES
T 

O
P

S 
C

R
K

 
 $

   
  2

5
5

.0
0

  

8
7

4
3

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

2
5

.0
0

 
4

8
1

 
P

IE
D

 P
IP

ER
 E

X
TE

R
M

IN
A

TO
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

0
8

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
 P

ES
T 

V
ER

 
 $

   
 6

5
.0

0
  

8
7

4
3

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

2
5

.0
0

 
4

8
1

 
P

IE
D

 P
IP

ER
 E

X
TE

R
M

IN
A

TO
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

0
9

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
 P

ES
T 

SM
C

 M
K

T 
 $

   
 5

5
.5

0
  

8
7

4
3

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

2
5

.0
0

 
4

8
1

 
P

IE
D

 P
IP

ER
 E

X
TE

R
M

IN
A

TO
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

1
0

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
 P

ES
T 

SM
C

 T
A

Q
 

 $
   

 4
0

.0
0

  

8
7

4
3

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

5
,6

0
3

.0
0

 
0

0
3

6
3

0
 

P
O

R
TO

LA
 S

YS
TE

M
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

8
1

1
 

EM
A

IL
 M

IG
R

A
TI

O
N

 
 $

   
  2

3
,0

2
9

.0
0

  

8
7

4
3

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

5
,6

0
3

.0
0

 
0

0
3

6
3

0
 

P
O

R
TO

LA
 S

YS
TE

M
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

8
1

2
 

IT
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 
 $

   
 2

,5
7

4
.0

0
  

8
7

4
3

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

6
9

.1
7

 
0

0
3

0
6

1
 

Q
U

A
D

IE
N

T 
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
U

SA
 IN

C
 

1
2

5
8

1
3

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 P

O
ST

A
G

E 
1

5
9

8
 

 $
   

  7
6

9
.1

7
  

8
7

4
4

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

2
0

4
 

R
A

M
IR

EZ
 R

A
M

IR
EZ

, J
O

SE
 

1
2

5
6

8
3

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

4
4

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

3
9

.2
6

 
8

8
2

 
R

A
N

D
Y 

&
 L

A
R

A
E 

W
ES

T 
1

2
5

7
4

7
 

R
EC

R
U

IT
M

N
T 

C
A

R
D

S 
O

P
S 

 $
   

 7
9

.7
5

  

8
7

4
4

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

3
9

.2
6

 
8

8
2

 
R

A
N

D
Y 

&
 L

A
R

A
E 

W
ES

T 
1

2
5

7
4

8
 

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

C
A

R
D

S 
P

R
C

 
 $

   
  1

5
9

.5
1

  

8
7

4
4

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

4
3

.0
4

  
0

0
3

0
2

4
 

R
IC

O
H

 U
SA

, I
N

C
   

C
A

 
1

2
5

8
1

4
 

1
1

/1
4

-1
2

/1
3

/2
3

 P
R

C
 

 $
   

 7
0

.0
9

  

8
7

4
4

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

4
3

.0
4

  
0

0
3

0
2

4
 

R
IC

O
H

 U
SA

, I
N

C
   

C
A

 
1

2
5

8
1

5
 

1
2

/0
1

-1
2

/3
1

/2
3

 O
P

S 
 $

   
  6

2
1

.4
5

  

8
7

4
4

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

4
3

.0
4

  
0

0
3

0
2

4
 

R
IC

O
H

 U
SA

, I
N

C
   

C
A

 
1

2
5

8
1

6
 

0
8

/0
1

-1
0

/3
1

/2
3

C
U

ST
SV

 
 $

   
  3

5
1

.5
0

  

8
7

4
4

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

9
9

.9
9

 
0

0
3

0
1

0
 

R
JM

S 
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TI
O

N
 

1
2

5
8

1
7

 
FO

R
K

LI
FT

#7
0

0
 R

EP
A

IR
 

 $
   

  5
9

9
.9

9
  

8
7

4
4

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
0

.0
0

 
E3

3
4

 
R

O
C

H
A

, L
U

IS
 

1
2

5
8

1
8

 
D

O
T 

P
H

YS
IC

A
L 

R
EI

M
B

U
R

 
 $

   
  1

5
0

.0
0

  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
1

9
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#1

4
5

0
8

-4
7

7
8

6
7

 
 $

   
   

(2
8

3
.5

7
) 

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

0
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#1

4
5

0
8

-4
8

0
2

7
0

 
 $

   
  (

3
0

.1
7

) 

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

1
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 3

0
.1

7
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

2
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#1

4
5

0
8

-4
8

0
4

6
5

 
 $

   
  (

3
0

.1
7

) 

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

3
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#1

4
5

0
8

-4
8

0
8

6
9

 
 $

   
 (

7
.4

1
) 

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

4
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#1

4
5

0
8

-4
8

1
1

8
9

 
 $

   
  (

4
7

.5
1

) 

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

5
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#1

4
5

0
8

-4
8

2
1

1
0

 
 $

   
  (

1
2

.9
9

) 

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

9
.7

9
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

8
.0

8
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 3

8
.6

1
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
2

9
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

0
9

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

  1
5

1
.8

1
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

0
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#1

4
5

0
8

-4
8

2
9

2
8

 
 $

   
   

(1
1

4
.3

1
) 

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

1
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 6

4
.7

5
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

2
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

3
.2

2
  

Attachment A

10.1A.15



8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

3
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 6

1
.6

1
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

4
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 5

7
.4

4
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

6
.2

1
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 5

4
.7

9
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

7
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

3
.2

2
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

8
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

6
.4

4
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
3

9
 

V
EH

#0
1

0
3

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  3

5
9

.4
0

  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
4

0
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
2

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

  1
2

3
.6

8
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
4

1
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

1
4

.0
6

  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
4

2
 

N
O

N
-I

N
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

8
.7

5
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
4

3
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 3

4
.6

0
  

8
7

4
4

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

4
3

.2
2

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
4

4
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

2
.7

2
  

8
7

4
4

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
0

.0
0

 
0

0
2

7
0

0
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
C

O
U

N
TY

 E
N

V
IR

O
M

EN
TA

L 
1

2
5

6
7

2
 

1
9

0
2

 P
A

C
 A

V
E 

IN
SP

EC
T 

 $
   

  1
5

0
.0

0
  

8
7

4
4

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

6
0

.0
0

 
0

0
1

2
9

2
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
R

EC
O

R
D

S 
M

N
G

M
T 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
4

5
 

1
1

/2
2

/2
3

SH
R

ED
 M

U
LT

I 
 $

   
  2

6
0

.0
0

  

8
7

4
4

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,6

2
9

.6
7

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

8
4

6
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/1

9
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  7

3
8

.4
2

  

8
7

4
4

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,6

2
9

.6
7

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

8
4

7
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

1
/2

6
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  9

8
4

.2
5

  

8
7

4
4

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,6

2
9

.6
7

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

8
4

8
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/0

3
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,1
4

7
.5

0
  

8
7

4
4

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,6

2
9

.6
7

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

8
4

9
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/0

3
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  7

5
9

.5
0

  

8
7

4
4

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

6
,5

7
7

.1
0

 
0

0
3

6
2

5
 

SE
LF

 IN
SU

R
ED

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 
1

2
5

7
0

2
 

1
2

/2
0

2
3

 D
EN

TA
L 

 $
   

  3
7

,8
2

4
.6

0
  

8
7

4
4

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

6
,5

7
7

.1
0

 
0

0
3

6
2

5
 

SE
LF

 IN
SU

R
ED

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 
1

2
5

7
0

3
 

1
2

/2
0

2
3

 V
SP

 
 $

   
 8

,7
5

2
.5

0
  

8
7

4
5

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

2
0

5
 

SE
SS

IO
N

S,
 D

A
R

YL
 

1
2

5
6

8
4

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

4
5

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

1
8

.3
0

 
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
8

5
0

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/2
6

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  1
2

5
.6

9
  

8
7

4
5

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

1
8

.3
0

 
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
8

5
1

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
2

/0
6

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 9
2

.6
1

  

8
7

4
5

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
,2

6
8

.2
8

 
0

0
1

0
7

5
 

SO
Q

U
EL

 II
I A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S 

1
2

5
8

5
2

 
0

1
/2

0
2

4
R

EN
T 

R
ES

EA
R

C
H

 
 $

   
  1

0
,2

6
8

.2
8

  

8
7

4
5

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

3
6

.8
5

 
0

0
3

6
6

9
 

SP
X

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
IE

S,
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

5
3

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  6
4

7
.2

6
  

8
7

4
5

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

3
6

.8
5

 
0

0
3

6
6

9
 

SP
X

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
IE

S,
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

5
4

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  2
8

9
.5

9
  

8
7

4
5

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
0

.9
9

 
0

0
3

5
9

5
 

ST
A

P
LE

S 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
8

5
5

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

P
P

LY
 

 $
   

  1
6

0
.9

9
  

8
7

4
5

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
3

.8
0

  
0

0
3

6
7

1
 

T-
M

O
B

IL
E 

U
SA

, I
N

C
.

1
2

5
8

5
6

 
1

0
/2

1
-1

1
/2

0
TV

M
 C

O
M

M
S 

 $
   

 2
3

.8
0

  

8
7

4
5

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
7

.9
4

 
0

0
1

0
4

0
 

TE
R

R
YB

ER
R

Y 
C

O
.,

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

8
5

7
 

EM
P

LO
YE

E 
IN

C
EN

TI
V

E 
 $

   
  1

5
7

.9
4

  

8
7

4
5

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,4

8
7

.3
1

  
6

1
4

 
TE

SS
C

O
 T

EC
H

N
O

LO
G

IE
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

8
5

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

,0
2

6
.1

1
  

8
7

4
5

7
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,4

8
7

.3
1

  
6

1
4

 
TE

SS
C

O
 T

EC
H

N
O

LO
G

IE
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

8
5

9
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  4

6
1

.2
0

  

8
7

4
5

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,4

1
7

.2
7

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

8
6

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  7

7
8

.7
8

  

8
7

4
5

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,4

1
7

.2
7

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

8
6

1
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#8

3
2

0
2

6
6

1
 

 $
   

   
(1

5
0

.2
1

) 

8
7

4
5

8
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,4

1
7

.2
7

  
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

8
6

2
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  7

8
8

.7
0

  

8
7

4
5

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
0

.6
4

 
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

8
6

3
 

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
 9

0
.7

3
  

8
7

4
5

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
0

.6
4

 
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

8
6

4
 

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
 9

3
.4

6
  

8
7

4
5

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
0

.6
4

 
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

8
6

5
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#6

9
9

0
0

7
-0

 
 $

   
  (

1
1

.8
0

) 

Attachment A

10.1A.16



8
7

4
5

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
0

.6
4

 
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

8
6

6
 

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
 1

6
.8

6
  

8
7

4
5

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
0

.6
4

 
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

8
6

7
 

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
  1

4
1

.8
2

  

8
7

4
5

9
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

1
0

.6
4

 
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

8
6

8
 

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
  1

7
9

.5
7

  

8
7

4
6

0
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,2

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

6
5

3
 

U
R

B
A

N
 T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

 
1

2
5

8
6

9
 

A
U

TO
 P

SN
G

R
 C

O
U

N
TE

R
S 

 $
   

 4
,2

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

4
6

1
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

2
0

6
 

V
A

LD
O

V
IN

O
S 

LO
M

B
ER

A
, F

A
B

R
IE

L 
1

2
5

6
8

5
 

C
LP

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 8
9

.0
0

  

8
7

4
6

2
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,2

3
7

.3
9

  
0

0
3

6
8

7
 

V
A

LL
EY

 P
O

W
ER

 S
YS

TE
M

S 
N

O
R

TH
,I

N
C

 
1

2
5

8
7

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

,2
3

7
.3

9
  

8
7

4
6

3
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,0

1
5

.0
0

  
0

0
3

4
1

7
 

V
ER

IT
EC

H
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

8
7

1
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

,0
1

5
.0

0
  

8
7

4
6

4
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
8

.5
2

  
4

3
4

 
V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
1

2
5

8
7

2
 

1
1

/2
-1

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

 A
D

M
IN

 
 $

   
 3

8
.5

2
  

8
7

4
6

5
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

5
0

.0
0

 
E1

2
0

8
 

W
O

LI
C

ZK
O

, S
TE

FA
N

 
1

2
5

8
7

3
 

B
O

O
T 

R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

  2
5

0
.0

0
  

8
7

4
6

6
 

1
2

/1
8

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
9

.0
0

  
E1

2
0

7
 

ZA
M

A
R

R
IP

A
, B

R
IA

N
 

1
2

5
6

8
6

 
C

LP
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
 $

   
 8

9
.0

0
  

8
7

4
6

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
,6

4
5

.0
0

  
0

0
3

7
1

1
 

A
D

A
R

ID
E.

C
O

M
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
8

8
3

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
P

R
C

 E
LI

G
IB

IL
I 

 $
   

 8
,6

4
5

.0
0

  

8
7

4
6

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

2
4

.0
6

 
0

0
3

5
9

6
 

A
M

A
ZO

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

, I
N

C
. 

1
2

5
9

2
9

 
P

R
O

M
O

 IT
EM

S 
M

K
TG

 
 $

   
  6

2
4

.0
6

  

8
7

4
6

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

6
7

6
 

A
N

D
R

EW
 J

. O
'K

EE
FE

 II
 

1
2

5
8

8
4

 
W

K
LY

 M
ED

IA
 P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
 

 $
   

 2
,0

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

4
7

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

9
,2

8
8

.7
7

  
0

0
1

D
 

A
T&

T 
1

2
5

9
2

5
 

1
2

/1
9

-1
2

/1
8

O
P

S 
EL

EV
A

 
 $

   
  1

9
4

.0
6

  

8
7

4
7

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

9
,2

8
8

.7
7

  
0

0
1

D
 

A
T&

T 
1

2
5

9
2

6
 

1
1

/1
9

-1
2

/1
8

M
A

IN
 A

C
C

T
 

 $
   

 5
,9

3
4

.1
2

  

8
7

4
7

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

9
,2

8
8

.7
7

  
0

0
1

D
 

A
T&

T 
1

2
5

9
2

7
 

1
1

/1
3

-1
2

/1
2

P
T 

TO
 P

T1
 

 $
   

 1
,7

2
9

.2
0

  

8
7

4
7

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

9
,2

8
8

.7
7

  
0

0
1

D
 

A
T&

T 
1

2
5

9
2

8
 

1
1

/1
0

-1
2

/9
D

IS
TI

N
TE

R
N

 
 $

   
 1

,4
3

1
.3

9
  

8
7

4
7

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
7

.7
5

  
0

0
2

3
6

3
 

B
A

TT
ER

IE
S 

P
LU

S 
#3

1
4

 
1

2
5

9
3

0
 

4
.8

V
 B

A
TT

ER
Y 

P
R

C
 

 $
   

 1
7

.7
5

  

8
7

4
7

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

6
9

.7
9

 
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
9

3
1

 
C

A
R

P
ET

 R
EP

A
IR

 O
P

S 
 $

   
 7

.0
4

  

8
7

4
7

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

6
9

.7
9

 
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
9

3
2

 
FA

U
C

ET
 S

M
C

 
 $

   
 7

6
.4

6
  

8
7

4
7

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

6
9

.7
9

 
1

0
7

A
 

B
FS

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
9

3
3

 
C

A
B

LE
 T

IE
S 

V
ER

N
O

N
 

 $
   

  1
8

6
.2

9
  

8
7

4
7

3
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
3

.5
3

  
0

0
3

3
9

3
 

B
R

A
SS

 K
EY

 L
O

C
K

SM
IT

H
 IN

C
 

1
2

5
9

3
4

 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

K
EY

S 
SM

C
 

 $
   

 6
3

.5
3

  

8
7

4
7

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

  
6

1
6

 
B

R
O

W
N

 A
R

M
ST

R
O

N
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TA
N

C
Y

 
1

2
5

8
8

5
 

FY
2

0
2

3
 A

U
D

IT
 

 $
   

 5
,0

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

4
7

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

9
,3

4
3

.0
6

  
0

0
1

0
8

9
 

C
A

SE
Y 

P
R

IN
TI

N
G

, I
N

C
 

1
2

5
9

3
5

 
W

IN
TE

R
2

0
2

3
 H

EA
D

W
A

YS
 

 $
   

 9
,3

4
3

.0
6

  

8
7

4
7

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,7

5
1

.9
4

  
0

0
1

1
5

9
 

C
A

TT
O

'S
 G

R
A

P
H

IC
S,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
5

9
0

9
 

EM
B

R
O

ID
ER

Y 
LO

G
O

 C
A

P
S 

 $
   

 1
,7

5
1

.9
4

  

8
7

4
7

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

9
,2

9
3

.7
5

 
0

0
3

6
6

1
 

C
EL

TI
S 

V
EN

TU
R

ES
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

9
1

2
 

2
4

0
2

 W
EB

SI
TE

 R
ED

ES
IG

 
 $

   
  1

9
,2

9
3

.7
5

  

8
7

4
7

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

3
2

0
 

C
EN

TE
R

 F
O

R
 T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 

1
2

5
9

0
7

 
2

0
2

4
 M

EM
B

ER
SH

IP
 D

U
ES

 
 $

   
 5

,0
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

4
7

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
2

.3
5

 
0

0
3

6
3

3
 

C
IN

TA
S 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TI

O
N

 N
O

.2
 

1
2

5
9

3
6

 
FI

R
ST

A
ID

 R
ES

TO
C

K
 O

P
S 

 $
   

 8
3

.2
0

  

8
7

4
7

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
2

.3
5

 
0

0
3

6
3

3
 

C
IN

TA
S 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TI

O
N

 N
O

.2
 

1
2

5
9

3
7

 
FI

R
ST

A
ID

 R
ES

TO
C

K
 S

B
F 

 $
   

 2
9

.1
5

  

8
7

4
8

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
4

.5
3

  
0

0
3

3
7

3
 

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

R
R

F 
1

2
5

9
3

8
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

LA
N

D
FI

LL
 F

EE
S 

 $
   

 4
4

.5
3

  

8
7

4
8

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

1
,7

6
6

.4
1

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

8
8

0
 

1
1

/2
9

/2
3

 L
N

G
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 

 $
   

  1
0

,8
7

0
.6

3
  

8
7

4
8

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

1
,7

6
6

.4
1

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

8
8

1
 

1
1

/2
8

/2
3

 L
N

G
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 

 $
   

  1
2

,0
7

5
.0

0
  

8
7

4
8

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

1
,7

6
6

.4
1

 
0

0
1

1
2

4
 

C
LE

A
N

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
1

2
5

8
8

2
 

1
2

/0
1

/2
3

 L
N

G
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 

 $
   

 8
,8

2
0

.7
8

  

8
7

4
8

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

6
3

.0
7

 
0

7
5

 
C

O
A

ST
 P

A
P

ER
 &

 S
U

P
P

LY
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
8

8
9

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  2
6

3
.0

7
  

8
7

4
8

3
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
3

.0
0

  
E1

0
4

2
 

C
O

LL
IN

S,
 M

IC
H

EL
L 

A
 

1
2

6
0

2
9

 
C

D
L 

R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 5
3

.0
0

  

8
7

4
8

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
,3

4
9

.8
2

  
1

6
3

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
P

R
IN

TE
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

0
3

 
R

EI
M

A
G

IN
E 

P
O

ST
ER

S 
 $

   
 2

,0
0

8
.0

2
  

8
7

4
8

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
,3

4
9

.8
2

  
1

6
3

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
P

R
IN

TE
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

0
4

 
B

U
S 

SI
G

N
S 

 $
   

 3
,4

4
1

.3
8

  

Attachment A

10.1A.17



8
7

4
8

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
,3

4
9

.8
2

  
1

6
3

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
P

R
IN

TE
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

0
5

 
R

EI
M

A
G

IN
E 

B
R

O
C

H
U

R
ES

 
 $

   
 1

,7
7

9
.9

2
  

8
7

4
8

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
,3

4
9

.8
2

  
1

6
3

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
P

R
IN

TE
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

0
6

 
R

EI
M

A
G

IN
E 

FA
C

T 
SH

EE
T 

 $
   

  2
5

6
.7

3
  

8
7

4
8

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
,3

4
9

.8
2

  
1

6
3

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
P

R
IN

TE
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

0
8

 
EN

G
/S

P
A

N
 C

A
R

 C
A

R
D

S 
 $

   
  8

6
3

.7
7

  

8
7

4
8

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,7

2
8

.4
6

  
0

0
3

7
0

1
 

C
R

EA
TI

V
E 

B
U

S 
SA

LE
S,

 IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
8

6
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
5

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

  6
6

9
.8

5
  

8
7

4
8

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,7

2
8

.4
6

  
0

0
3

7
0

1
 

C
R

EA
TI

V
E 

B
U

S 
SA

LE
S,

 IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
8

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

,1
2

4
.6

6
  

8
7

4
8

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,7

2
8

.4
6

  
0

0
3

7
0

1
 

C
R

EA
TI

V
E 

B
U

S 
SA

LE
S,

 IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
8

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  9

3
3

.9
5

  

8
7

4
8

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
,6

0
5

.2
8

 
0

0
3

6
6

8
 

C
R

O
SS

LI
N

E 
SU

P
P

LY
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
8

9
0

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 2
,9

3
2

.2
7

  

8
7

4
8

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
,6

0
5

.2
8

 
0

0
3

6
6

8
 

C
R

O
SS

LI
N

E 
SU

P
P

LY
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
8

9
1

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 4
,7

5
2

.3
8

  

8
7

4
8

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
,6

0
5

.2
8

 
0

0
3

6
6

8
 

C
R

O
SS

LI
N

E 
SU

P
P

LY
, L

LC
 

1
2

5
8

9
2

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 7
,9

2
0

.6
3

  

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
9

3
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 6

9
.3

5
  

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
9

4
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#Y

9
-4

6
5

5
4

 
 $

   
   

(2
1

8
.5

7
) 

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
9

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

1
8

.5
7

  

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
9

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
6

.5
4

  

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
9

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

7
6

.0
9

  

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
9

8
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#Y

9
-5

0
0

7
4

 
 $

   
   

(1
1

5
.2

5
) 

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

8
9

9
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

1
5

.2
5

  

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
0

0
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#Y

9
-4

5
9

9
5

 
 $

   
 (

1
0

.4
8

) 

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
0

1
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
5

.7
2

  

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
0

2
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 2

,7
1

1
.2

0
  

8
7

4
8

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

3
,2

8
3

.6
7

  
0

0
3

1
1

6
 

C
U

M
M

IN
S,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
3

9
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#Y

9
-4

0
1

6
1

 
 $

   
  (

1
4

.7
5

) 

8
7

4
8

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
7

.3
2

 
E9

8
6

 
D

EL
FI

N
, M

O
N

IK
 

1
2

5
9

1
0

 
M

TG
 M

EA
L 

R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

E 
 $

   
  1

3
7

.3
2

  

8
7

4
8

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

1
6

.0
0

 
0

0
3

4
8

5
 

EM
P

LO
YN

ET
, I

N
C

 
1

2
5

9
4

0
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/1

0
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  8

1
6

.0
0

  

8
7

4
9

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,8

7
0

.4
4

  
4

3
2

 
EX

P
R

ES
S 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

4
1

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  9
6

3
.5

6
  

8
7

4
9

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,8

7
0

.4
4

  
4

3
2

 
EX

P
R

ES
S 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

4
2

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  9
0

6
.8

8
  

8
7

4
9

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
1

.3
5

  
E1

2
0

9
 

FA
R

SP
O

U
R

, S
O

P
H

IE
 

1
2

5
9

1
1

 
M

IL
EA

G
E 

R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
 

 $
   

 5
1

.3
5

  

8
7

4
9

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

1
7

.7
0

 
0

0
1

2
9

7
 

FA
ST

EN
A

L 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
4

3
 

N
IT

R
IL

E 
G

LO
V

ES
 M

M
F 

 $
   

  9
1

7
.7

0
  

8
7

4
9

3
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

0
3

.3
1

 
0

0
2

9
6

2
 

FI
S 

1
2

6
0

3
1

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
M

ER
C

H
A

N
T 

FE
ES

 
 $

   
  6

0
3

.3
1

  

8
7

4
9

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
3

.7
8

  
0

0
3

2
7

9
 

FR
O

N
TI

ER
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S 
- 

3
0

2
5

 
1

2
5

9
4

4
 

1
2

/1
6

-1
/1

5
 S

K
Y-

R
IV

ER
 

 $
   

 5
3

.7
8

  

8
7

4
9

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
3

.7
8

  
0

0
3

4
1

8
 

FR
O

N
TI

ER
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S 
- 

6
1

4
5

 
1

2
5

9
4

5
 

1
1

/1
3

-1
2

/1
2

SK
Y-

O
C

EA
N

 
 $

   
 5

3
.7

8
  

8
7

4
9

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

0
,1

3
4

.4
3

 
0

0
1

3
0

2
 

G
A

R
D

A
 C

L 
W

ES
T,

 IN
C

. 
1

2
6

0
3

2
 

1
2

/2
0

2
3

 V
A

U
LT

 S
V

C
S 

 $
   

  1
0

,1
3

4
.4

3
  

8
7

4
9

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,8

2
0

.8
4

  
1

1
7

 
G

IL
LI

G
 L

LC
 

1
2

5
9

1
3

 
V

EH
#4

2
1

0
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 1
,8

2
0

.8
4

  

8
7

4
9

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,7

9
7

.2
5

  
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
9

1
4

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  5
9

1
.9

1
  

8
7

4
9

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,7

9
7

.2
5

  
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
9

1
5

 
A

A
 &

 A
A

A
 B

A
TT

ER
IE

S 
 $

   
 5

6
.1

1
  

8
7

4
9

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,7

9
7

.2
5

  
2

8
2

 
G

R
A

IN
G

ER
 

1
2

5
9

4
6

 
W

A
TE

R
 F

IL
TE

R
 M

M
F 

 $
   

 1
,1

4
9

.2
3

  

8
7

4
9

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

0
,9

8
5

.1
7

 
0

0
1

7
4

5
 

H
A

R
TF

O
R

D
 L

IF
E 

A
N

D
 A

C
C

ID
EN

T 
IN

S 
1

2
5

8
7

5
 

9
-1

2
/2

3
ST

N
D

 A
LN

 A
D

&
D

 $
   

 1
,2

8
5

.6
8

  

8
7

4
9

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

0
,9

8
5

.1
7

 
0

0
1

7
4

5
 

H
A

R
TF

O
R

D
 L

IF
E 

A
N

D
 A

C
C

ID
EN

T 
IN

S 
1

2
5

8
7

6
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 L
TD

 P
R

EM
IU

M
 

 $
   

  1
1

,4
2

1
.7

6
  

8
7

4
9

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

0
,9

8
5

.1
7

 
0

0
1

7
4

5
 

H
A

R
TF

O
R

D
 L

IF
E 

A
N

D
 A

C
C

ID
EN

T 
IN

S 
1

2
5

8
7

7
 

1
2

/2
0

2
3

 L
TD

 P
R

EM
IU

M
 

 $
   

  1
1

,8
3

5
.1

7
  

Attachment A

10.1A.18



8
7

4
9

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

0
,9

8
5

.1
7

 
0

0
1

7
4

5
 

H
A

R
TF

O
R

D
 L

IF
E 

A
N

D
 A

C
C

ID
EN

T 
IN

S 
1

2
5

8
7

8
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 A
D

&
D

 P
R

EM
IU

M
 

 $
   

 4
,0

5
6

.9
5

  

8
7

4
9

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

0
,9

8
5

.1
7

 
0

0
1

7
4

5
 

H
A

R
TF

O
R

D
 L

IF
E 

A
N

D
 A

C
C

ID
EN

T 
IN

S 
1

2
5

8
7

9
 

1
2

/2
0

2
3

 A
D

&
D

 P
R

EM
IU

M
 

 $
   

 2
,3

8
5

.6
1

  

8
7

5
0

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,4

9
8

.0
0

  
0

0
3

7
2

2
 

IN
FI

N
IT

E 
C

R
EA

TI
V

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
5

9
1

7
 

2
4

0
8

 C
H

A
IR

S 
O

P
S&

P
R

C
 

 $
   

 6
,4

9
8

.0
0

  

8
7

5
0

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

7
2

1
 

LO
O

K
O

U
T 

LO
C

A
L 

IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
2

0
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 C
A

R
M

A
G

ED
D

O
N

 
 $

   
 1

,1
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

5
0

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,8

7
2

.7
6

  
0

0
3

3
6

2
 

LU
M

IN
A

TO
R

 T
EC

H
 G

R
O

U
P

 G
LO

B
A

L,
 

1
2

5
9

1
8

 
C

A
M

ER
A

 R
EP

A
IR

 
 $

   
 1

,1
0

8
.6

3
  

8
7

5
0

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,8

7
2

.7
6

  
0

0
3

3
6

2
 

LU
M

IN
A

TO
R

 T
EC

H
 G

R
O

U
P

 G
LO

B
A

L,
 

1
2

5
9

1
9

 
C

A
M

ER
A

 R
EP

A
IR

 
 $

   
  8

9
0

.1
3

  

8
7

5
0

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,8

7
2

.7
6

  
0

0
3

3
6

2
 

LU
M

IN
A

TO
R

 T
EC

H
 G

R
O

U
P

 G
LO

B
A

L,
 

1
2

5
9

4
7

 
C

A
M

ER
A

 R
EP

A
IR

 
 $

   
  8

7
4

.0
0

  

8
7

5
0

3
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
8

.0
7

  
E6

2
7

 
M

A
C

D
O

N
EL

L,
 R

YA
N

 
1

2
5

9
2

4
 

LU
N

C
H

 R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

 4
8

.0
7

  

8
7

5
0

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

1
,5

7
4

.0
2

 
0

0
3

0
1

7
 

M
A

N
SF

IE
LD

 O
IL

 C
O

 O
F 

G
A

IN
SV

IL
LE

 
1

2
5

9
2

1
 

1
2

/0
7

/2
3

 D
IE

SE
L 

FU
EL

 
 $

   
  2

1
,5

7
4

.0
2

  

8
7

5
0

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

9
3

.5
0

 
0

0
3

2
4

9
 

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 O
IL

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
9

4
8

 
H

A
ZA

R
D

W
A

ST
E 

D
IS

P
 M

M
F 

 $
   

  1
9

3
.5

0
  

8
7

5
0

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

4
,4

8
7

.5
0

 
0

0
3

3
6

1
 

M
IL

LE
R

 M
A

X
FI

EL
D

 IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
4

9
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 P
U

B
 O

U
TR

EA
C

H
 

 $
   

 1
,2

8
1

.2
5

  

8
7

5
0

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

4
,4

8
7

.5
0

 
0

0
3

3
6

1
 

M
IL

LE
R

 M
A

X
FI

EL
D

 IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
5

0
 

W
IN

TE
R

 H
EA

D
W

A
YS

 
 $

   
  1

3
,2

0
6

.2
5

  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
2

2
 

U
N

FR
M

 S
P

LY
 V

M
U

/V
SW

 
 $

   
  3

2
4

.2
1

  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
2

3
 

TO
W

EL
S 

FU
EL

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 

 $
   

  1
5

6
.0

0
  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

1
 

TO
W

EL
S,

M
A

TS
 P

R
C

 
 $

   
 1

8
.5

0
  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

2
 

TO
W

EL
S,

M
A

TS
 P

R
C

 
 $

   
 1

8
.5

0
  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

3
 

TO
W

EL
S,

M
A

TS
 P

R
C

 
 $

   
 1

8
.5

0
  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

4
 

R
A

YG
O

ZA
 U

N
FR

M
 R

EP
A

IR
 

 $
   

 2
7

.0
0

  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

5
 

TO
W

EL
,M

O
P

,M
A

T,
U

N
IF

R
M

 
 $

   
 3

1
.8

5
  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

6
 

TO
W

EL
,M

O
P

,M
A

T 
M

M
F 

 $
   

 4
1

.7
5

  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

7
 

TO
W

EL
S 

FU
EL

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 

 $
   

  1
5

6
.0

0
  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

8
 

U
N

FR
M

 S
P

LY
 V

M
U

/V
SW

 
 $

   
  3

4
9

.6
7

  

8
7

5
0

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

8
3

.7
3

  
0

4
1

 
M

IS
SI

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
1

2
5

9
5

9
 

TO
W

EL
,M

O
P

,M
A

T 
M

M
F 

 $
   

 4
1

.7
5

  

8
7

5
0

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

4
2

.7
7

 
0

0
1

7
1

1
 

M
O

H
A

W
K

 M
FG

. &
 S

U
P

P
LY

 C
O

. 
1

2
5

9
6

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  4

4
2

.7
7

  

8
7

5
0

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,1

4
9

.8
6

  
0

0
3

4
6

4
 

M
P

R
ES

S 
D

IG
IT

A
L,

IN
C

 
1

2
5

9
6

1
 

W
N

TR
2

0
2

3
LG

 P
R

N
T 

H
D

W
Y 

 $
   

 1
,1

4
9

.8
6

  

8
7

5
1

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
5

.0
0

  
4

8
1

 
P

IE
D

 P
IP

ER
 E

X
TE

R
M

IN
A

TO
R

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

6
2

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
 P

ES
T 

W
TC

 
 $

   
 6

5
.0

0
  

8
7

5
1

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

0
6

1
 

Q
U

A
D

IE
N

T 
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
U

SA
 IN

C
 

1
2

5
9

6
3

 
1

1
/2

0
2

3
 P

O
ST

A
G

E 
0

2
9

9
 

 $
   

 1
,5

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

5
1

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

2
,0

2
9

.0
5

  
0

0
3

5
2

7
 

R
ED

V
EC

TO
R

.C
O

M
 L

LC
 

1
2

6
0

2
5

 
1

2
/4

/2
3

-9
/3

0
/2

4
A

N
 S

V
 

 $
   

 2
,0

2
9

.0
5

  

8
7

5
1

3
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

1
6

.8
3

 
0

0
3

0
2

4
 

R
IC

O
H

 U
SA

, I
N

C
   

C
A

 
1

2
5

9
6

4
 

1
2

/1
2

-0
1

/1
1

O
P

S 
1

ST
FL

 
 $

   
  1

1
6

.8
3

  

8
7

5
1

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

5
4

.2
3

 
5

3
6

 
R

IV
ER

SI
D

E 
LI

G
H

TI
N

G
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

9
6

5
 

LI
G

H
TB

U
LB

 S
V

T 
 $

   
 3

4
.3

6
  

8
7

5
1

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

5
4

.2
3

 
5

3
6

 
R

IV
ER

SI
D

E 
LI

G
H

TI
N

G
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

9
6

6
 

TH
ER

M
O

ST
A

T 
R

EP
 M

M
F 

 $
   

  2
1

9
.8

7
  

8
7

5
1

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,8

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

6
8

1
 

R
N

S 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

6
7

 
1

1
/1

0
-1

2
/9

/2
3

D
M

V
 A

D
S 

 $
   

  9
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

5
1

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,8

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

6
8

1
 

R
N

S 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S,
 IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

6
8

 
1

2
/1

0
/2

3
-1

/9
/2

4
D

M
V

A
D

 
 $

   
  9

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

5
1

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

5
0

.0
4

 
0

0
3

1
5

4
 

R
O

M
A

IN
E 

EL
EC

TR
IC

 C
O

R
P

 
1

2
5

9
6

9
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  6

5
0

.0
4

  

8
7

5
1

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

1
9

.4
9

 
0

0
1

2
8

6
 

SA
FE

-C
A

R
D

 ID
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

,I
N

C
 

1
2

5
9

7
0

 
A

C
C

ES
S 

C
A

R
D

S 
 $

   
  2

9
4

.0
3

  

8
7

5
1

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 7

1
9

.4
9

 
0

0
1

2
8

6
 

SA
FE

-C
A

R
D

 ID
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

,I
N

C
 

1
2

5
9

7
1

 
P

R
O

X
 C

A
R

D
S 

- 
2

6
-B

IT
 

 $
   

  4
2

5
.4

6
  

8
7

5
1

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

4
,8

2
2

.5
8

  
0

0
1

3
7

9
 

SA
FE

TY
-K

LE
EN

 S
YS

TE
M

S 
IN

C
 

1
2

5
9

7
2

 
P

A
R

TS
 W

A
SH

ER
 S

V
C

 M
M

F 
 $

   
 4

,8
2

2
.5

8
  

Attachment A

10.1A.19



8
7

5
1

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
1

.0
1

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

9
7

3
 

V
A

C
/S

W
EE

P
 M

A
IN

T 
SM

C
 

 $
   

 1
0

.4
4

  

8
7

5
1

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
1

.0
1

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

9
7

4
 

V
EH

#P
C

1
7

1
2

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

 7
0

.1
6

  

8
7

5
1

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
1

.0
1

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

9
7

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 8

0
.9

9
  

8
7

5
1

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
1

.0
1

 
1

3
5

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

A
U

TO
 P

A
R

TS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

9
7

6
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#1

4
5

0
8

-4
8

5
0

9
5

 
 $

   
 (

0
.5

8
) 

8
7

5
2

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

7
0

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

9
7

7
 

1
1

/1
-1

1
/3

0
 IR

R
IG

 S
B

F 
 $

   
 3

9
.2

6
  

8
7

5
2

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 2

7
0

.5
6

 
0

7
9

 
SA

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
1

2
5

9
7

8
 

1
1

/1
-1

1
/3

0
 IR

R
IG

 V
ER

 
 $

   
  2

3
1

.3
0

  

8
7

5
2

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,5

5
4

.6
6

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

9
7

9
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/0

3
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
  7

9
7

.4
8

  

8
7

5
2

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,5

5
4

.6
6

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

9
8

0
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/0

3
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,2
4

1
.4

0
  

8
7

5
2

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,5

5
4

.6
6

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

9
8

1
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/1

0
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,0
0

6
.4

5
  

8
7

5
2

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,5

5
4

.6
6

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

9
8

2
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/1

0
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,2
8

2
.5

0
  

8
7

5
2

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,5

5
4

.6
6

  
0

0
1

3
0

7
 

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
ST

A
FF

IN
G

, L
LC

 
1

2
5

9
8

3
 

TE
M

P
 W

/E
 1

2
/1

0
/2

0
2

3 
 $

   
 1

,2
2

6
.8

3
  

8
7

5
2

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

7
9

.8
1

 
0

0
2

4
5

9
 

SC
O

TT
S 

V
A

LL
EY

 W
A

TE
R

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
1

2
5

9
8

5
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 W
A

TE
R

 S
V

T 
 $

   
  3

2
8

.6
1

  

8
7

5
2

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

7
9

.8
1

 
0

0
2

4
5

9
 

SC
O

TT
S 

V
A

LL
EY

 W
A

TE
R

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
1

2
5

9
8

6
 

1
1

/2
0

2
3

 IR
R

IG
 S

V
T 

 $
   

  1
5

1
.2

0
  

8
7

5
2

3
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

5
,7

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
2

2
6

7
 

SH
A

W
  Y

O
D

ER
  A

N
TW

IH
 

1
2

5
9

8
7

 
1

2
/2

0
2

3
LE

G
IS

LA
TE

 R
EP

 
 $

   
 5

,7
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

5
2

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,3

1
5

.5
7

  
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
9

8
8

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,5

0
1

.7
6

  

8
7

5
2

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,3

1
5

.5
7

  
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
9

8
9

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
1

/2
6

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,1

5
5

.2
0

  

8
7

5
2

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,3

1
5

.5
7

  
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
9

9
0

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
2

/0
3

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,0

9
0

.2
2

  

8
7

5
2

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,3

1
5

.5
7

  
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
9

9
1

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
2

/1
0

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,1

5
5

.2
0

  

8
7

5
2

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,3

1
5

.5
7

  
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
9

9
2

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
2

/1
0

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

  2
5

7
.9

9
  

8
7

5
2

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

6
,3

1
5

.5
7

  
0

0
3

2
9

2
 

SL
IN

G
SH

O
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
9

9
3

 
TE

M
P

 W
/E

 1
2

/1
0

/2
0

2
3 

 $
   

 1
,1

5
5

.2
0

  

8
7

5
2

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 9

9
7

.8
6

 
0

0
3

6
9

4
 

SO
U

TH
ER

N
 C

O
U

N
TI

ES
 L

U
B

R
IC

A
N

TS
, 

1
2

5
9

8
4

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  9
9

7
.8

6
  

8
7

5
2

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 8

2
4

.7
4

 
0

0
3

6
2

1
 

SP
O

R
TW

O
R

K
S 

G
LO

B
A

L 
LL

C
 

1
2

5
9

9
4

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  8
2

4
.7

4
  

8
7

5
2

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

3
9

.8
6

 
0

0
3

6
6

9
 

SP
X

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
IE

S,
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

9
5

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  1
7

2
.5

8
  

8
7

5
2

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

3
9

.8
6

 
0

0
3

6
6

9
 

SP
X

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
IE

S,
IN

C
. 

1
2

5
9

9
6

 
R

M
A

0
0

1
0

7
7

 IN
V

TR
Y 

O
R

D
 

 $
   

  3
6

7
.2

8
  

8
7

5
2

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
0

0
3

7
1

0
 

ST
A

N
TO

N
 B

LA
C

K
W

EL
L 

LL
C

 
1

2
5

9
9

7
 

B
U

D
G

ET
 P

R
ES

EN
T 

1
ST

D
F 

 $
   

  1
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

5
2

9
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

8
3

.8
7

  
0

0
3

6
8

3
 

TA
YC

O
R

P
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
5

9
9

8
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 8

3
.8

7
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
5

9
9

9
 

V
EH

#2
2

2
9

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

,7
1

8
.3

6
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
6

.6
3

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

1
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  6

6
1

.0
2

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

2
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

5
2

.7
3

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

3
 

V
EH

#1
1

0
2

3
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  2
5

9
.2

2
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

4
 

V
EH

#1
1

0
1

6
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  3
1

1
.7

6
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

5
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

,9
6

3
.9

1
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

5
0

.2
1

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

7
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 3

,7
3

8
.7

9
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

8
 

V
EH

#1
1

0
1

6
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  4
4

0
.3

2
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
0

9
 

V
EH

#1
1

0
1

6
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 9
8

.2
8

  

Attachment A

10.1A.20



8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
1

0
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  5

6
3

.0
7

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
1

1
 

V
EH

#1
1

0
2

3
 P

A
R

T 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

  2
6

9
.2

6
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
1

2
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

2
6

.6
3

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
1

3
 

V
EH

#4
2

0
4

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  5

1
3

.9
0

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
1

4
 

V
EH

#2
6

0
2

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  2

6
2

.5
9

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
1

5
 

V
EH

#2
8

1
1

 P
A

R
T 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
  1

6
4

.3
6

  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
1

6
 

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y 

O
R

D
ER

 
 $

   
 1

,7
2

2
.0

0
  

8
7

5
3

0
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

3
,0

8
0

.3
4

 
0

0
3

2
8

5
 

TH
E 

A
FT

ER
M

A
R

K
ET

 P
A

R
TS

 C
O

 L
LC

 
1

2
6

0
1

7
 

C
M

 O
R

G
#8

2
9

5
2

3
9

2
 

 $
   

   
(2

6
2

.7
0

) 

8
7

5
3

1
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

7
,5

0
0

.0
0

  
0

0
3

1
8

9
 

TH
E 

B
U

S 
C

O
A

LI
TI

O
N

 IN
C

 
1

2
6

0
2

0
 

R
EN

EW
A

L 
TH

R
U

1
2

/3
1

/2
4 

 $
   

 7
,5

0
0

.0
0

  

8
7

5
3

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
5

.4
6

 
1

6
6

 
TH

E 
H

O
SE

 S
H

O
P

, I
N

C
 

1
2

6
0

2
1

 
IN

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 9
5

.2
5

  

8
7

5
3

2
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

6
5

.4
6

 
1

6
6

 
TH

E 
H

O
SE

 S
H

O
P

, I
N

C
 

1
2

6
0

2
2

 
N

O
N

-I
N

V
EN

TO
R

Y 
O

R
D

ER
 

 $
   

 7
0

.2
1

  

8
7

5
3

3
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 5

0
0

.0
0

 
E9

1
7

 
TH

O
R

N
, M

IK
E 

1
2

6
0

3
0

 
TO

O
L 

R
EI

M
B

U
R

SE
M

EN
T 

 $
   

  5
0

0
.0

0
  

8
7

5
3

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,9

8
6

.7
3

  
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
6

0
1

8
 

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
P

P
LY

 
 $

   
  8

4
1

.5
8

  

8
7

5
3

4
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
   

1
,9

8
6

.7
3

  
0

4
3

 
TR

O
W

B
R

ID
G

E 
EN

TE
R

P
R

IS
ES

 
1

2
6

0
1

9
 

C
O

P
Y 

P
A

P
ER

 P
R

C
 

 $
   

 1
,1

4
5

.1
5

  

8
7

5
3

5
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 4

2
,3

5
6

.5
6

 
0

5
7

 
U

.S
. B

A
N

K
 

1
2

5
8

7
4

 
**

**
-*

**
*-

**
**

-5
9

7
1

 
 $

   
  4

2
,3

5
6

.5
6

  

8
7

5
3

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
4

.5
9

 
0

0
7

 
U

N
IT

ED
 P

A
R

C
EL

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
1

2
6

0
2

3
 

FR
EI

G
H

T 
 $

   
  1

3
8

.5
9

  

8
7

5
3

6
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 1

5
4

.5
9

 
0

0
7

 
U

N
IT

ED
 P

A
R

C
EL

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
1

2
6

0
2

4
 

FR
EI

G
H

T 
 $

   
 1

6
.0

0
  

8
7

5
3

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

3
7

.8
4

 
4

3
4

 
V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
1

2
6

0
2

6
 

1
1

/2
-1

2
/1

TA
B

LE
T 

M
M

F 
 $

   
  5

7
7

.8
0

  

8
7

5
3

7
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 6

3
7

.8
4

 
4

3
4

 
V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
1

2
6

0
2

7
 

1
1

/2
-1

2
/1

/2
3

M
K

TG
 T

A
B

 
 $

   
 6

0
.0

4
  

8
7

5
3

8
 

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
3

 
 $

   
 3

5
2

.7
2

 
0

0
3

5
3

0
 

ZO
R

O
 T

O
O

LS
, I

N
C

. 
1

2
6

0
2

8
 

G
A

S 
D

ET
EC

TO
R

 M
M

F 
 $

   
  3

5
2

.7
2

  

 $
  3

,0
6

8
,9

1
9

.7
1

 

Attachment A

10.1A.21



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.2A.1

DRAFT



10.2A.2

DRAFT



10.2A.3

DRAFT



10.2A.4

Attachment



10.2A.5

Attachment



10.2A.6

Attachment



 
 

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES* 

DECEMBER 15, 2023 – 9:00 AM 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 
(METRO) convened on Friday, December 15, 2023, as a hybrid meeting.  
The Board Meeting agenda packet can be found online at www.SCMTD.com. *Minutes 
are “summary” minutes, not verbatim minutes. Audio recordings of Board meeting open 
sessions are available to the public upon request.  
This document was created with accessibility in mind. With the exception of certain third 
party and other attachments, it passes the Adobe Acroba  XI Accessibility Full Check. If 
you have any questions about the accessibility of this docum nt, please email your inquiry 
to accessibility@scmtd.com.  
1 CALLED TO ORDER at 9:00 AM by Board Chair Kalantari Johnson.  
2 ROLL CALL:  

The following Directors were pres nt  representing a quorum:  
Director Kristen Brown  City of Capitola 
Director Rebecca Downing  AR 9:05  County of Santa Cruz 
Direct Jimmy Dutra  AR 9:02  City of Watsonville 
Director Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson   City of Santa Cruz 
Director Manu Koenig  County of Santa Cruz 
Director Donna Lind  City of Scotts Valley 
Director Bruc  McPherson   County of Santa Cruz 
Director Sco t Newsom   City of Santa Cruz 
Director Larry Pageler  County of Santa Cruz 
Director Quiroz-C rter  City of Watsonville 
Director Mike Rotkin  County of Santa Cruz 
Ex-Officio Director Dan Henderson   UC Santa Cruz 
Ex-Officio Director Alta Northcutt   Cabrillo College 
Michael Tree  CEO/General Manager 
Julie Sherman   General Counsel 

3 ANNOUNCEMENTS  
Today’s meeting is being broadcast by Community Television of Santa Cruz 
County. 
Maria Avila, Language Line Services, provided Spanish language interpretation 
services. 
Margo Ross, Chief Operations Officer, announced that the audience is filled with 
trainees that were available to attend this morning’s meeting and welcomed them 
all to METRO.  

DRAFT

10.2B.1



 
Board of Directors Minutes 
December 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 8 
 

Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson thanked them for joining the METRO family.  She 
also thanked COO Ross and her team for their efforts in recruitment. 

4 BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS 
Director McPherson spoke as a member of the Area Agency on Aging and said 
the announcement of free fares on METRO is being greeted enthusiastically by 
the senior citizens in Santa Cruz County. 
Director Rotkin commented that this has been the most amazing year out of the 
30 years he has been on the Board.  We owe this to CEO Tree and all the 
employees that work at METRO.  He thanked the current Board of Directors for 
their commitment to public transit.  Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson thanked 
Director Rotkin for his years of service on the METRO Board. 
Hearing nothing further, Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson moved to the next agenda 
item. 

5 ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO T E BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson announced additional written communications 
were received and will be added to the agen a packet. 
Eduardo Montesino, Temporary Reima ine METRO Recruitment and Training 
Coordinator, provided an update on recru tment efforts.  Director Lind asked how 
many new Bus Operators are being hired.  COO Ross said we have 33 new hires 
and gave credit to Mr. Montesino or is recruit g efforts.   
Hearing nothing further, Board Chai  Kalantar Johnson moved to the next agenda 
item. 

6 LABOR ORGANIZATION COMMUNICATIONS  
Brandon Freeman, SMART Gene l Chairperson, Local 0023, invited the new 
recruits to introduce thems lves to the Board of Directors.  The group included Bus 
Operators for ixed Route and ParaCruz, Dispatchers and Schedulers.  Mr. 
Freeman ad ed that he supports staff’s recommendation to the Board today to 
increase Bus O erators t  achieve our Reimagine METRO goals.  He thanked the 
Board for their s pport at the December 7, 2023 Santa Cruz County Regional 
Transportation Com ission (RTC) meeting.  He also thanked Mr. Montesino for 
his recruitment efforts. 
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson acknowledged and thanked Mr. Freeman for his 
leadership and bringing new members of the METRO family to meet the Board.  It 
is important for us to meet the people who are doing the work every day to make 
METRO run. 
Hearing nothing further, Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson moved to the next agenda 
item. 

7 ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO SUPPORT EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS  
Supporting documentation for Items 12-14 was sent to the Board of Directors on 
December 14, 2023 to review and will be added to the agenda packet. 

  

DRAFT

10.2B.2



 
Board of Directors Minutes 
December 15, 2023 
Page 3 of 8 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

8.1 ACCEPT AND FILE: PRELIMINARY APPROVED CHECK JOURNAL DETAIL 
FOR THE MONTHS OF OCTOBER & NOVEMBER 2023  
Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer  

8.2 ACCEPT AND FILE MINUTES OF: 
A.    OCTOBER 27, 2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
B.  DECEMBER 8, 2023 PERSONNEL/HUMAN RESOURCES STANDING 

COMMITTEE 
Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager 

8.3 ACCEPT AND FILE:  THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT AS 
OF NOVEMBER 30, 2023  
Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer  

8.4 ACCEPT AND FILE:  THE METRO PARACRUZ OPERATIONS STATUS 
REPORT FOR JULY, AUGUST, AND SEPTEMBER 2023 

 Daniel Zaragoza, Operations Manager, Paratransit Di ision 
8.5 ACCEPT AND FILE:  THE METRO SYSTEM RIDERSHIP REPORTS FOR THE 

FIRST QUARTER OF FY24 
John Urgo, Planning and Development Di ect r 

8.6 APPROVE:  CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH THE 2024 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING S HEDULE 
Michael Tree, CEO/General Manag r 

8.7 APPROVE:  CONSIDER A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE CEO/GENERAL 
MANAGER AS THE AUTHORIZED AGENT TO EXECUTE ALL REQUIRED 
DOCUMENTS TO CLAIM FUNDS AWARDED THROUGH THE FY23-24 
CALTRANS CLEAN CALI ORNIA TRANSIT PROGRAM 
John Urgo, Planning and De elopment Director  

8.8 ACCEPT AND FILE:  THE YEAR-TO-DATE KEY PERFORMANCE INDI- 
CATORS (KPI) REPORT FOR QUARTER ONE AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2023  
Chuck Farmer, Chi f F nancial Officer  

8.9 APPROVE:  CONSIDER A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE CEO/GENERAL 
MANAGER AS THE AUTHORIZED AGENT TO EXECUTE ALL REQUIRED 
DOCUMENTS TO CLAIM FUNDS AWARDED THROUGH THE REGIONAL 
EARLY ACTION PLANNING GRANTS OF 2021 (REAP 2.0) REGIONAL 
COMPETITIVE GRANT PROGRAM 
John Urgo, Planning and Development Director  

8.10 APPROVE:  REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION OF TWO (2) MARKETING 
SPECIALISTS IN THE MARKETING DEPARTMENT 

 Dawn Crummié, Human Resources Director 
8.11 APPROVE:  RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY EXEMPT 

SURPLUS LAND UNDER THE SURPLUS LAND ACT 
 Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer, and Julie Sherman, Legal Counsel 

DRAFT

10.2B.3



 
Board of Directors Minutes 
December 15, 2023 
Page 4 of 8 
 
8.12 APPROVE:  AUTHORIZE THE CEO/GENERAL MANAGER TO INCREASE THE 

NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED BUS OPERATORS 
Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer 

8.13 APPROVE:  AUTHORIZE THE CEO/GENERAL MANAGER TO INCREASE THE 
NUMBER OF PARATRANSIT BUS OPERATORS 

 Margo Ross, Chief Operations Officer 
 Director Rotkin inquired as to when METRO can expect to see the results of these 

new hires in Item 8.10.  CEO Tree responded that we currently have an intern who 
is helping Danielle Glagola, METRO’s Marketing, Communications and Customer 
Service Director, and we will actively recruit to fill one of these positions in the 
immediate future.  Once on board, this position will work with Celtis and Miller 
Maxfield on our Reimagine METRO Phase 2 campaign. 

 Director Rotkin commented that he looks forward to r viewing the revised budget 
in January 2024 and expressed concern about the f scal cliff and the sustainability 
of these new hires without a sales tax being pas ed. 

 Jim Rendler, Vice President, For the Future Housing, Inc , and developer for the 
new Pacific Station, commented on Item 8.11 and expressed gratitude on being 
part of this project that will start in February 2024. 

ACTION:  MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSEN  AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
MOTION:  DIRECTOR PAGELER  SECOND:  DIRECTOR ROTKIN  
MOTION PASSED WITH 10 AYES (Dir ctors Brown, Downing, Dutra, Kalantari-
Johnson, Koenig, Lind, McPhers n, Newsome, Pageler, and Rotkin).  Director 
Quiroz-Carter was absent. 

REGULAR  AGENDA 

9 PRESENTAT ON OF EMPLOYEE LONGEVITY AWARDS:  (15 YEARS) 
NATHANAEL ABREGO  ANDREA EUSSE-GIL, ROBERT KRAUSE, AND 
RUBEN VALDEZ 

 Board Chair Kalant ri- ohnson thanked the employees for their service to METRO.  
Director Pageler provided a personal bio for Andrea Eusse-Gil covering the years 
he has known and worked with her. 

10 RETIREE RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR:  MAURIZIO ITALIA 
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson congratulated Mr. Italia on his retirement and 
thanked him for his years of service at METRO. 

ACTION:  MOTION TO APPROVE THE RETIREE RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION 
FOR MAURIZIO ITALIA 
MOTION:  DIRECTOR ROTKIN   SECOND:  DIRECTOR NEWSOME 
MOTION PASSED WITH 10 AYES (Directors Brown, Downing, Dutra, Kalantari-
Johnson, Koenig, Lind, McPherson, Newsome, Pageler, and Rotkin).  Director 
Quiroz-Carter was absent. 
  

DRAFT

10.2B.4



 
Board of Directors Minutes 
December 15, 2023 
Page 5 of 8 
 
11 METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MAC) SEMI-ANNUAL ORAL UPDATE 
 Jessica de Wit, MAC Chair, provided the semi-annual MAC update.  MAC is 

pleased to see ridership levels increase as we move away from the pandemic.  
METRO staff has been very responsive in listening to MAC’s concerns on bus stop 
signage, shelters, and discussions on the Reimagine METRO project.  MAC is 
happy to hear that METRO is ramping up its presence in the community.  Many 
riders like the new look of the buses and how it celebrates the Santa Cruz County 
area.  She thanked staff for providing MAC with a tour of the Judy K. Souza Facility.  
With all the innovative programs in the works at METRO, MAC appreciates being 
part of this effort.  
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson thanked Ms. de Wit for her work on MAC. 

 There were no public comments. 
12 APPROVE REQUEST FOR RECLASSIFICATION RESULTS FOR 

OPERATIONS DEPUTY DIRECTOR IN THE OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 
Monik Delfin, Human Resources Deputy Director  spoke to this item and requested 
the Board to authorize the creation of the Operations Deputy Director position to 
manage both the Fixed Route and Parat ansit division   In addition, the job 
descriptions for Operations Managers i  Fixed Route and Paratransit, and the 
Assistant Operations Managers in Fixed R ute and Paratransit have been updated 
due to this change.  
Mr. Freeman provided his support to Da iel Zaragoza on handling the combined 
position. 
There were no public commen s. 

ACTION:  MOTION TO APPROVE THE AUTHORIZATION OF AN OPERATIONS 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR IN THE OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 
MOTION:  DIRECTOR KOENIG   SECOND:  DIRECTOR MCPHERSON 
MOTION PASSED WITH 10 AYES (Directors Brown, Downing, Dutra, Kalantari-
Johnson, Koenig, Li d, McPherson, Newsome, Pageler, and Rotkin).  Director 
Quiroz-Carter was abse t  
13 APPROVE REQUEST FOR RECLASSIFICATION RESULTS FOR MARKETING 

AND COMMUNICATIONS DIRECTOR IN THE MARKETING DEPARTMENT 
 Monik Delfin, Human Resources Deputy Director, spoke to this item and requested 

the Board to reclassify the Marketing, Communications, and Customer Service 
Director to Marketing and Communications Director to address the needs of the 
Marketing Department created in this fiscal year. 
Director Lind commented that making this change makes sense as the position 
has evolved under CEO Tree.  We look forward to its continued successes. 
There were no public comments. 

ACTION:  MOTION TO APPROVE THE RECLASSIFICATION FOR A MARKETING 
AND COMMUNICATIONS DIRECTOR IN THE MARKETING DEPARTMENT 
MOTION:  DIRECTOR PAGELER  SECOND:  DIRECTOR ROTKIN 

DRAFT

10.2B.5



Board of Directors Minutes 
December 15, 2023 
Page 6 of 8 

MOTION PASSED WITH 10 AYES (Directors Brown, Downing, Dutra, Kalantari-
Johnson, Koenig, Lind, McPherson, Newsome, Pageler, and Rotkin).  Director 
Quiroz-Carter was absent. 
14 APPROVE REQUEST FOR RECLASSIFICATION RESULTS FOR CUSTOMER 

EXPERIENCE MANAGER IN THE CUSTOMER SERVICE DEPARTMENT 
Monik Delfin, Human Resources Deputy Director, spoke to this item and requested 
the Board to reclassify the current Customer Service Manager to Customer 
Experience Manager to encompass new job responsibilities and a “customer first” 
mindset. 
Discussion followed on the ambassador program component in the job description 
and the collaboration with the Downtown Association in providing personnel; 
training in people skills as well as the METRO system; identifying these 
ambassadors; applying metrics to the process, and security concerns. 
CEO Tree responded to all concerns. 
There were no public comments. 

ACTION:  MOTION TO APPROVE THE RECLASSIFICATION FOR A CUSTOMER 
EXPERIENCE MANAGER IN THE CUSTOMER SERVICE DEPARTMENT 
MOTION:  DIRECTOR DOWNING SECOND:  DIRECTOR ROTKIN 
MOTION PASSED WITH 10 AYES (D r ctors Br wn, Downing, Dutra, Kalantari-
Johnson, Koenig, Lind, McPherson, News me, Pageler, and Rotkin).  Director 
Quiroz-Carter was absent. 
15 CEO ORAL REPORT 

Michael Tree, CEO/General M nager, poke to the following items: 

• Continue to recruit new Bus Operators for Reimagine METRO.

• RTC approved the $32.4 illion in transportation projects allowing METRO to
move forward with Ph se 2 of Reimagine METRO.

• The transit signal prio ity (TSP) project will get under way giving METRO priority
at intersections.

• California Highway Patrol performed its impromptu inspection.  They gave
METRO a list of buses to inspect and reviewed the records on maintenance and
Bus Operator driving records.  They gave METRO the highest rating possible
for having buses maintained appropriately and drivers who are trained and
licensed appropriately.  We will do a press release to let the public know how
we fared.

• Recently completed construction on one of the bus bays to accommodate the
articulated buses.  Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager, and his team are
currently in San Diego getting four more of the articulated buses.  That brings
the total buses from San Diego to ten.  This will help us implement Phase 2 and
provide better service to students.

• COO Ross was praised on her negotiating skills on the New Flyer contract.  New
Flyer quoted METRO a price of $1.47 million for each bus (44 buses total).

DRAFT

10.2B.6



 
Board of Directors Minutes 
December 15, 2023 
Page 7 of 8 
 

Considering the volume of buses, METRO pursued a discount.  It was COO 
Ross who was able to negotiate a $28,000 discount on each bus.   

• Center for Transportation and the Environment (CTE) helped METRO with its 
zero-emission master plan and is helping to launch the fueling station so it is 
operational when the new buses arrive. 

• Thanked Mr. Montesino for a great recruiting effort.  You saw firsthand today his 
efforts in recruiting. 

• Ms. Glagola spoke to the marketing assets (attached) created for Phase 1 of 
Reimagine METRO’s marketing plan and highlighted the other mediums being 
used, presented in both English and Spanish, to communicate the changes to 
the public which include organic social media, paid social media, printed ads, 
radio ads, and bus signs.   
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson appreciated all the efforts taken and reminded 
the members to share METRO’s successes on social media.  Director Pageler 
appreciated the “How Did My Route Change” p ge in the Headways that 
highlights the changes in the routes in a simple, c ncise format.  Director 
Downing asked how this information is being disseminated to students now that 
the school term is ending.  Ms. Glagol  responded that information has already 
been released to the students and we p an to do even more outreach to the 
students.  Director Pageler ask d Ex-Offic o Director Henderson if he is still 
considering having student am assa rs around campus to help explain the 
changes and if that is in place for win er quarter?  Ex-Officio Director Henderson 
said UCSC has been toying with the idea of getting students out to the bus stops 
for several reasons but also to talk bout these changes to the routes.  There is 
a learning curve as ociat d wi  this, but we will continue to get the word out.  
Director Rotkin sugge ed that UCSC provide materials to faculty that can be 
presented to students in e classrooms to help facilitate this process.  Director 
Downing uggested t at Ms. Glagola send out the social media information to 
the Board Members routinely instead of having to request it.   
Director Lind brou ht up the recent UCSC bus crash and suggested that 
METRO release something so that the public doesn’t think it was a METRO bus 
to dispel any safety concerns.  Ms. Glagola responded that she had been in 
contact with KSBW about using METRO b-roll footage and that KSBW 
apologized for the footage use and discontinued using it. 

• Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer, reviewed all the grant awards received 
in the past 24 months, amounting to $148,506,924 (breakdown attached) for 
buying buses and infrastructure.   
Director McPherson asked when applying for new grants, does it help or hurt us 
when we have been awarded so much money already.  CFO Farmer provided 
his opinion that if you show performance and do something with the money, it 
is likely they are willing to give more money.  If you just sit on the money, then 
they can say, “Why give more when you haven’t spent what we already gave 
you?”  We are moving and making changes and they see that.  

DRAFT

10.2B.7



Board of Directors Minutes 
December 15, 2023 
Page 8 of 8 

Director Rotkin asked if METRO had an update on the federal government’s 
investment of $1.2 billion in hydrogen technology.  CEO Tree said he’s hopeful 
for an announcement in early 2024 on how this will move forward. 
Matt Farrell, Friends of the Rail and Trail, remarked that his group appreciates 
the leadership that has been shown in the last two years, both at METRO and 
the RTC, to address the regional transportation needs.  He appreciates the open 
door that CEO Tree has had in talking about the challenges that face us and 
focusing on opportunities to collaborate.  We appreciate and look forward to 
working together to build an equitable and comprehensive solution to our transit 
needs. 
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson reviewed the list of accomplishments at METRO 
in this past year.  She expressed that this is an incredible job on improving our 
transit system so we can contribute to the community’s well-being.  She thanked 
all of METRO staff and the leadership of CEO Tree.  She looks forward to the 
new year and bringing things to fruition.   
Director McPherson suggested an Op-Ed be done listing all these 
accomplishments to let the public know what this means.  The Board Chair 
agreed and said she would reach ou  to othe  Board Members for input.  She 
wished everyone a Happy Holidays and to take this time to celebrate with family 
and friends. 

16 ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
Board Chair Kalantari-Johnson announced that the next meeting will be on Friday, 
January 26, 2024, at 9:00 AM at the METRO Admin Office, 110 Vernon Street, 
Santa Cruz, CA. 

17 ADJOURNMENT 
Board Chair Kalantari-Joh son adjourned the meeting at 10:08 AM. 

Respectfully submitt d, 
Donna Bauer 
Executive Assistant DRAFT

10.2B.8



















































O
ne

 T
im

e 
G

ra
nt

s R
ec

ei
ve

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
La

st
 2

4 
M

on
th

s

BU
S

VW
24

,9
60

,0
00

 
$4

80
,0

00
 fo

r 5
2 

Bu
se

s
HV

IP
 R

eb
at

e
12

,7
20

,0
00

 
$2

40
,0

00
 fo

r a
ll 

Bu
se

s
Ca

lS
TA

 2
02

3 
TI

RC
P

13
,0

20
,0

00
 

24
 B

us
es

M
PD

G
4,

80
0,

00
0

 
4 

Bu
se

s
AH

SC
 (2

02
3)

3,
00

0,
00

0
 

2 
Bu

se
s

FT
A 

53
39

c
18

,2
00

,0
00

 
12

 B
us

es
Su

bt
ot

al
 B

us
es

76
,7

00
,0

00
 

O
th

er Ca
lS

TA
 2

02
3 

TI
RC

P
8,

60
0,

00
0

 
Hy

dr
og

en
 F

ue
lin

g 
St

at
io

n
Ca

lS
TA

 2
02

3 
TI

RC
P

8,
50

0,
00

0
 

W
at

so
nv

ill
e 

Ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

Bi
ke

 H
ub

Ca
lS

TA
 2

02
3 

TI
RC

P
1,

50
0,

00
0

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

ac
ili

ty
 U

pg
ra

de
s

Ca
lS

TA
 2

02
3 

TI
RC

P
5,

10
0,

00
0

 
Bu

s R
ap

id
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

Ca
lS

TA
 2

02
3 

TI
RC

P
54

4,
00

0
 

ZE
B 

W
or

kf
or

ce
Ca

lS
TA

 2
02

3 
TI

RC
P

35
0,

00
0

 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

Ca
lS

TA
 2

02
3 

TI
RC

P
50

0,
00

0
 

Pa
ci

fic
 S

ta
tio

n 
Bi

ke
 H

ub
Ca

lS
TA

 2
02

3 
TI

RC
P

37
5,

00
0

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ic

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
Sc

he
du

lin
g

TI
RC

P
32

,4
00

,0
00

 
Ph

as
e 

1/
2 

an
d 

Fr
ee

 F
ar

es
FT

A 
53

39
c

2,
10

0,
00

0
 

Hy
dr

og
en

  a
nd

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

FY
21

/2
2 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 G
ra

nt
32

9,
92

4
 

Ca
ltr

an
s S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 T

ra
ns

 P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ra
nt

RE
AP

 2
.0

2,
00

0,
00

0
 

W
at

so
nv

ill
e 

Tr
an

sit
 C

en
te

r
Ca

ltr
an

s C
le

an
 C

al
 T

ra
ns

it 
Pr

og
ra

m
50

8,
00

0
 

23
 B

us
 S

he
lte

rs
 a

nd
 1

8 
Tr

as
h 

Ca
ns

AH
SC

 (2
02

2)
9,

00
0,

00
0

 
Bu

s T
ar

m
ac

 - 
Pa

c 
St

at
io

n
Su

bt
ot

al
 N

on
-B

us
71

,8
06

,9
24

 

G
ra

nt
s a

nd
 R

eb
at

es
14

8,
50

6,
92

4
   

   
 

Attachment

10.2B.33



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



 
DATE: January 26, 2024 
TO: Board of Directors 
FROM: Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer 
SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL 

REPORT AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Board of Directors accept and file the Year to Date Monthly Financial 
Report as of December 31, 2023 

II. SUMMARY OF ISSUES 

An analysis of Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District’s (METRO) financial status 
is prepared monthly in order to inform the Board of Directors (Board) regarding 
METRO’s actual revenues and expenses in relation to the adopted operating and 
capital budgets for the fiscal year.   
This staff report is the web-accessible companion document to the attached 
PowerPoint presentation titled “Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of 
December 31, 2023.”  
Staff recommends that the Board accept and file the attached report. 

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND 

Below are the written explanations of the various charts and graphs in the attached 
Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of December 31, 2023. The fiscal year 
has elapsed 50%. 
Slide 1 
(Cover) Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of December 31, 2023  
Slide 2  
December 2023 Key Financial Highlights 

• Service 
o Fixed Route (including Hwy 17) Cost per Revenue Service Hour is 

$261 vs Budget of $353 
 2 canceled trips due to no operator 

o ParaCruz Cost per Trip is $64 vs Budget of $81 
o Non-Student/Hwy 17 Passengers is 88,639 vs Budget of 110,721 
o “Kids Ride Free” were 20,440 

  

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
Transit District 

 
 

10.3.1



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 8 
 

YTD Financial Report 
 

• Financials 
o Total Operating Surplus/(Deficit) is favorable $0.7M driven by lower 

wages of $0.1M, fringe of $0.3M, and non-personnel costs of $0.5M; 
partially offset by higher OT of $0.2M 

o Non-Operating Revenues of $5.5M are $0.5M favorable vs budget 
of $5.0M driven by higher than anticipated interest income and sales 
tax receipts 

• Capital 
o Capital spending of $726K is behind budget of $805K primarily due 

to delay of Watsonville Parking Lot, Security Gates, and ZEB 
Charger installations; partially offset by accelerated payments on 
Pac Station remodel 

• Personnel 
o 330 Active Personnel vs 331 Funded Personnel as approved by the 

Board at June 2023 meeting 

• 18 Vacancies at end of December 
o Recruitment completed for 7 ParaCruz and 14 Fixed Route drivers 

that will start in early January (additional headcount approved at the 
December Board meeting) 

o Currently Recruiting for Payroll Administrator, Marketing Specialist (2 
FTE), Sr. Full Stack Developer (provisional), Capital Planning & 
Grants Program Manager, Safety, Security and Risk Director, 
Custodial Service Worker, Vehicle Service Workers (3 FTE), 
Mechanic I/II, Mechanic III 

Slide 3 
(Cover) December 2023, YTD Pre-Close Financials 
Slide 4 
December YTD FY24 Operating Surplus/(Deficit) Actual vs. Budget  

• Actuals are $2.8M favorable to budget – excludes UAL/Bond Payment and 
COVID related costs 
o Passenger Fares – favorable by $196K, due to payment from 

Cabrillo College for surplus rides 
o Labor, Regular – favorable by $632K, due to funded/vacant positions 
o Labor, OT – unfavorable by $1,105K, increased overtime for Bus 

Operators 
o Fringe Benefits – favorable by $913K due to retirement and medical 

insurance savings from funded/vacant positions 

10.3.2



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 8 
 

YTD Financial Report 
 

o Non-Personnel – favorable by $2,190K, primarily due to lower than 
budgeted fuel costs and timing of Marketing programs 

Slide 5 
December 31, 2023 YTD Operating Revenue and Expenses  

• Operating Revenue, net unfavorable by $196K 
o Passenger Fares - unfavorable by $38K 
o Special Transit Fares – favorable by $234K 

• Operating Expense, net favorable by $2,630K– Favorable wages and fringe 
driven by funded/vacant positions, lower non-personnel costs; partially offset 
by increased OT 
o Labor Regular – favorable by $632K 
o Labor OT – unfavorable by $1,105K 
o Fringe Benefits – favorable by $913K, excludes UAL related costs 
o Non-Personnel – favorable by $2,190K, excludes all Bond payment 

related costs 

• Operating Deficit lower by $2,826K 
o Farebox Recovery – 18.1% vs 15.8% budget 

• Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense), net favorable by $2,358K - Sales tax of 
$17.2M is 7.4% higher than budget 
o Sales Tax/including Measure D – favorable by $1,186K 
o Federal/State Grants – unfavorable by $212K 
o COVID Relief Grants – favorable by $545K 
o Pension UAL/Bond Payment costs – no variance 
o All Other Revenues – favorable by $839K 

• Operating Surplus before Transfers higher by $5,184K 

• Bus Replacement Fund – higher by $202K due to increased Measure D sales 
tax revenues 
o Bus Replacement Fund – Minimum $3M annual commitment from Measure 

D sales tax and STA-SGR; FY24 budgeted transfer is $3.2M 

• Operating Surplus after Transfers higher by $4,982K. 
Slide 6 
(Cover) Year End June 2024, Forecast Financials 
Slide 7 
Full Year FY24 Operating Revenue Surplus/(Deficit), net favorable by $0.6M 

10.3.3



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 4 of 8 
 

YTD Financial Report 
 

• Passenger Fares – favorable by $203K, Ridership continues to recover 

• Labor, Regular – unfavorable by $1,503K, due to hiring of Bus Operators are 
hired for service expansion 

• Labor, OT – unfavorable by $2,327K, increased overtime primarily related to 
Bus Operators 

• Fringe Benefits – favorable by $661K due to vacant positions not being filled 
until late in the year 

• Non-Personnel – favorable by $3,552K, primarily due to lower fuel prices and 
delayed spending on Soquel project; partially offset by higher spending for the 
Reimagine Metro campaign 

Slide 8 
Full Year FY24 Operating Revenue and Expenses Estimate 

• Operating Revenue, net favorable by $203K 
o Passenger Fares - unfavorable by $31K 
o Special Transit Fares – favorable by $234K 

• Operating Expense, net favorable by $383K – Expenses favorable due to lower 
fringe costs from vacant positions not being filled until late in the year, lower 
fuel prices, and delayed spending on Soquel project; partially offset by higher 
labor/OT costs as Bus Operators are hired for service expansion and increased 
spending for the Reimagine Metro campaign 
o Labor Regular – unfavorable by $1,503K 
o Labor OT – unfavorable by $2,327K 
o Fringe Benefits – favorable by $661K, excludes UAL related costs 
o Non-Personnel – favorable by $3,552K, excludes all Bond payment 

related costs 

• Operating Deficit lower by $585K 
o Farebox Recovery – 15.5% vs 15.1% budget 

• Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense), net favorable by $1,063K - Sales tax of 
$34,7M is 9.2% higher than budget 
o Sales Tax/including Measure D – favorable by $2,939K 
o Federal/State Grants – unfavorable by $4,042K 
o COVID Relief Grants – favorable by $461K 
o Pension UAL/Bond Payment costs – no variance 
o All Other Revenues – favorable by $1,705K 

10.3.4



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 5 of 8 
 

YTD Financial Report 
 

• Operating Surplus before Transfers higher by $1,649K 

• Bus Replacement Fund – higher by $540K due to increased Measure D sales 
tax revenues 
o Bus Replacement Fund – Minimum $3M annual commitment from 

Measure D sales tax and STA-SGR; FY24 budgeted transfer is 
$3.2M 

• All Other Transfers: $2M UAL, $1.3M Operations Sustainability Reserve, $4.3M 
Operations & Capital Reserve, and $1.4M from COVID Recovery 

Slide 9  
(Cover) Capital Spending 
Slide 10 
December 31, 2023 Capital Budget Spend 
Total Capital Projects spending month to date is $726K against budget of $805K 

• Construction Related Projects – spending of $625K against budget of $374K  

• IT Projects – spending of $72K against budget of $95K 

• Facilities Repair & Improvements –spending of $25K against budget of $80K 

• Revenue Vehicle Replacement – spending of $4K against budget of $56K 

• Revenue Vehicle Electrification Projects – no spending against budget of 
$100K 

• Non-Revenue Vehicle Replacement – no spending, no budget 

• Fleet & Maintenance Equipment – no spending, no budget 

• Miscellaneous – no spending against budget of $100K 
Total Capital Projects spending year to date is $3,010K against budget of $4,271K, 
which is 14.1% of $21,361K approved annual budget from June 2023 

• Construction Related Projects – $739K spending against budget of $857K, 
which is 6.0% of $12,416K annual budget 

• IT Projects – $513K spending against budget of $955K, which is 18.7% of 
$2,744K annual budget  

• Facilities Repair & Improvements – $121K spending against budget of $225K, 
which is 4.5% of $2,710K annual budget 

• Revenue Vehicle Replacement – spending of $1,238K against budget of 
$1,698K, which is 48.9% of $2,533K annual budget 

• Revenue Vehicle Electrification Projects – spending of $55K against budget of 
$100K, which is 23.8% of $231K annual budget 

10.3.5



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 6 of 8 
 

YTD Financial Report 
 

• Non-Revenue Vehicle Replacement – spending of $23K with no budget for the 
year – fees for vehicles purchased in FY23 

• Fleet & Maintenance Equipment – spending of $171K with no budget for the 
year – costs for Parts Washer that was delayed from FY23 

• Miscellaneous – spending of $150K against budget of $436K, which is 20.6% 
of $727K annual budget 

YTD spending of $3,010K is lower than budget of $4,271K primarily due to delays 
on the following projects: 

• Integrated Ticket & Scheduling project 

• Scotts Valley roof 

• Watsonville parking lot 

• ARTIC buses from San Diego 
Slide 11 
(Cover) Appendix 
Slide 12 
December 31, 2023 Monthly Operating Revenue and Expenses 

• Operating Revenue, net favorable by $48K 
o Passenger Fares - favorable by $51K 
o Special Transit Fares – unfavorable by $3K 

• Operating Expense, net favorable by $686K – Favorable wages/fringe driven 
by funded/vacant positions along with lower non-personnel costs primarily due 
to lower fuel costs 
o Labor Regular – favorable by $105K 
o Labor OT – unfavorable by $229K 
o Fringe Benefits – favorable by $313K, excludes UAL related costs 
o Non-Personnel – favorable by $496K, excludes all Bond payment 

related costs 

• Operating Deficit lower by $733K 
o Farebox Recovery – 20.5% vs 16.8% budget 

• Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense), net unfavorable by $1,695K, primarily due 
to timing of TDA Grant (received in November, was budgeted for December); 
partially offset by higher than anticipated interest income and sales tax receipts 
o Sales Tax/including Measure D – favorable by $369K 
o Federal/State Grants – no variance 

10.3.6



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 7 of 8 

YTD Financial Report 

o Pension UAL/Bond Payment costs – no variance
o All Other Revenues – favorable by $164K

• Operating Surplus before Transfers higher by $1,266K

• Bus Replacement Fund – higher by $42K due to increased Measure D sales
tax revenues
o Bus Replacement Fund – Minimum $3M annual commitment from

Measure D sales tax and STA-SGR; FY24 budgeted transfer is
$3.2M

• Operating Surplus after Transfers higher by $1,224K

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT

This report pertains to METRO’s Financial Stability, Stewardship & Accountability.

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

Favorable budget variances in Operating Revenues and Expenses contribute to
favorable budget variance in Operating Balance, Year to Date as of December 31,
2023.

VI. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

There are no alternatives to consider, as this is an accept and file Year to Date
Monthly Financial Report.

VII. ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of December 31, 2023
Presentation 

Prepared by: Cathy Downes, Sr. Financial Analyst  

10.3.7



10.3.8



























Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
   Transit District 

DATE: January 26, 2024  

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Chuck Farmer, CFO, and Julie Sherman, General Counsel 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION APPROVING ACTIONS REGARDING THE PACIFIC 
STATION NORTH PROJECT 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
(METRO) adopt a resolution authorizing the CEO/General Manager to enter
into the agreements described below and other related documents in order
to facilitate the development of the Pacific Station North Project (the
“Project”).

II. SUMMARY

METRO and the City of Santa Cruz (City) have agreed to cooperatively undertake
the Project, a transit-oriented redevelopment project, which will include the
construction of a seven-story mixed use building with 128 affordable residences,
ground floor commercial and office space, as well as a new METRO transit center.
The City and METRO have sought and obtained significant grant funding to
support the Project and the City has procured an experienced affordable housing
developer, Eden Housing (Eden), who has paired with another firm, For the Future
Housing, Inc. (FTF), to undertake the Project.  Eden and FTF have in turn formed
two entities, 901 Pacific Avenue Investors, L.P. (the Partnership) and Downtown
Santa Cruz Developer, LLC (DSCD) to construct the housing and transit
improvements respectively.

In 2020, METRO entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), pursuant
to which METRO committed to spend up to $4 million of local funds to finance the
Project, under which the affordable housing developer will engage a contractor to
construct both the affordable housing and the new transit center.  To configure the
property to support the project design, the City and METRO will exchange portions
of their properties.  In order to undertake the financing and construction of the
Project, the parties will need to enter into a series of agreements, which are
described in the next section.  The attached resolution (Attachment A) (the
Resolution) will authorize the CEO/General Manager to execute the necessary
agreements to implement the Project.

10.4.1



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 6 

Resolution regarding Pacific Station North Project 

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

Agreements to be approved under the Resolution:

In order to implement the Project, METRO must enter into the following
agreements, which will be authorized by adoption of the Resolution:

1. Multi-Party Agreement

The Multi-Party Agreement (Ex. 5 to Attachment A) is a comprehensive
agreement that sets forth the actions and approvals required by all of
the parties involved in the Project, including several of the individual
agreements listed below.

2. Property Transfer Agreement

The Property Transfer Agreement (Ex. 4 to Attachment A) authorizes the 
exchange of deeds in order to configure the City and METRO property in 
conformance with the Project plans.  In December, the Board adopted 
Resolution No. 23-12-04 (Attachment B), declaring the property it will 
transfer to the City as "exempt surplus land."  The City took a similar action 
for the property that it will transfer.  With an exchange of deeds and through 
a "lot line adjustment" the City has already approved, the properties will be 
in the right configuration for the Project to proceed.  The parcel to be 
transferred from METRO to the City, described as "Transfer Parcel 1," is 
approximately 16,965 square feet, and is described and depicted on 
Exhibit 1 attached to Resolution 23-12-04 (the "Property"). A portion of this 
property consists of a street area to be dedicated.  In exchange, the City 
will convey to METRO the property identified on the exhibit as "Transfer 
Parcel 2," consisting of approximately 16,245 square feet. (Transfer Parcel 
2 is shown on Exhibit 2 to Resolution 23-12-04, Attachment B.)  A portion 
of the property METRO is transferring (the parking lot to the north of the 
existing transit station) was acquired with federal funds, the transfer of 
which requires the approval of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  
The FTA has approved the swap of this property on the condition that the 
property being received from the City is impressed with the same financial 
obligation to FTA to preserve the federal interest in the land.  There is no 
change in the magnitude of METRO's financial obligation to the FTA. 

3. Right of Entry Agreement

This agreement (Ex. 6 to Attachment A) will allow DSCD's contractor to
enter onto the METRO property to construct the new transit center.  It
will provide for insurance and indemnity protection to METRO.

10.4.2



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 6 

Resolution regarding Pacific Station North Project 

4. The Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC)
Implementation and Cooperation Agreement

The AHSC Implementation and Cooperation Agreement (Ex. 7 to
Attachment A), which relates to the previously authorized funding
agreements described below, allocates responsibility among the
parties receiving the grants,  for the obligations undertaken in those
funding agreements.  In general, this agreement helps to insulate
METRO from financial responsibility for actions related to the
expenditure of the grant funds by the other parties.

Agreements Previously Approved: 

1. AHSC Grant Documents

Eden, the City and METRO have applied for and received an award of
funds from the AHSC program as follows:  a grant of Transportation
Related Amenities (TRA) funds in the amount of $5,840,633 and a grant
of Sustainable Transportation Infrastructure (STI) funds in the amount
of $1,750,000.  Eden and the City will be the payees of the AHSC grant
funds and will expend those funds for construction costs relating to the
METRO Station Improvements.  The Board approved the application
for these funds and the execution of the "Standard Agreement" from
the State Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD)
to receive them pursuant to Resolution No. 21-05-02, adopted by the
METRO Board on May 21, 2021 (Attachment C), and no further Board
authorization is required to execute these agreements to receive these
funds.  A related agreement with HCD, a Disbursement Agreement,
was also included in this prior Board authorization.  As noted above, an
AHSC Implementation and Cooperation Agreement is being approved
pursuant to the attached Resolution.

2. Interim Improvement Agreement

This agreement, approved by the Board in November, provides for the
construction of improvements to provide alternate locations for transit
operations while the new transit station is being constructed. METRO
is funding these improvements as part of its $4 million contribution cap
described above.

Future Agreements: 

The following agreements, relating to the final details of the METRO Station 
Improvements, will be brought to the Board for approval in the future: 

10.4.3



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 4 of 6 

Resolution regarding Pacific Station North Project 

1. METRO Station Improvements Agreement

This agreement, among the City, the developer and METRO, will
facilitate the construction of the METRO improvements on the METRO-
owned property.

2. Lease

METRO and the City will enter into a long term lease of the Ground
Floor Space for use by METRO as the new transit office, pursuant to
terms and conditions reasonably acceptable to METRO and the City.

3. METRO Turnkey Improvement Agreement

The City, METRO, and the contractor will enter into an agreement
providing for the tenant improvements needed to support the immediate
occupancy of approximately 4,979 square feet by METRO for its
ticketing and other offices, which is located in the Ground Floor Space
located on the City's property.

4. Lease of Solar Array

METRO will enter into a lease with the Partnership to permit the
installation of a solar array on the METRO Station structure and the use
of the electricity generated therefrom.  This installation is contemplated
as part of the grant-funded infrastructure.

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT

The Project will promote METRO's strategic priority of Service Quality and Delivery
by providing a new transit center to serve METRO's riders.  It will be delivered by
means of a Strategic Alliance with the City and following significant Community
Outreach.

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

The agreements being approved pursuant to the attached Resolution have no
additional financial impact beyond the $4 million already committed to the Project.

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE

This item was not brought before a Committee.

10.4.4



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 5 of 6 

Resolution regarding Pacific Station North Project 

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

The Board may decide not to adopt the Resolution, but staff does not recommend
this action as the above-described agreements are necessary for completion of
the Project.

VIII. ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Resolution Approving Agreements for the Pacific Station North 
Project  

Attachment B: Surplus Land Act Resolution (Resolution No. 23-12-04) 

Attachment C: AHSC Grant Authorization (Resolution No. 21-05-02) 

Prepared by: Chuck Farmer, CFO 

10.4.5



10.4.6



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Resolution No.  
On the Motion of Director:   
Duly Seconded by Director:  
The Following Resolution is Adopted: 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

APPROVING ACTIONS REGARDING THE PACIFIC STATION NORTH PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (“METRO”) and the City 
of Santa Cruz (“City”) have agreed to cooperatively undertake the Pacific Station North 
Redevelopment Project, a transit-oriented redevelopment project, which will include the 
construction of a seven-story mixed use building with 128 affordable residences, ground 
floor commercial and office space, as well as a new METRO transit center (the 
"Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in 2020, METRO entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(“MOU”) with the City, pursuant to which METRO committed to spend up to $4 million of 
local funds to finance the Project, under which the affordable housing developer will 
engage a contractor to construct both the affordable housing and the new transit center; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City and METRO have sought and obtained significant grant 
funding to support the Project and the City has procured an experienced affordable 
housing developer, Eden Housing ("Eden"), who has paired with another firm, For the 
Future Housing, Inc. ("FTF"), to undertake the Project.  Eden and FTF have in turn 
formed two entities, 901 Pacific Avenue Investors, L.P. (the "Partnership") and 
Downtown Santa Cruz Developer, LLC ("DSCD") to construct the housing and transit 
improvements respectively; and 

WHEREAS, in order to undertake the financing and construction of the Project, 
the parties will need to enter into a series of agreements, as further described in this 
Resolution; and  

WHEREAS, METRO owns certain real property located between Front Street 
and Pacific Avenue, where it operates a transit station, a portion of which is located on a 
parcel (the "Existing METRO Property"), which is shown as "Transfer Parcel 1" on 
Exhibit 1; and 

Attachment A

10.4A.1



Resolution No.  
Page 2 

WHEREAS, the City owns property adjacent to the METRO Property (the 
"Existing City Property"), which is shown as "Transfer Parcel 2" on Exhibit 2; and 

WHEREAS, to configure the properties to support the Project design, METRO 
and the City have agreed to swap land and to complete a lot line adjustment to achieve 
the property configuration needed to support the Project, as depicted on the attached 
Exhibit 3; and 

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2023, pursuant to Resolution 23-12-04, the Board 
of Directors of METRO declared the Existing METRO Property as "exempt surplus land" 
pursuant to the California Surplus Land Act (California Government Code section 54220 
et. seq.) and provided a copy of the adopted resolution to the State Department of 
Housing and Community Development to facilitate the property swap; and 

WHEREAS, the Property Transfer Agreement (Exhibit 4) authorizes the 
exchange of deeds to the Existing METRO Property and the Existing City Property in 
order to configure the City and METRO property so as to support the development of 
the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Multi-Party Agreement (Exhibit 5) is a comprehensive agreement 
that sets forth the actions and approvals required by all of the parties involved in the 
Project, including several of the individual agreements listed below; and 

WHEREAS, the Right of Entry Agreement (Exhibit 6) will allow DSCD's 
contractor to enter onto the METRO property to construct the new METRO transit 
center, providing insurance and indemnity protection to METRO; and 

WHEREAS, Eden, the City and METRO have applied for and received an award 
of funds from the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) program as 
follows: a grant of Transportation Related Amenities (TRA) funds in the amount of 
$5,840,633 and a grant of Sustainable Transportation Infrastructure (STI) funds in the 
amount of $1,750,000.  Eden and the City will be the payees of the AHSC grant funds 
and will expend those funds for construction costs relating to the METRO Station 
Improvements.  The METRO Board approved the application for these funds and the 
execution of the "Standard Agreement" from the State Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) to receive them pursuant to Resolution No. 21-05-02, 
adopted by the METRO Board on May 21, 2021, and no further Board authorization is 
required to execute these agreements to receive these funds.  A related agreement with 
HCD, a Disbursement Agreement, was also included in this prior Board authorization.  
As noted above, an AHSC Implementation and Cooperation Agreement is being 
approved pursuant to the attached Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the AHSC Implementation and Cooperation Agreement (Exhibit 7), 
which relates to the previously authorized funding agreements described below, 
allocates responsibility among the parties receiving the grants for the obligations 
undertaken in those funding agreements and helps to insulate METRO from financial 
responsibility for actions related to the expenditure of the grant funds by the other 
parties; and 

Attachment A

10.4A.2



 Resolution No. 
Page 3 

WHEREAS, additional following agreements, relating to the final details of the 
METRO Station Improvements, will be brought to the Board for approval in the future, 
including the METRO Station Improvements Agreement, a lease of the transit station 
canopies for a solar array, a long-term lease of ground floor space for METRO offices, 
and the METRO Turnkey Improvements Agreement for the tenant improvement work to 
prepare that space.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Santa 
Cruz Metropolitan Transit District reaffirms its commitment to expend up to $4 million in 
support of the Project and authorizes and directs the CEO/General Manager or 
designee to execute the following documents, in a form substantially similar to the 
attached documents and subject to the final approval of the General Counsel: 

1. Multi-Party Agreement
2. Property Transfer Agreement
3. Right of Entry Agreement
4. AHSC Implementation and Cooperation Agreement

THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the CEO/General Manager is 
authorized to execute other related documents and take any other actions necessary to 
give full effect to this Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th Day of January 2024 by the following vote: 

AYES: Directors -  

NOES: Directors - 

ABSTAIN: Directors - 

ABSENT: Directors - 

   APPROVED: 

 
 SHEBREH KALANTARI-JOHNSON, Board Chair 

Attachment A

10.4A.3



 Resolution No. 
Page 4 

ATTEST: 

MICHAEL TREE 
CEO/General Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

JULIE SHERMAN 
General Counsel 

Attachment A

10.4A.4

















 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 





 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



  

        
              

             
          

             
                 

            
               

   

                 
                

    

               
               

               
      

              
                 
              

                 
                   

              
                

             

              
             

                 
  

              
 

            
       

            
                

                
             

Exhibit 4

10.4A.EXHIBIT 4.1



              
              

         

              
                 

                 
  

           
            

              
         

                
                 

                 
               

              
                   

  

             
     

            
                

   

            
             

               
                
              

  

           
                

              
                
     

              
             

       

Exhibit 4

10.4A.EXHIBIT 4.2





            
             

   

             
                  

               
               

                 
                

       

             
                 

                 
                 

                
      

  

           
               

                
      

           
                   
                  

               
              

                  
           

           
                 
              

    

   

           
                   

    

           
             

Exhibit 4

10.4A.EXHIBIT 4.4



               
               

               
              

                 
              

          

              
             

              
              

            
              

                

         
                    

     

           
              

              
             
              

              
               

                 
              

          

              
             

             
              

 

            
              

                

            
           

Exhibit 4

10.4A.EXHIBIT 4.5



           
              

                
                

  

  

          
                

               
                

 

         
              

            
        

          
              

               
                  

         

               
 

           
                

                
              
                 

   

             
               

              

              
    

             
                

               
         

Exhibit 4

10.4A.EXHIBIT 4.6



                 
              

   

              
              

   

           
                

         

              
              

                
                

             
              
               

     

               
                 

                 
               

               
                  

      

             
                  

                
                

                   
                 

             

     

Exhibit 4

10.4A.EXHIBIT 4.7



             

   

  

   

  

Exhibit 4

10.4A.EXHIBIT 4.8



 

         
             

              
              

            
              

            

              
          
              

             
            

         

              
              

               
    

               
              

            
           

               
             

            
              

              
              
   

                
             

         

      

       

    

Exhibit 5

10.4A.EXHIBIT 5.1



            
              

               
                 

               
  

         
             

                
                   
               

   

            
             

               
                  

                 
               

         

            
            

     

           
             

               
                
               

               
              

               
               
          

              
              

             
               
               

          

           
               

          

Exhibit 5

10.4A.EXHIBIT 5.2



                 
              
             

 

   

           
            

               
             

              
             

                 
            

                  
               
              

               
              

             
               

   

              
        

            
               

           
               

                 
               

                 
      

            
              

              
               

 

            
              
              

             
      

Exhibit 5

10.4A.EXHIBIT 5.3



          
               

              
              

              
               

               
                

           

             
             

          
         

                
             

             
               

  

              
            

                    
                  

               
      

              
            

                 
                    
                   

            

               
               

            
              

                  
               

                 
                

               
                 

          

Exhibit 5

10.4A.EXHIBIT 5.4



          
             

                  
              

             

            
                

              
             

             
            

             
              
               

             
                

             
            

          

                
                   

       

                
              

             

            
              

                
                

                
    

 

            
         

           
                 

               
               

Exhibit 5

10.4A.EXHIBIT 5.5



             
          

             
  

          
              

                
         

             
               

                 
                

               
                  

              
                  

             

            
           

                
                

               

           
                 

              

           
               

                
         

         
             

                
               

              
               
               

                
     

Exhibit 5

10.4A.EXHIBIT 5.6











RIGHT OF ENTRY PERMIT AGREEMENT 

This Right of Entry Permit Agreement (“Agreement” or “Permit”) is entered into as of 
_____________, 2024 (“Effective Date”), by and between Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 
("District"),  and ______________________(“Permittee”). 

R E C I T A L S: 

A. The District and the City of Santa Cruz have agreed to cooperatively undertake the
Pacific Station North Project (the "Project") on property known as 333 & 423 Front Street, Santa 
Cruz, CA, a transit-oriented redevelopment project which will include the construction of a seven-
story mixed use building with 128 affordable residences, ground floor commercial and office space, 
as well as a new transit center. The District owns certain property adjacent to the City's property, as 
further descripted and depicted in Exhibit  A (the "Property"). 

B. Permittee is responsible for certain aspects of the construction of the Project
(“Work”) and requires access and use of the District's Property to accomplish the Work. [Describe 
permitted scope of work in more detail]. 

C. Permittee desires to obtain a right of entry permit from the District that will permit
Permittee to enter onto and work on District's Property in connection with the Work. 

D. The District is willing to grant a right of entry permit ("Permit") to Permittee on the
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth for the purposes of performing said Work. 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt of which is acknowledged, the parties 
agree as follows: 

1. Grant of Permit.  Subject to the conditions, covenants and restrictions of this
Agreement, the District grants to Permittee a personal, revocable right of entry permit for the 
purposes of performing the Work on the Property together with necessary rights of ingress and 
egress over the Property for these purposes in the location described in the drawing attached and 
incorporated as Exhibit B.  All work performed on the Property must be approved in advance by the 
District. 

2. Permanent Improvements.  Permittee may construct permanent improvements on the
Property according to plans and specifications approved by the City and the District. 

3. Permit Fee. Permittee shall pay the permit fee of $ _________.

4. Condition to Effectiveness.  As a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this
Agreement, Permittee shall have paid the permit fee indicated in Section 3 above and provided to the 
District insurance certificates that certify that Permittee has the kinds of insurance described in 
Exhibit C, attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.1



5. Work Procedures.  All Work performed by Permittee shall be performed in
accordance with all applicable laws and the Work Procedures described in Exhibit [X]. 

6. Nonexclusiveness of Permit.  This permit is nonexclusive and nonpossessory.
Permittee must allow access to the Property by other parties possessing prior rights, unless separate 
arrangements are made with such parties. 

7. Prior Rights.  This Permit is made subject and subordinate to the prior and continuing
right and obligation of the District, its successors and assigns, to use portions of the Property in the 
performance of its transportation operations.   

This grant is made subject to all licenses, leases, easements, restrictions, conditions, 
covenants, encumbrances, liens and claims of title that may affect the property.  The word “grant” 
shall not be construed as a covenant against the existence of any of these or establish any ownership 
interest in the property. 

8. Term of Permit.  The term of this Permit shall commence upon the start of the Work
upon the Property and shall continue until the Work is completed or this Permit is terminated or 
suspended as set forth herein:    

(a) Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause by giving thirty (30)
calendar days’ written notice. 

(b) The District may immediately terminate the Permit by notice to Permittee upon
Permittee’s discontinuance of the Work for one continuous year or the abandonment of any facilities 
installed on the Property. 

(c) The District may immediately suspend the Permit by notice to Permittee if
Permittee defaults with respect to any covenant or condition of this Agreement; the District may 
immediately terminate this Permit by notice to Permittee if Permittee fails to correct the default 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice from the District to do so. 

(d) The District may immediately terminate or suspend this Permit by notice to
Permittee upon any failure of Permittee to reimburse the District for any amount owing as and when 
due as provided any agreement with the District. 

(e) The Permit shall lapse and become void if Work is not commenced within one
year of the date of this Agreement. 

Upon suspension of the Permit, Permittee shall immediately vacate the Property and 
refrain from entering onto it until the Permit is reinstated in writing by the District.  Upon 
termination of the Permit for any reason established in this Section 8, the District may, at its sole 
election, at any time thereafter either complete the Work or remove the improvements placed on the 
Property or any portion thereof and restore the Property to its original condition, at Permittee’s sole 
cost and expense.  Permittee acknowledges and agrees that the performance of the Work or the 
installation of any improvements on the Property pursuant to this Agreement shall not in any way 
whatsoever limit the District's right to terminate this Permit pursuant to the terms hereof or any of 
District's rights hereunder.  Permittee’s indemnity obligations set forth in Sections 11, 12 and 13 
shall survive termination of this Permit for any reason. 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.2



9. Assumption of Risk/Waiver of Claims.  Permittee shall assume all risk of damage to
any and all improvements constructed as part of the Work and appurtenances and to any other 
property of Permittee, or any property under the control or custody of Permittee while upon or near 
the Property of the District incident to the performance of the Work, caused by or contributed to in 
any way by the construction, operation, maintenance or presence of the District's or the City's 
operations at the Property and District shall not be liable therefor.  

(a) Neither the District nor any of its directors, officers, agents or employees shall be
liable for any damage to the property of Permittee, its officers, agents, employees, contractors or 
subcontractors, or their employees, or for any bodily injury or death to such persons, resulting or 
arising from the condition of the Property or its use by Permittee.  

(b) Permittee acknowledges that this Permit is freely revocable by the District and in
view of such fact, Permittee expressly assumes the risk of making any expenditures in connection 
with this Permit, even if such expenditures are substantial.  Without limiting any indemnification 
obligations of Permittee or other waivers contained in this Permit and as a material part of the 
consideration for this Permit, Permittee fully RELEASES, WAIVES AND DISCHARGES forever 
any and all claims, demands, rights, and causes of action against, and covenants not to sue, 
Indemnitees (as defined in Section 12 below) under any present or future laws, statutes, or 
regulations, including, but not limited to, any claim for inverse condemnation or the payment of just 
compensation under law or equity, in the event that District exercises its right to revoke or terminate 
this Permit. 

(c) Permittee acknowledges that it will not be a displaced person at the time this
Permit is terminated or revoked or expires by its own terms, and Permittee fully RELEASES, 
WAIVES AND DISCHARGES forever any and all claims, demands, rights, and causes of action 
against, and covenants not to sue, Indemnitees under any present or future laws, statutes, or 
regulations, including, without limitation, any and all claims for relocation benefits or assistance 
from District under federal and state relocation assistance laws. 

(d) Permittee expressly acknowledges and agrees that the fees payable hereunder do
not take into account any potential liability of the District for any consequential or incidental 
damages including, but not limited to, lost profits and arising out of disruption to the facilities or 
Permittee's uses hereunder.  The District would not be willing to give this Permit in the absence of a 
waiver of liability for consequential or incidental damages due to the acts or omissions of the 
District or its Agents, and Permittee expressly assumes the risk with respect thereto.  Accordingly, 
without limiting any indemnification obligations of Permittee or other waivers contained in this 
Permit and as a material part of the consideration for this Permit, Permittee fully RELEASES, 
WAIVES AND DISCHARGES forever any and all claims, demands, rights, and causes of action 
against for consequential and incidental damages (including without limitation, lost profits and 
covenants not to sue Indemnitees for such damages arising out of this Permit or the uses authorized 
hereunder, including, without limitation, any interference with uses conducted by Permittee pursuant 
to this Permit, regardless of the cause, and whether or not due to the negligence of  Indemnitees, 
except for the gross negligence and willful misconduct of District. 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.3



(e) As part of Permittee's agreement to accept the Permit Area in its existing
condition, and without limiting such agreement, Permittee on behalf of itself and its successors and 
assigns, waives its right to recover from, and forever releases and discharges, Indemnitees, and their 
respective heirs, successors, administrators, personal representatives and assigns, from any and all 
Claims, whether direct or indirect, known or unknown, foreseen and unforeseen, that may arise on 
account of or in any way be connected with the physical or environmental condition of the Property 
and any related improvements or any law or regulation applicable thereto or the suitability of the 
Permit Area for Permittee's intended use. 

(f) Permittee hereby releases the District from any liability, including any claims for
damages or extra compensation (i) arising from construction delays due to work by District forces or 
District transit operations, (ii) as the result of the failure or inability of the District to provide 
necessary inspectors, (iii) due to the presence of Hazardous Materials on the Property, (iv) any 
failure by the District to investigate or identify the presence of such materials, (v) for work done by 
District forces, or (vi) for District operations. 

(g) In connection with the foregoing releases, Permittee acknowledges that it is
familiar with Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads: 

A general release does not extend to claims that the creditor or 
releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at 
the time of executing the release and that, if known by him or her, 
would have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or 
released party. 

Permittee acknowledges that the releases contained herein include all known and 
unknown, disclosed and undisclosed, and anticipated and unanticipated claims.  Permittee realizes 
and acknowledges that it has agreed upon this Permit in light of this realization and, being fully 
aware of this situation, it nevertheless intends to waive the benefit of Civil Code Section 1542, or 
any statute or other similar law now or later in effect.  The releases contained herein shall survive 
any termination of this Permit. 

10. Indemnity.  Permittee shall release, defend (with counsel reasonably satisfactory to
District) and indemnify the District, the City of Santa Cruz, and all of their respective officers, 
directors, employees, volunteers and agents, the successors and assigns of any of them, (all of the 
above hereinafter collectively known as “Indemnitees”), from and against all claims, causes of 
action, proceedings, losses, damages, liability, cost, and expense (including, without limit, any fines, 
penalties, judgments, litigation costs, attorneys’ fees and consulting, engineering and construction 
costs) for damage to natural resources or other loss of or damage to property and for injuries to or 
death of any person (including, but not limited to, the property and employees of each party) 
(“Liability”) when arising or resulting from the use of the Property or performance of the Work by 
Permittee, its agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, or invitees or Permittee’s breach of the 
provisions of this Agreement.  The duty of Permittee to indemnify and save harmless includes the 
duties to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the Civil Code.  It is the express intent of the parties 
that Permittee will indemnify and hold harmless Indemnitees from any and all claims, suits or 
actions arising from any cause whatsoever as set forth above regardless of the existence or degree of 
fault or negligence on the part of Indemnitees, Permittee, or any subcontractor or employee of any of 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.4



these, except to the extent the Liability was attributable to the gross negligence, willful misconduct 
or criminal acts of a particular Indemnitee, it being understood and agreed that any Indemnitee not 
acting in such a manner shall still be entitled to the benefits of this indemnity.  Permittee waives any 
and all rights to any type of express or implied indemnity against Indemnitees.  This indemnity shall 
survive termination of this Agreement.  It is the intention of the parties that should any term of this 
indemnity provision be found to be void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provision shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

11. Hazardous Materials.  No Hazardous Materials (as defined below) shall be created,
stored, used, disposed of, brought to or handled at any time upon the Property, except Hazardous 
Materials contained in or used in connection with construction equipment necessary for the 
operation of such equipment or vehicle being used for work which is authorized on the Property 
under this Permit.  In conducting its operations on the Property, and in arranging for the handling, 
transport and disposal of any materials known (whether or not hazardous), Permittee shall at all 
times comply with all applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of whatever 
kind or nature and pay all costs of such compliance.  Permittee shall immediately notify District 
when Permittee learns of, or has reason to believe that, a release of Hazardous Material has occurred 
in, on or about the Property.  The term “release” or “threatened release” when used with respect to 
Hazardous Material shall include any actual or imminent spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, 
emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, dumping, or disposing in, on, under 
or about the Property.  Permittee shall further comply with all laws requiring notice of such releases 
or threatened releases to governmental agencies, and shall take all action necessary to mitigate the 
release or minimize the spread of contamination.  In the event that a Permittee or its Agents or 
Invitees cause a release of Hazardous Material, Permittee shall, without cost to District and in 
accordance with all laws and regulations, return the Property to the condition immediately prior to 
the release.  In connection therewith, Permittee shall afford District a full opportunity to participate 
in any discussion with governmental agencies regarding any settlement agreement, cleanup or 
abatement agreement, consent decree or other compromise proceeding involving Hazardous 
Material.  

Any Hazardous Materials introduced onto the Property by Permittee, its agents, 
employees, contractors, subcontractors or invitees, shall remain the property of Permittee, its agents, 
employees, contractors, subcontractors or invitees, which shall be responsible for disposing of these 
materials at no cost to District or any Indemnitee, and Permittee shall be obligated to defend, 
indemnify and hold Indemnitees harmless from any and all Liability arising from it, regardless of 
whether such Liability arises during or after the term of this Permit.  This indemnity shall not extend 
to Liability arising from the presence of any Hazardous Materials on the Property, unless (i) such 
Hazardous Materials were introduced onto the Property by Permittee, its agents, employees, 
contractors, subcontractors or invitees, in which case this indemnity shall apply, or (ii) Hazardous 
Materials are present on the Property, and Permittee’s handling, excavation, relocation, 
investigation, disposal or other exercise of control over the Property imposes on the District new or 
additional liability, which the District would not otherwise have incurred in the absence of 
Permittee’s activities or project.  (In such event, Permittee shall pay for and defend and indemnify 
Indemnitees from and against such additional liability to the extent it exceeds that liability which the 
District would have incurred in the absence of Permittee’s activities or project.) 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.5



Any Hazardous Materials not introduced onto the Property by Permittee, its agents, 
employees, contractors, subcontractors or invitees shall remain the property of the District (or other 
responsible third parties) and shall not be deemed property of Permittee. 

For purposes of this Agreement, “Hazardous Material” means material that, because 
of its quantity, concentration or physical or chemical characteristics, is at any time now or hereafter 
deemed by any federal, state or local governmental authority to pose a present or potential hazard to 
public health, welfare or the environment.  Hazardous Material includes, without limitation, any 
material or substance defined as a “hazardous substance, pollutant or contaminant” pursuant to the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended (42 
U.S.C. Sections 9601 et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq.) 
or pursuant to Section 25316 of the California Health and Safety Code; a “hazardous waste” listed 
pursuant to Section 25140 of the California Health and Safety Code; any asbestos and asbestos 
containing materials whether or not such materials are part of the Property or are naturally occurring 
substances on the Property, and any petroleum, including, without limitation, crude oil or any 
fraction thereof, natural gas or natural gas liquids. This indemnity shall survive termination of this 
Agreement.  It is the intention of the parties that should any term of this indemnity provision be 
found to be void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provision shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

12. Compliance with Laws.  Permittee shall comply, at Permittee’s expense, with all
applicable laws, regulations, rules and orders with respect to the use of the property, regardless of 
when they become or became effective, including, without limitation, those relating to construction, 
grading, signage, health, safety, noise, environmental protection, hazardous materials, waste disposal 
and water and air quality, and furnish satisfactory evidence of such compliance upon request of the 
District.  Before beginning work on the Property, Permittee shall also obtain, at Permittee’s expense, 
any and all permits, licenses and approvals required for construction and operation of the Work and 
shall provide District with copies of such approvals.  Under no circumstances shall Permittee 
damage, harm or take any rare, threatened or endangered species on or about the Property. 

13. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be
in writing and mailed postage prepaid by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by 
personal delivery or by overnight courier, to the appropriate address indicated below or at such other 
place or places as either District or Permittee may, from time to time, respectively, designate in a 
written notice given to the other.  Notices shall be deemed sufficiently served four (4) days after the 
date of mailing or upon personal delivery. 

If to District: Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer 
110 Vernon Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
Email: cfarmer@scmtd.com 

Hanson Bridgett, LLP 
1676 North California Boulevard, Suite 610 
Walnut Creek, CA 94566 
Email: jsherman@hansonbridgett.com 
mconneran@hansonbridgett.com 

With a copy to: 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.6



If to Permittee: 

14. Successors and Assigns.  Permittee shall not assign nor sublet, in whole or in part,
any rights covered by this Agreement, or permit any other person, firm or corporation to use, in 
whole or in part, any of the rights or privileges granted pursuant to this Agreement, without first 
obtaining the written consent of the District.   

15. No Waiver.  No waiver of any default or breach of any covenant of this Agreement
by either party shall be implied from any omission by either party to take action on account of such 
default if such default persists or is repeated, and no express waiver shall affect any default other 
than the default specified in the waiver, and then the waiver shall be operative only for the time and 
to the extent stated.  Waivers of any covenant, term or condition by either party shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same covenant, term or condition.  The 
consent or approval by either party to or of any act by either party requiring further consent or 
approval shall not be deemed to waive or render unnecessary their consent or approval to or of any 
subsequent similar acts. 

16. Severability.  Each provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable.  If any
term of provision shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or invalid for 
any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be severed from this Agreement and shall not affect the 
validity of the remainder of this Agreement. 

17. Attorneys’ Fees.  If any legal proceeding should be instituted by either of the parties
to enforce the terms of this Agreement or to determine the rights of the parties under this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in the proceeding shall receive, in addition to all court costs, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

18. Condemnation.  In the event all or any portion of the Property is condemned for
public use, Permittee shall receive compensation only in the amount awarded for the taking and 
damaging of Permittee’s facilities related to the Work.  Any compensation for damages for taking 
the Property or Permittee’s permit interest thereon awarded to Permittee shall be assigned to District. 

19. Governing Law.  The rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement shall
be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California as applied to contracts that are 
made and performed entirely in California. 

20. Effect of Headings.  The headings of the paragraphs of this Agreement are included
for purposes of convenience only, and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its 
provisions 

21. Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the complete expression of the agreement
between the parties and supersedes any prior agreements, whether written or oral, concerning the 
subject of this Agreement, which are not fully expressed in this Agreement.  The parties intend this 
Agreement to be an integrated agreement.  Any modification of or addition to this Agreement must 
be in writing signed by both parties. 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.7



22. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original but both of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Permit as of the day and year first 
above written by their duly authorized representatives. 

DISTRICT 

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT 
DISTRICT  

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Address for notices: 

Attn: 
Email: 

PERMITTEE 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Address for notices: 

Attn: 
Email: 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.8



EXHIBIT A 

District's Property 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.9



EXHIBIT B 

Work Location 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.10



EXHIBIT C 

Insurance Requirements 

Permittee shall procure and maintain insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to 
property and otherwise which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work under 
this Agreement and the results of that work by Permittee, its agents, representatives, employees, 
contractors, or subcontractors. 

A. CERTIFICATE REQUIREMENTS
The District will be issued a Certificate of Insurance (a Memorandum of Understanding will not be
accepted) with the following minimum requirements:

• Certificate(s) will show current policy number(s) and effective dates,

• Coverage and policy limits will meet, or exceed, requirements below,

• The Certificate Holder will be the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District,
• Certificate will be signed by an authorized representative,
• An endorsement, if required below, will be provided to show the District, its officers, officials,

employees, and volunteers as additional insureds, and
• Coverages must be maintained during the term of the Agreement, unless a longer duration is

required as specified below.

B. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE
Permittee acknowledges that the insurance coverage and policy limits set forth in this section
constitute the minimum amount of coverage required. If Permittee maintains broader insurance
coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown below, the  District requires and shall be
entitled to the broader insurance coverage and/or higher limits maintained by Permittee. Any available
insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be
available to the District.

Coverage will be at least as broad as: 

• COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY (CGL): $5,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE; $10,000,000
AGGREGATE
Proof of coverage for $5 Million per occurrence including products and completed operations,
property damage, bodily injury, personal and advertising injury will be provided on Insurance
Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 01 covering CGL.

• PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY (ERRORS AND OMISSIONS): $2,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE OR CLAIM,
$2,000,000 AGGREGATE.

Permittee will maintain insurance appropriate to Permittee's profession; with limit no less than
$2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. Insurance must be maintained, and
evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after date of completion of the
services under this Agreement. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date or
start of work date, Permittee must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five
(5) years after completion of contract work.

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.11



• AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY:
Proof of coverage for $1,000,000 provided on ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto
(Code 1), or if District has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), per
accident for bodily injury and property damage.

• WORKERS' COMPENSATION AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, WITH
STATUTORY LIMITS, AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE: $1,000,000 per accident
for bodily injury or disease.

The Worker's Compensation policy must be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
the District for all work performed by the Permittee and its employees. 

(Not required if Permittee provides written verification it has no employees) - If 
Contractor has no employees, Contractor shall complete and sign a Workers' Compensation 
Exemption Declaration and Release of Liability.   

• CONTRACTORS' POLLUTION LIABILITY and/or ASBESTOS POLLUTION LIABILITY
(CPL) (if project involves environmental hazards) with limits no less than $2,000,000 per
occurrence or claim, and $4,000,000 policy aggregate.

1. If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification / remediation,
the Pollution Liability shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos exclusions. If the
services involve mold identification/ remediation, the Pollution Liability shall not contain a
mold exclusion and the definition of "Pollution" shall include microbial matter including
mold.

2. The Automobile Liability policy shall be endorsed to include Transportation
Pollution Liability insurance, covering hazardous materials to be transported by Contractor
pursuant to the Agreement. This coverage may also be provided on the Contractors Pollution
Liability policy.

• BUILDER'S RISK (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an "All Risk"
(Special Perils) coverage form, with limits equal to the completed value of the
project and no coinsurance penalty provisions.

Builder's Risk (Course of Construction) Insurance

Permittee's Contractor may submit evidence of Builder's Risk insurance in the form
of Course of Construction coverage. Such coverage shall name the District as a loss
payee as their interest may appear.

C. OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to comply with the following provisions: 

• ADDITIONAL INSURED STATUS
The District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL, CPL, and automobile insurance (if transporting hazardous
materials] policies with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by
or on behalf of Permittee including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection
with such work or operations. General liability coverage will be provided in the form of an
endorsement to Permittee's insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85, or if
not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38;
and CG 20 37 (if a later edition is used).

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.12



• PRIMARY COVERAGE
For any claims related to this Agreement, Permittee's insurance coverage will be primary
insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers, officials, employees, agents, or
volunteers will be excess of Permittee's insurance and will not contribute with it.

• NOTICE OF CANCELLATION
Each insurance policy required above shall state that the coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to the District.

• WAIVER OF SUBROGATION
Permittee hereby grants to the District a waiver of any right to subrogation, except as otherwise
not applicable, which any insurer of said Permittee may acquire against the District by virtue of
the payment of any loss, including attorney's fees under such insurance. Permittee agrees to
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effectuate this waiver of subrogation, but this
provision applies regardless of whether or not the District has received a waiver of subrogation
endorsement from the insurer.

• EXCESS LIABILITY/UMBRELLA INSURANCE POLICIES
The excess/liability policies will provide similar coverage as the primary CGL policy with no
new exclusions - Excess liability insurance must follow form the terms, conditions, definitions,
and exclusions of the underlying CGL insurance. The excess/umbrella policy must also be
written on a primary and noncontributory basis for an additional insured, and that it will apply
before any other insurance that is available to such additional insured which covers that person
or organization as a named insured, and we will not share with that other insurance.

The policy regarding Limits of Insurance regarding Aggregates must provide that the
aggregate limits if applicable shall apply in the same manner as the aggregate limits shown in
the Schedule of the Underlying Insurance.

• SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. District may require
Permittee to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses
and related expenses. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the
self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or District.

• ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A-: VII,
unless otherwise acceptable to the District.

• CLAIMS MADE POLICIES
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the
beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five
(5) years after completion of the contract of work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Permittee must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.13



• VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE
Permittee will furnish the District with original Certificates of Insurance including all required
amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL, CPL,
and automobile Policies listing all policy endorsements to be approved by the District before
work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work
beginning will not waive the Permittee's obligation to provide them. The District reserves the
right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including
endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.

D. CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS
Permittee shall require and verify that all contractors and subcontractors maintain insurance
meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Permittee shall ensure that District is an
additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

E. SPECIAL RISKS/CIRCUMSTANCES
The District reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances and provide
notice to Permittee.

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.14



EXHIBIT D 

Work Procedures (if applicable) 

Exhibit 6

10.4A.EXHIBIT 6.15



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



   
 

       
       

             
                

            
              

       

            
            
             

             

             
              

              
                 

              
                
           

             
           
              

              

              
              

           

              
              

               
           

                
                

                
                

               
       

              
               

           

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.1



            
          

             
             

             
            

           
           

                
           

         
              

         

               
              

                
              

            
               
        

            
              

            
              

              
               

         

           
              
             
             

           
            

             
            

           
             

              
             

               
             

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.2



                 
               

              

             
              

            
             

          
           

                
              

            
                 

           
                

                
             
     

            
              

            
                

             
              

                 
              

             
               

                 
                  

               
     

           
                

               
      

             
            

               
                

             
             
            

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.3



               
         

  

         

             
               

             
                  

              
                

       

             
               

              
              

               
                 

              

   

           
                

              
                   
                 

             
                   

                  
                  

  

           
                

             
                

                
             

                  
                

                  
          

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.4



           
               

             
              

     

   
   

   
   

   
  
     
   

    

              
      

            
                 

      

           
    

            
                

             
               

          

           
             
                

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.5



             
             

             
              
                 

          

 

              
                
             

              
              

   

               
                  

         

               
           
               
  

             
                

                 
                

               
         

             
                 

            
                
    

            

   

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.6



              
         

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.7



              
         

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.8



              
         

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.9



  
   

    

Exhibit 7

10.4A.EXHIBIT 7.10

























   
  

      

             
               

                 
            

         
         

         
             

              
              

           
             

             
           

   

             
              

              
              

          
             

             
            

 

             
              
             

   

             

         
     

  

  

   

Attachment C

10.4C.2



   
  

  

 
   

 
    

    
     

   

Attachment C

10.4C.3



- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK -



DATE:  January 26, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer 

SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2023 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors formally accept the audited financial statements
and reports prepared by the firm of Brown Armstrong, Certified Public
Accountants, for the year ended June 30, 2023.

II. SUMMARY

• The Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report (Attachment
A) prepared by the firm Brown Armstrong, Certified Public Accountants present
Santa Cruz METRO’s financial position as of June 30, 2023.  The auditors have
found that Santa Cruz METRO’s financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Santa Cruz METRO as of June 30,
2023.

• In the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance Over Financial
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with the Statutes, Rules, and Regulations of the California
Transportation Development Act and the Allocation Instructions and
Resolutions of the Transportation Commission (page 59-60), the auditors
found nothing that came to their attention that indicated Santa Cruz METRO
failed to comply with the Statutes, Rules, and Regulations of the California
Transportation Development Act, and the allocation instructions and resolutions
of the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (SCCRTC)
during the course of their audit. Additionally, the auditors tested Public
Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement
Account (PTMISEA) program receipts and expenses for the year audited.

• In the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (pages 61-62), the
auditors identified no findings associated with their testing of major federal
program expenditures in connection with their audit performed under
Government Auditing Standards (GAS) and in accordance with the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
Transit District 

10.5.1



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
 

FY23 Financial Audit Report 

• The Required Communication to the Board of Directors in Accordance 
with Professional Standards letter (Attachment B) provides information 
related to the auditor’s responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 
standards as well as observations arising from the audit.  

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND  

Attachment A – Santa Cruz METRO’s Financial Statements with 
Independent Auditor’s Report  

The Independent Auditor’s Report (pages 1-3) attests that the audit was 
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States.  The auditors have found that Santa Cruz METRO’s financial statements 
present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of Santa Cruz METRO 
as of June 30, 2023. 

While the basic financial statements and notes (pages 16-45) provide information 
about Santa Cruz METRO’s financial position in detail, the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis (pages 4-15) presents narrative highlights of the 
financial statements, an overview of the agency’s financial activities, and 
information that enhances overall financial disclosure. This report was prepared by 
Santa Cruz METRO management and staff.   

The Statement of Net Position (pages 16-17) presents current and noncurrent 
assets and liabilities on a full accrual basis. Net position (deficit) represents the 
difference between total assets plus deferred outflows of resources and total 
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 
(page 18) presents Santa Cruz METRO’s revenues, expenses and the net impact 
these activities had on its net position for the year.  

The Statement of Cash Flows (pages 19-20) demonstrates how changes in 
balance sheet accounts and income affect cash and cash equivalents.   

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements (pages 21-45) are an integral 
component of the financial statement report, as they provide additional information 
that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial 
statements. The notes describe the nature of Santa Cruz METRO’s operations and 
significant accounting policies, as well as clarify financial information unique to 
Santa Cruz METRO.  

10.5.2



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
 

FY23 Financial Audit Report 

The Required Supplementary Information (RSI) section of the report highlights 
information that is considered essential for placing the financial statements and 
note information in an appropriate context, in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles: 

• The Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 
(pages 46-47) and the Schedule of Contributions - Pension (page 48) for 
Santa Cruz METRO’s defined benefit pension plan present multiyear trend 
information that show whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities 
for benefits.  In March 2022, Santa Cruz METRO issued sales tax revenue 
bonds to refinance its pension obligations to CalPERS, with the intent of 
realizing interest cost savings in the future. 

• The Schedule of Changes in the Net Other Postemployment Benefits 
(OPEB) Liability and Related Ratios (page 49) and the Schedule of 
Contributions - OPEB (page 50) are required under current standards for 
accounting and financial reporting for OPEB plans (GASB 75), implemented 
in FY18.  At this time, Santa Cruz METRO has not prefunded the liability for 
retiree medical or other postemployment benefits.  
 

The Statement of Operating Expenses (page 51) is presented as Supplementary 
Information, showing the total operating costs that were reported in the financials 
in further detail, broken out by natural expense classification. 

Attachment B - Required Communication to the Board of Directors in 
Accordance with Professional Standards  

The Required Communication to the Board of Directors in Accordance with 
Professional Standards is a letter from the auditors that serves to communicate 
to those charged with governance the scope of audit procedures performed, 
significant findings or misstatements, and other information, such as significant 
accounting estimates, audit adjustments, any difficulties or disagreements with 
management, and other matters that are not communicated in the audited financial 
statements.  

Attachment C – Santa Cruz METRO’s Measure D Fund Financial Statements 
with Independent Auditor’s Report  

As a recipient agency of Measure D funds, Santa Cruz METRO is required to 
submit separate independently audited financial statements of Measure D funds 
received and used annually to the SCCRTC, for review by the Measure D Taxpayer 
Oversight Committee.  The FY23 Measure D audited financial statements were 
timely submitted to the SCCRTC along with Santa Cruz METRO’s district-wide 
audited financial reports.    

10.5.3



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
 

FY23 Financial Audit Report 

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This pertains to METRO’s Financial Stability, Stewardship & Accountability. 

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact from the Board’s formal acceptance of the financial 
statements and audit reports.  However, in order to continue to receive 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) payments from the SCCRTC, the final 
audit must be submitted to the SCCRTC within 180 days of the end of the fiscal 
year.  Santa Cruz METRO has met this TDA compliance requirement and the 
SCCRTC has accepted the FY23 audited financial statements.  

In addition, Santa Cruz METRO is required to submit annual audit reporting 
packages to numerous governmental agencies within specified deadlines in order 
to meet grant compliance requirements and continue to receive Federal, State and 
Local grant awards and funding.  Santa Cruz METRO has timely submitted the 
FY23 audited financial statements to all required grantor agencies. 

VI. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

N/A  

VII. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A: Santa Cruz METRO Financial Statements with Independent 
Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2023 

Attachment B: Required Communication to the Board of Directors in 
Accordance with Professional Standards (letter from Brown 
Armstrong, CPAs) 

Attachment C: Santa Cruz METRO Measure D Fund Financial Statements 
with Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 
2023 
  

10.5.4



10.5.5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.5A.1

Attachment A



10.5A.2

Attachment A



10.5A.3

Attachment A



10.5A.4

Attachment A



10.5A.5

Attachment A



10.5A.6

Attachment A



10.5A.7

Attachment A



10.5A.8

Attachment A



10.5A.9

Attachment A



10.5A.10

Attachment A



10.5A.11

Attachment A



10.5A.12

Attachment A



10.5A.13

Attachment A



10.5A.14

Attachment A



10.5A.15

Attachment A



10.5A.16

Attachment A



10.5A.17

Attachment A



10.5A.18

Attachment A



10.5A.19

Attachment A



10.5A.20

Attachment A



10.5A.21

Attachment A



10.5A.22

Attachment A



10.5A.23

Attachment A



10.5A.24

Attachment A



10.5A.25

Attachment A



10.5A.26

Attachment A



10.5A.27

Attachment A



10.5A.28

Attachment A



10.5A.29

Attachment A



10.5A.30

Attachment A



10.5A.31

Attachment A



10.5A.32

Attachment A



10.5A.33

Attachment A



10.5A.34

Attachment A



10.5A.35

Attachment A



10.5A.36

Attachment A



10.5A.37

Attachment A



10.5A.38

Attachment A



10.5A.39

Attachment A



10.5A.40

Attachment A



10.5A.41

Attachment A



10.5A.42

Attachment A



10.5A.43

Attachment A



10.5A.44

Attachment A



10.5A.45

Attachment A



10.5A.46

Attachment A



10.5A.47

Attachment A



10.5A.48

Attachment A



10.5A.49

Attachment A



10.5A.50

Attachment A



10.5A.51

Attachment A



10.5A.52

Attachment A



10.5A.53

Attachment A



10.5A.54

Attachment A



10.5A.55

Attachment A



10.5A.56

Attachment A



10.5A.57

Attachment A



10.5A.58

Attachment A



10.5A.59

Attachment A



10.5A.60

Attachment A



10.5A.61

Attachment A



10.5A.62

Attachment A



10.5A.63

Attachment A



10.5A.64

Attachment A



10.5A.65

Attachment A



10.5A.66

Attachment A



10.5A.67

Attachment A



10.5A.68

Attachment A



10.5A.69

Attachment A



10.5A.70

Attachment A



Attachment B

10.5B.1



Attachment B

10.5B.2



Attachment B

10.5B.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.5C.1

Attachment C



10.5C.2

Attachment C



10.5C.3

Attachment C



10.5C.4

Attachment C



10.5C.5

Attachment C



10.5C.6

Attachment C



10.5C.7

Attachment C



10.5C.8

Attachment C



10.5C.9

Attachment C



10.5C.10

Attachment C



10.5C.11

Attachment C



10.5C.12

Attachment C



10.5C.13

Attachment C



10.5C.14

Attachment C



10.5C.15

Attachment C



10.5C.16

Attachment C



10.5C.17

Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



D ATE: January 26, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Chuck Farmer, DBE Liaison Officer, CFO 

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE THE SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT ON THE STATUS OF 
METRO’S DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors accept and file the Semi-Annual Report on the
status of METRO’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program

II. SUMMARY

• As a recipient of federal funds, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
(METRO) participates in the federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
Program as specified in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26 (49 CFR
26).

• The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requires METRO to recalculate its
DBE goal triennially and to report goal attainment semi-annually as a
requirement to receive federal funds.

• METRO’s FFY21-23 goal for DBE participation is 2.65% of all federally funded
procurements with competitive contract bidding opportunities.

• A Semi-Annual report provided to the Board in concurrence with the FTA
reporting schedule per METRO’s DBE Policy.

• April 1, 2023 – September 30, 2023, METRO’s DBE attainment was 0.00% for
contracts awarded, payments on ongoing contracts, and payments on
completed contracts.

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The Department of Transportation established a Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (DBE) Program in 1980 to ensure that firms competing for federally
funded contracts are not subject to unlawful discrimination. DBEs, as defined by
the US Department of Transportation, are for-profit small business concerns where
socially and economically disadvantaged individuals own at least a 51% interest
and also control management and daily business operations.  African Americans,
Hispanics, Native Americans, Asian-Pacific and Subcontinent Asian Americans,
and women are presumed to be socially and economically disadvantaged.  Other
individuals can also qualify as socially and economically disadvantaged on a case-
by-case basis.

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
Transit District 

10.6.1



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 4 

Semi-annual DBE Report December 2023 

The FTA requires each qualified recipient of more than $250,000 annually in 
federal funds to implement a DBE program, recalculate a DBE goal triennially, and 
report its goal attainment semi-annually, as specified by 49 CFR 26. METRO 
received approximately $11.9 million from the FTA in FFY22 and, therefore, 
maintained a DBE Program.  

It is important to acknowledge the restrictions placed on DBE goal setting, 
attainment, and reporting: 

• Only competitively biddable contracts with federal funding are counted in the
procurement opportunities in which DBEs can participate.
o The majority of METRO’s FTA funding is used to pay for internal labor

costs and fringe benefits, and is not required to be monitored for the
DBE program.

• Several large expenses have no competitive contract opportunities:
o Utilities, leases and rent payments, subscription services,

membership costs, travel.

• Only certified DBEs can be included for setting goals and measuring
attainment.
o Many businesses are owned by minorities and women, but not all of

these owners register as DBEs in the statewide program.

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT

Filing and accepting the semi-annual report on the status of METRO’s
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program aligns with METRO’s goal of
Financial Stability, Stewardship & Accountability because failing to do so
jeopardizes the receipt of federal funding.

V. DBE STATUS

METRO’s current DBE goal is 2.65% as seen in METRO’s DBE semi-annual report
for the period covering April 1, 20232 – September 30, 2023 provided as
Attachment A.  During this reporting period, METRO’s DBE attainment for
contracts awarded, payments on ongoing contracts, and payments on completed
contracts is 0.00%, 0.00%, and 0.00%, respectively.  Attachment B shows that
there were DBE payments on awarded contracts in the prior reporting period.
Attachment C reports on METRO’s DBE attainment for the entirety FFY22.
METRO’s DBE attainment for contracts awarded, payments on ongoing contracts,
and payments on completed contracts is 4.62%, 0.00%, and 0.00%, respectively.

METRO did not award or close any large construction procurement with
subcontracting opportunities for DBEs, during this current semi-annual reporting
period. The majority of METRO’s federal capital funds were obligated for revenue
vehicle infrastructure purchased from the vehicle manufacturer for which the transit

10.6.2



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 4 
 

Semi-annual DBE Report December 2023 

vehicle manufacturer (TVM) reports DBE participation, not METRO. The remainder 
of METRO’s federal capital funds were obligated for smaller infrastructure projects, 
for which there were limited subcontracting opportunities for DBEs. 

VI. UPCOMING DBE OPPORTUNITIES 

For the next three-year period, all federal funds are expected to go towards bus 
procurements, so there will be no new federally funded DBE contracting 
opportunities during this time. 

VII. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

The DBE Program has direct expenses of less than $850 for publishing ads and 
public hearing notices. Failure to update the goal and submit semi-annual reports 
would jeopardize METRO’s receipt of federal financial assistance in FFY24. 

VIII. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE 

N/A 

IX. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

There are no alternatives.  Receiving the semi-annual report is a legal requirement 
connected to METRO receiving federal financial assistance. Staff is required to 
provide this information to inform the Board of this important program per METRO’s 
DBE policy, Art. III § 3.304(G). 

X. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A: December 1, 2023 DBE Semi-Annual Report (April 1, 2023 – 
September 30, 2023) 

Attachment B: June 1, 2023 DBE Semi-Annual Report (October 1, 2022 – 
March 31, 2023) 

Attachment C:  FFY22 DBE Semi-Annual Report (October 1, 2022 – 
September 30, 2023) 

 
Prepared by:  Cayla Hill, Planning Analyst  

10.6.3



10.6.4





 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 





 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 





 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Rejection of Claim 

 

DATE: January 26, 2024  

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager 

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDED ACTION ON TORT CLAIMS 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Board of Directors Approve Staff Recommendations for Claims for 
the Month of January 2024, as reflected in Section VIII of this report  

II. SUMMARY 

This staff report provides the Board of Directors with recommendations on claims 
submitted to the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO). 

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND 

METRO’s Risk Department received one claim for the month of January 2024 for 
money or damages. As a public entity, METRO must act “within 45 days after the 
claim has been presented” (Govt C §912.4(a)). See staff recommendations in 
paragraph VIII. 

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This report pertains to METRO’s Financial Stability, Stewardship and 
Accountability. 

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

None 

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE 

N/A 

  

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
Transit District 

 
 

10.7.1



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 

Rejection of Claim 

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

Within the 45-day period, the Board of Directors may take the following actions: 
• Reject the claim entirely; 
• Allow it in full; 
• Allow it in part and reject the balance; 
• Compromise it, if the liability or amount due is disputed (Govt C 

§912.4(a)); or 
• Do nothing, and allow the claim to be denied by operation of law 

(Govt C §912.4 (c)). 

VIII. DESCRIPTION OF CLAIM 
 

 
Prepared by:  Tom Szestowicki, Safety Specialist 
 

  

Claimant Claim # Description Recommended 
Action 

Carr, Victoria 23-0020 Claimant alleges that 
METRO damaged his 
vehicle. Amount of claim: 
$4,143.22. 

Reject 

10.7.2



10.7.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



 Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
        Transit District 

DATE: January 26, 2024      

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF DESIGNATING THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
TO THE CALIFORNIA TRANSIT INDEMNITY POOL (CALTIP) BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS  

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt the attached resolution
designating the Chief Financial Officer to the CalTIP Board of Directors

II. SUMMARY

• Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District’s (METRO) casualty and liability
insurance is provided through CalTIP, a self-insured pool of California
transit operators.

• METRO is required to designate a representative and an alternate
representative to the CalTIP Board of Directors (CalTIP Board).

• The CalTIP Board sets policy that affects many aspects of the District's
risk management, operations and maintenance functions.

• Over the years, various executive officers have been designated by the
METRO Board to sit on the CalTIP Board.

• Staff is requesting that the Board designate the Chief Financial Officer as
METRO’s primary representative on the CalTIP Board with the Chief
Operations Officer continuing to serve as the designated alternate
representative.

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

METRO is a charter member of CalTIP, which was created in 1987 and was formed
as a joint powers authority to be a viable and highly successful alternative to the
commercial insurance market. CalTIP currently consists of over 30 transit districts.
The Finance Deputy Director served as METRO’s CalTIP Director from 2009 to

10.8.1



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

CalTIP 

2020. With the retirement of the Finance Deputy Director, Mr. Francis, then Safety, 
Security and Risk Management Director, was appointed as the Director.  With the 
March 2021 retirement of Mr. Francis, Curtis Moses, the new Safety, Security and 
Risk Management Director was appointed as the CalTIP Director for METRO.  In 
May 2022, Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager, was appointed to that role.  With 
the departure of CEO Tree, staff is recommending that Chuck Farmer, Chief 
Financial Officer, assume the primary representation on the CalTIP Board with 
Margo Ross, Chief Operations Officer, continuing to serve as the designated 
alternate. 

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This report pertains to METRO’s Safety First Culture strategic priority.  

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

There are no additional financial impacts, as CalTIP reimburses METRO for all 
CalTIP related travel expenses.  

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE  

N/A 

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

None.  The CalTIP Board member position is a requirement of CalTIP membership.   

VIII. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A: Resolution appointing Director of the California Transit 
Indemnity Pool (CalTIP) 

 
 
Prepared by:  Donna Bauer, Executive Assistant  

10.8.2



10.8.3



- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK -



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Resolution No.  
On the Motion of Director:   
Duly Seconded by Director:  
The Following Resolution is Adopted: 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SANTA CRUZ 
METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT APPOINTING DIRECTOR OF THE 

CALIFORNIA TRANSIT INDEMNITY POOL (CALTIP)  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit 
District, at its April 17, 1987 meeting, did hereby authorize participation by the District in 
the California Transit Indemnity (Insurance) Pool (CalTIP) beginning July 1, 1987; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Board of Directors to approve appointment of 
a Director of the California Transit Indemnity Pool; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer 
is hereby appointed the Director of the California Transit Indemnity Pool to serve 
at the pleasure of the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of January 2026 by the following vote: 

AYES: Directors -  

NOES: Directors - 

ABSTAIN: Directors - 

Attachment A

10.8A.1



Resolution No. 
Page 2 

ABSENT: Directors - 

Approved: 
Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson, Board Chair 

Attest: 
Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager 

Approved as to form: 
Julie A. Sherman, General Counsel 

Attachment A

10.8A.2



DATE: January 26, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Kristina Mihaylova, Deputy Finance Director 

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FY24 REVISED 
CAPITAL BUDGET/PORTFOLIO 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving the FY24 Revised
Capital Budget/Portfolio, as presented in Attachment B

II. SUMMARY

• The Board of Directors (Board) adopted the FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio on
June 23, 2023.

• Periodic capital budget revisions may be required due to new grant awards,
new projects, changes to the scope of existing projects, spending adjustments
and removal of projects that are no longer active.

• Revisions to an adopted capital budget require Board approval and the
adoption of a resolution.

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The Board must adopt an Operating and Capital Budget by June 30th each year.
The Board adopted the FY24 & FY25 Operating and FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio
on June 23, 2023.
Periodically, capital budget revisions are required to add new projects, revise
project balances and funding sources, update project descriptions, etc. This will be
the first revision to the FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio since adoption.
Staff requests that the Board adopt a resolution (Attachment A) to approve the
FY24 Revised Capital Budget/Portfolio (Attachment B).
A Reconciliation by Project as of January 26, 2024 (Attachment C) is provided; this
reconciles the (current) FY24 Revised Capital Budget/Portfolio against the
(original) Final FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio adopted on June 23, 2023.
This revision impacts multiple projects.

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
Transit District 

10.9.1



Board of Directors 
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 

FY24 Capital Budget Revisions SR  

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This pertains to METRO’s Financial Stability, Stewardship & Accountability. 

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

The original FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio adopted June 23, 2023 totals 
$83,081,176. 

• Revision 1 – January 26, 2024 – This revision added two new (2) projects, 
removed three (3) projects; revised the available budget balances for fifteen 
(15) projects; added additional funding to two (2) projects, and revised the 
description and scope for two (2) projects. This revision resulted in a net 
increase of $37,987,142, for a Revised FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio balance 
of $121,068,317.  

The Reconciliation by Project as of January 26, 2024 (Attachment C) lists the detail 
of all changes by project since adoption on June 23, 2023, and includes an 
explanation for the action. The year to date change is a net increase of 
$37,987,142. 

VI. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

• There are no recommended alternatives at this time.  If the revised budget is 
not approved, important capital improvements and capital projects could be 
delayed or cancelled.    

VII. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A: FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio Resolution 
Attachment B: FY24 Revised Capital Budget/Portfolio as of January 26, 2024 
Attachment C: FY24 Revised Capital Budget/Portfolio – Reconciliation by 

Project as of January 26, 2024 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Kristina Mihaylova, Deputy Finance Director 

 
 
 

10.9.2



10.9.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Resolution No.  
On the Motion of Director     
Duly Seconded by Director    
The following Resolution is adopted: 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING A REVISION TO THE FY24 CAPITAL BUDGET/PORTFOLIO 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved the FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio on June 
23, 2023 with a total budget of $83,081,176; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to revise the adopted FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio by 
$37,987,142; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz 
Metropolitan Transit District hereby amends the FY24 Capital Budget/Portfolio per Attachment B 
to this resolution for a total FY24 Revised Capital Budget/Portfolio of $121,068,317. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of January 2024, by the following vote: 

AYES: Directors - 

NOES:  Directors - 

ABSENT: Directors - 

ABSTAIN: Directors - 

  APPROVED 

  SHEBREH KALANTARI-JOHNSON, 
 Board Chair 

ATTEST 

__ 
MICHAEL TREE  
CEO/General Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

____________________________________ 
JULIE A. SHERMAN 
General Counsel 

Attachment A

10.9A.1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 T

R
AN

SI
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T
FY

24
 R

EV
IS

ED
 C

AP
IT

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

/P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 - 

AN
TI

C
IP

AT
ED

 S
PE

N
D

IN
G

 
AS

 O
F 

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
26

, 2
02

4

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

  

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

T/
A

C
TI

VI
TY

FE
D

ER
A

L
FU

N
D

S
TI

R
C

P
ST

IP
LC

TO
P

LP
P

VW
 G

R
A

N
T

PG
&

E 
R

EB
A

TE
S 

&
 

M
B

A
R

D
 

ST
A

-S
G

R
(S

B
 1

)

M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 
(X

FR
 F

R
O

M
 

O
PE

R
 B

U
D

G
ET

)

O
PE

R
AT

IN
G

 &
 

C
AP

IT
AL

 
R

ES
ER

VE
 F

U
N

D
TO

TA
L

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
R

el
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
s

1
19

-0
00

1
N

ew
 M

ET
R

O
 O

w
ne

d 
Pa

ra
cr

uz
 F

ac
ili

ty
-F

Y2
0 

LP
P 

(G
ra

nt
 

M
at

ch
 fo

r 5
33

9(
b)

)
-

$
 

-
$

 
2

19
-0

00
2

Pa
ci

fic
 S

ta
tio

n/
M

et
ro

 C
en

te
r R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
/ C

ity
 o

f S
C

 
50

0,
00

0
$

 
3,

97
5,

67
8

$
  

-
$

 
4,

47
5,

67
8

$
  

3
24

-0
00

1
Sc

ot
ts

 V
al

le
y 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r R
oo

f R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
10

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

10
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
4

23
-0

01
0

R
ap

id
 B

us
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 - 
So

qu
el

 D
riv

e 
& 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 C
or

rid
or

 
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
5

24
-0

00
9

W
at

so
nv

ill
e 

Pa
rk

in
g 

Lo
t (

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
& 

Bu
ild

in
gs

) 
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
1,

50
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
1,

50
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
 

6
24

-0
01

4
W

at
so

nv
ill

e 
St

at
io

n 
R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
8,

50
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
-

$ 
 

  
8,

50
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
 

7
23

-0
00

5b
N

ew
 H

yd
ro

ge
n 

Fu
el

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

+ 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t 

-
$ 

 
  

4,
47

5,
00

0
$ 

 
   

1,
50

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

5,
97

5,
00

0
$ 

 
   

 
Su

bt
ot

al
-

$
 

13
,4

75
,0

00
$ 

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

3,
97

5,
67

8
$

  
3,

10
0,

00
0

$
  

20
,5

50
,6

78
$

  

IT
 P

ro
je

ct
s

8
19

-0
00

4
ER

P 
C

on
su

lta
nt

 &
 S

ys
te

m
2,

11
8,

98
4

$ 
   

  
2,

11
8,

98
4

$ 
 

   
 

9
24

-0
00

2
W

eb
 S

ite
 U

pg
ra

de
 

25
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
25

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

10
24

-0
01

3
In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ic

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
Sc

he
du

le
 O

pt
im

iz
at

io
n 

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  

Su
bt

ot
al

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
2,

36
8,

98
4

$
  

2,
36

8,
98

4
$

  

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
U

pg
ra

de
s 

&
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

11
19

-0
00

6
M

ai
nt

 Y
ar

d-
Se

cu
rit

y 
H

ar
de

ni
ng

/E
xp

an
de

d 
Pa

rk
in

g
21

5,
10

5
$ 

 
   

21
5,

10
5

$ 
 

   
12

19
-0

00
6c

Au
to

m
at

ed
 g

at
es

 (B
ay

 1
1 

& 
R

ou
te

 4
) D

es
ig

n 
& 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

10
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
10

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

13
19

-0
00

6d
H

VA
C

 B
ay

 1
1 

D
es

ig
n 

& 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
10

3,
12

7
$ 

 
   

10
3,

12
7

$ 
 

   
14

19
-0

01
3

JK
S 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

- U
pp

er
 S

ec
ur

ity
 G

at
es

 (R
es

er
ve

s)
-

$ 
 

  
19

5,
49

2
$ 

 
   

19
5,

49
2

$ 
 

   
15

19
-0

02
0

Ad
m

in
 B

ld
g.

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

& 
R

en
ov

at
io

ns
20

,0
00

$ 
 

   
20

,0
00

$ 
 

   
16

19
-0

01
8a

Aw
ni

ng
 @

 F
ue

lin
g 

St
at

io
n 

- C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

(F
TA

 5
33

9a
 

23
5,

32
8

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

 
  

23
5,

32
8

$ 
 

   
17

23
-0

00
5c

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 F
ac

ili
ty

 U
pg

ra
de

s
-

$
 

1,
50

0,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

1,
50

0,
00

0
$

  
18

24
-0

00
3

Tr
ai

le
r m

ou
nt

ed
 h

ot
 w

at
er

 h
ig

h 
pr

es
su

re
 w

as
he

r s
ys

te
m

-
$

 
55

,0
00

$
 

55
,0

00
$

 
19

24
-0

01
0

12
 B

us
 S

he
lte

rs
 ($

25
K/

sh
el

te
r)

-
$

 
30

0,
00

0
$

 
30

0,
00

0
$

 
Su

bt
ot

al
23

5,
32

8
$

 
1,

50
0,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
98

8,
72

4
$

 
2,

72
4,

05
2

$
  

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 P
ur

ch
as

es
, R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 &
 C

am
pa

ig
ns

20
19

-0
02

7
FY

18
 S

TI
P 

- A
VL

/IT
S 

(S
TI

P,
 M

ea
su

re
 D

)
-

$ 
 

  
23

8,
01

1
$ 

 
   

-
$ 

 
  

23
8,

01
1

$ 
 

   
21

20
-0

00
1

7 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t P

ar
ac

ru
z 

Va
ns

 (F
Y1

9 
LP

P,
 M

ea
su

re
 D

)
30

2,
00

0
$ 

 
   

69
2,

00
0

$ 
 

   
99

4,
00

0
$ 

 
   

22
19

-0
03

2
3 

N
ew

 F
ly

er
 R

ep
l. 

C
ap

ita
l L

ea
se

 - 
Ye

ar
 4

 o
f 6

 P
rin

 O
nl

y 
-

(M
ea

su
re

 D
) I

nt
er

es
t f

un
de

d 
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Bu

dg
et

 $
32

K
11

7,
18

5
$

 
11

7,
18

5
$

 
23

22
-0

00
5

Au
to

m
at

ic
 P

as
se

ng
er

 C
ou

nt
er

s 
(A

PC
s)

 
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
55

,0
00

$ 
 

   
55

,0
00

$ 
 

   

24
23

-0
00

1
44

 H
FC

Bs
: $

1.
4M

/B
us

 (T
IR

C
P,

LP
P,

BR
F,

VW
,F

TA
 5

33
9 

a 
& 

b 
+ 

H
VI

P:
 $

24
0K

/B
us

) F
Y

2
5

: 
2

2
 B

u
s
e

s
; 

F
Y

2
6

: 
2

2
 B

u
s
e

s
)

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

25
24

-0
00

4
10

 C
N

G
 A

R
TI

C
S 

(B
R

F:
 M

ea
su

re
 D

 )
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
 

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
 

26
24

-0
01

5
9 

H
FC

Bs
: $

2.
13

M
/B

us
 (F

TA
 F

Y2
3 

53
39

c 
Lo

w
-N

o,
 V

W
G

ra
nt

, B
R

F:
 S

G
R

, H
VI

P:
$2

40
K

/B
us

)
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
27

24
-0

01
7

15
 4

0'
 C

N
G

 G
ill

ig
 B

us
es

 (R
iv

er
si

de
 T

ra
ns

it)
 

1,
35

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

1,
35

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

 
Su

bt
ot

al
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
30

2,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

3,
39

7,
19

6
$

  
55

,0
00

$
 

3,
75

4,
19

6
$

  

B
U

S 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

FU
N

D
$3

M
 P

ER
 Y

EA
R

 (M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 +
 

SB
1 

ST
A

&
SG

R
)

1/
16

/2
02

4
1

FY
24

  C
ap

ita
l B

ud
ge

t P
or

tfo
lio

 - 
 R

ev
is

ed
 0

1-
26

-2
02

4

Attachment B

10.9B.1



SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 T

R
AN

SI
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T
FY

24
 R

EV
IS

ED
 C

AP
IT

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

/P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 - 

AN
TI

C
IP

AT
ED

 S
PE

N
D

IN
G

 
AS

 O
F 

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
26

, 2
02

4

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

  

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

T/
A

C
TI

VI
TY

FE
D

ER
A

L
FU

N
D

S
TI

R
C

P
ST

IP
LC

TO
P

LP
P

VW
 G

R
A

N
T

PG
&

E 
R

EB
A

TE
S 

&
 

M
B

A
R

D
 

ST
A

-S
G

R
(S

B
 1

)

M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 
(X

FR
 F

R
O

M
 

O
PE

R
 B

U
D

G
ET

)

O
PE

R
AT

IN
G

 &
 

C
AP

IT
AL

 
R

ES
ER

VE
 F

U
N

D
TO

TA
L

B
U

S 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

FU
N

D
$3

M
 P

ER
 Y

EA
R

 (M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 +
 

SB
1 

ST
A

&
SG

R
)

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 P
ur

ch
as

es
, R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 &
 C

am
pa

ig
ns

-F
le

et
 E

le
ct

rif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

ts

28
19

-0
03

7

4 
ZE

Bs
 &

 4
 C

ha
rg

er
s 

- H
ig

hw
ay

 1
7 

(F
TA

 5
33

9c
 F

Y1
6,

 
M

ea
su

re
 D

, H
VI

P:
 $

48
0K

; P
G

&E
 R

eb
at

es
: $

9K
/B

us
 &

 
$2

5K
/C

ha
rg

er
)

0
$

  
13

6,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

13
6,

00
0

$
 

29
19

-0
04

1
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 J
KS

 F
ac

ili
ty

-Z
EB

 Y
ar

d 
C

ha
rg

in
g

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e
23

8,
63

9
$

 
23

8,
63

9
$

 

30
23

-0
00

3
1 

ZE
B 

& 
C

ha
rg

er
 (F

Y2
0 

LC
TO

P+
In

te
re

st
+H

VI
P:

 $
13

8K
+ 

PG
&E

 R
eb

at
es

: $
9K

/B
us

 &
 $

25
K/

C
ha

rg
er

 )
-

$
 

34
,0

00
$

 
34

,0
00

$
 

Su
bt

ot
al

0
$

  
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

17
0,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

23
8,

63
9

$
 

40
8,

63
9

$
 

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 P
ur

ch
as

es
 &

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts

31
21

-0
00

6
Se

rv
ic

e 
Tr

uc
k 

(F
TA

 5
33

9a
 F

Y2
0)

14
,2

46
$ 

 
   

8,
50

0
$ 

 
   

22
,7

46
$ 

 
   

Su
bt

ot
al

14
,2

46
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
8,

50
0

$
 

22
,7

46
$

 

Fl
ee

t &
 M

ai
nt

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

32
21

-0
00

4
G

ol
f C

lu
b 

Pa
rt 

W
as

he
rs

 (F
TA

 5
33

9a
 F

Y2
0 

+ 
R

es
er

ve
s)

80
,0

00
$ 

 
   

10
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
18

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

Su
bt

ot
al

80
,0

00
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
10

0,
00

0
$

 
18

0,
00

0
$

 

O
ffi

ce
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  

Su
bt

ot
al

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

M
is

c.

33
23

-0
00

4
M

is
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

on
tin

ge
nc

y-
$8

00
K 

- 1
1/

15
/1

9 
BO

D
+$

10
0K

 
5/

21
/2

02
1+

$1
M

 0
3/

25
/2

02
2

28
1,

53
9

$
 

28
1,

53
9

$
 

34
24

-0
00

5
Se

cu
rit

y 
U

pg
ra

de
 (s

er
ve

rs
 +

 c
am

er
as

 a
ll 

si
te

s)
20

0,
00

0
$

 
20

0,
00

0
$

 

35
24

-0
00

8
O

ffi
ce

 F
ur

ni
tu

re
 - 

Fi
na

nc
e 

(2
 +

 w
or

ks
ta

tio
ns

); 
O

PS
-

M
as

sa
ge

 C
ha

irs
:$

8K
38

,0
00

$
 

38
,0

00
$

 
36

24
-0

01
1

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
Tr

ai
le

r &
 W

ra
p 

fo
r T

ra
ile

r 
21

,0
00

$ 
 

   
21

,0
00

$ 
 

   
37

24
-0

01
6

Bl
ac

k 
Bo

xe
s 

fo
r P

C
 - 

de
sk

to
p 

45
,0

00
$ 

 
   

45
,0

00
$ 

 
   

Su
bt

ot
al

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
58

5,
53

9
$

 
58

5,
53

9
$

 

TO
TA

L 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TS
32

9,
57

4
$

 
14

,9
75

,0
00

$ 
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
30

2,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

17
0,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
7,

37
2,

87
4

$
  

7,
44

5,
38

6
$

  
30

,5
94

,8
34

$
  

1/
16

/2
02

4
2

FY
24

  C
ap

ita
l B

ud
ge

t P
or

tfo
lio

 - 
 R

ev
is

ed
 0

1-
26

-2
02

4

Attachment B

10.9B.2



SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 T

R
AN

SI
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T
FY

24
 R

EV
IS

ED
 C

AP
IT

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

/P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 - 

AN
TI

C
IP

AT
ED

 S
PE

N
D

IN
G

 
AS

 O
F 

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
26

, 2
02

4

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

  

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

T/
A

C
TI

VI
TY

FE
D

ER
A

L
FU

N
D

S
TI

R
C

P
ST

IP
LC

TO
P

LP
P

VW
 G

R
A

N
T

PG
&

E 
R

EB
A

TE
S 

&
 

M
B

A
R

D
 

ST
A

-S
G

R
(S

B
 1

)

M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 
(X

FR
 F

R
O

M
 

O
PE

R
 B

U
D

G
ET

)

O
PE

R
AT

IN
G

 &
 

C
AP

IT
AL

 
R

ES
ER

VE
 F

U
N

D
TO

TA
L

B
U

S 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

FU
N

D
$3

M
 P

ER
 Y

EA
R

 (M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 +
 

SB
1 

ST
A

&
SG

R
)

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
 

Fe
de

ra
l S

ou
rc

es
 o

f F
un

ds
:

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

s 
(F

TA
)

32
9,

57
4

$
 

32
9,

57
4

$
 

-
$ 

 
  

U
SD

O
T 

20
22

 M
ul

tim
od

al
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 G

ra
nt

 (M
PD

-
$ 

  
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

St
at

e 
/O

th
er

  S
ou

rc
es

 o
f F

un
ds

:
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

St
at

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 (S

TI
P)

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  -

$ 
 

  
Lo

w
 C

ar
bo

n 
Tr

an
si

t O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 P

ro
gr

am
 (L

C
TO

P)
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

Lo
ca

l P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

 (L
PP

)
30

2,
00

0
$ 

 
   

30
2,

00
0

$ 
 

   
-

$
 

St
at

e 
Tr

an
si

t A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

(S
TA

)-
Pr

io
r Y

ea
rs

-
$ 

 
  -

$ 
 

  
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

fro
m

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Bu

dg
et

 (S
TA

-S
B1

)
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

ST
A-

SG
R

 (S
B1

)
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
fro

m
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Bu
dg

et
 (M

ea
su

re
 D

)
7,

37
2,

87
4

$ 
   

  
7,

37
2,

87
4

$ 
 

   
 

-
$ 

 
  

TI
R

C
P

14
,9

75
,0

00
$ 

   
 

14
,9

75
,0

00
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

 
  

VW
 G

R
AN

T 
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

PG
&E

 R
EB

AT
ES

 &
 M

BA
R

D
 

17
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
17

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

-
$ 

 
  

Lo
ca

l S
ou

rc
es

 o
f F

un
ds

:
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
an

d 
C

ap
ita

l R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d
7,

44
5,

38
6

$ 
   

  
7,

44
5,

38
6

$ 
 

   
 

TO
TA

L 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

FU
N

D
IN

G
 B

Y 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
E

32
9,

57
4

$
 

14
,9

75
,0

00
$ 

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

30
2,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
17

0,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

7,
37

2,
87

4
$

  
7,

44
5,

38
6

$
  

30
,5

94
,8

34
$

  

R
es

tri
ct

ed
 F

un
ds

32
9,

57
4

$ 
 

   
14

,9
75

,0
00

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
30

2,
00

0
$ 

 
   

-
$ 

 
  

17
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
-

$ 
 

  
7,

37
2,

87
4

$ 
   

  
23

,1
49

,4
48

$ 
   

  

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 F
un

ds
7,

44
5,

38
6

$ 
   

  
7,

44
5,

38
6

$ 
 

   
 

TO
TA

L 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

FU
N

D
IN

G
32

9,
57

4
$

 
14

,9
75

,0
00

$ 
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
30

2,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

17
0,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
7,

37
2,

87
4

$
  

7,
44

5,
38

6
$

  
30

,5
94

,8
34

$
  

* 
N

O
TE

: T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
lis

te
d 

he
re

 re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 a
w

ar
de

d 
gr

an
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

w
ill

 n
ot

 e
qu

al
 th

e 
$3

M
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
Bu

s 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t F

un
d 

in
 a

ny
 g

iv
en

 y
ea

r. 

1/
16

/2
02

4
3

FY
24

  C
ap

ita
l B

ud
ge

t P
or

tfo
lio

 - 
 R

ev
is

ed
 0

1-
26

-2
02

4

Attachment B

10.9B.3



SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 T

R
AN

SI
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T
FY

24
 R

EV
IS

ED
 C

AP
IT

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

/P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
AS

 O
F 

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
26

, 2
02

4

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

  

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

T/
A

C
TI

VI
TY

FE
D

ER
A

L
FU

N
D

S
TI

R
C

P
ST

IP
LC

TO
P

LP
P

VW
 G

R
A

N
T

PG
&

E 
R

EB
A

TE
S 

&
 

M
B

A
R

D
 

ST
A

-S
G

R
(S

B
 1

)

M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 
(X

FR
 F

R
O

M
 

O
PE

R
 B

U
D

G
ET

)

O
PE

R
AT

IN
G

 &
 

C
AP

IT
AL

 
R

ES
ER

VE
 F

U
N

D
TO

TA
L

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
R

el
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
s

1
19

-0
00

1
N

ew
 M

ET
R

O
 O

w
ne

d 
Pa

ra
cr

uz
 F

ac
ili

ty
-F

Y2
0 

LP
P 

(G
ra

nt
 

M
at

ch
 fo

r 5
33

9(
b)

)
2,

03
2,

76
0

$
  

2,
03

2,
76

0
$

  
2

19
-0

00
2

Pa
ci

fic
 S

ta
tio

n/
M

et
ro

 C
en

te
r R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
/ C

ity
 o

f S
C

 
50

0,
00

0
$

 
3,

97
5,

67
8

$
  

-
$

 
4,

47
5,

67
8

$
  

3
24

-0
00

1
Sc

ot
ts

 V
al

le
y 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r R
oo

f R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
10

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

10
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
4

23
-0

01
0

R
ap

id
 B

us
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 - 
So

qu
el

 D
riv

e 
& 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 C
or

rid
or

 
5,

10
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
4,

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
9,

50
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
 

5
24

-0
00

9
W

at
so

nv
ill

e 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Lo

t (
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

& 
Bu

ild
in

gs
) 

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  

1,
50

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

1,
50

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

 
6

24
-0

01
4

W
at

so
nv

ill
e 

St
at

io
n 

R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

8,
50

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

-
$ 

 
  

8,
50

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

 
7

23
-0

00
5b

N
ew

 H
yd

ro
ge

n 
Fu

el
in

g 
St

at
io

n 
+ 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t 
-

$ 
 

  
8,

95
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
3,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
11

,9
50

,0
00

$ 
   

  
Su

bt
ot

al
-

$
 

23
,0

50
,0

00
$ 

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

3,
97

5,
67

8
$

  
11

,0
32

,7
60

$ 
   

38
,0

58
,4

38
$

  

IT
 P

ro
je

ct
s

8
19

-0
00

4
ER

P 
C

on
su

lta
nt

 &
 S

ys
te

m
2,

61
6,

03
0

$ 
   

  
2,

61
6,

03
0

$ 
 

   
 

9
24

-0
00

2
W

eb
 S

ite
 U

pg
ra

de
 

25
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
25

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

10
24

-0
01

3
In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ic

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
Sc

he
du

le
 O

pt
im

iz
at

io
n 

37
5,

00
0

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
37

5,
00

0
$ 

 
   

Su
bt

ot
al

-
$

 
37

5,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

2,
86

6,
03

0
$

  
3,

24
1,

03
0

$
  

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
U

pg
ra

de
s 

&
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

11
19

-0
00

6
M

ai
nt

 Y
ar

d-
Se

cu
rit

y 
H

ar
de

ni
ng

/E
xp

an
de

d 
Pa

rk
in

g
21

5,
10

5
$ 

 
   

21
5,

10
5

$ 
 

   
12

19
-0

00
6c

Au
to

m
at

ed
 g

at
es

 (B
ay

 1
1 

& 
R

ou
te

 4
) D

es
ig

n 
& 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

10
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
10

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

13
19

-0
00

6d
H

VA
C

 B
ay

 1
1 

D
es

ig
n 

& 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
10

3,
12

7
$ 

 
   

10
3,

12
7

$ 
 

   
14

19
-0

01
3

JK
S 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

- U
pp

er
 S

ec
ur

ity
 G

at
es

 (R
es

er
ve

s)
-

$ 
 

  
19

5,
49

2
$ 

 
   

19
5,

49
2

$ 
 

   
15

19
-0

02
0

Ad
m

in
 B

ld
g.

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

& 
R

en
ov

at
io

ns
20

,0
00

$ 
 

   
20

,0
00

$ 
 

   
16

19
-0

01
8a

Aw
ni

ng
 @

 F
ue

lin
g 

St
at

io
n 

- C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

(F
TA

 5
33

9a
 F

Y2
23

5,
32

8
$ 

 
   

-
$ 

 
  

23
5,

32
8

$ 
 

   
17

23
-0

00
5c

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 F
ac

ili
ty

 U
pg

ra
de

s
-

$
 

1,
50

0,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

1,
50

0,
00

0
$

  
18

24
-0

00
3

Tr
ai

le
r m

ou
nt

ed
 h

ot
 w

at
er

 h
ig

h 
pr

es
su

re
 w

as
he

r s
ys

te
m

-
$

 
55

,0
00

$
 

55
,0

00
$

 
19

24
-0

01
0

12
 B

us
 S

he
lte

rs
 ($

25
K/

sh
el

te
r)

-
$

 
30

0,
00

0
$

 
30

0,
00

0
$

 
Su

bt
ot

al
23

5,
32

8
$

 
1,

50
0,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
98

8,
72

4
$

 
2,

72
4,

05
2

$
  

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 P
ur

ch
as

es
, R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 &
 C

am
pa

ig
ns

20
19

-0
02

7
FY

18
 S

TI
P 

- A
VL

/IT
S 

(S
TI

P,
 M

ea
su

re
 D

)
-

$ 
 

  
23

8,
01

1
$ 

 
   

-
$ 

 
  

23
8,

01
1

$ 
 

   
21

20
-0

00
1

7 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t P

ar
ac

ru
z 

Va
ns

 (F
Y1

9 
LP

P,
 M

ea
su

re
 D

)
30

2,
00

0
$ 

 
   

69
2,

00
0

$ 
 

   
99

4,
00

0
$ 

 
   

22
19

-0
03

2
3 

N
ew

 F
ly

er
 R

ep
l. 

C
ap

ita
l L

ea
se

 - 
Ye

ar
 4

 o
f 6

 P
rin

 O
nl

y 
-

(M
ea

su
re

 D
) I

nt
er

es
t f

un
de

d 
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Bu

dg
et

 $
32

K
11

7,
18

5
$

 
11

7,
18

5
$

 
23

22
-0

00
5

Au
to

m
at

ic
 P

as
se

ng
er

 C
ou

nt
er

s 
(A

PC
s)

 
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
55

,0
00

$ 
 

   
55

,0
00

$ 
 

   

24
23

-0
00

1
44

 H
FC

Bs
: $

1.
4M

/B
us

 (T
IR

C
P,

LP
P,

BR
F,

VW
,F

TA
 5

33
9 

a 
& 

b 
+ 

H
VI

P:
 $

24
0K

/B
us

) F
Y

2
5

: 
2

2
 B

u
s
e

s
; 

F
Y

2
6

: 
2

2
 B

u
s
e

s
)

16
,2

63
,0

50
$ 

   
13

,0
20

,0
00

$ 
   

 
-

$
 

91
8,

00
0

$
 

20
,6

40
,0

00
$ 

   
1,

14
2,

96
2

$
  

91
8,

00
0

$
 

52
,9

02
,0

12
$

  
25

24
-0

00
4

10
 C

N
G

 A
R

TI
C

S 
(B

R
F:

 M
ea

su
re

 D
 )

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

 
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

 

26
24

-0
01

5
9 

H
FC

Bs
: $

2.
13

M
/B

us
 (F

TA
 F

Y2
3 

53
39

c 
Lo

w
-N

o,
 V

W
G

ra
nt

, B
R

F:
 S

G
R

, H
VI

P:
$2

40
K

/B
us

)
11

,8
98

,9
00

$ 
   

4,
32

0,
00

0
$

  
2,

97
2,

76
6

$
  

-
$

 
-

$
 

19
,1

91
,6

66
$

  
27

24
-0

01
7

15
 4

0'
 C

N
G

 G
ill

ig
 B

us
es

 (R
iv

er
si

de
 T

ra
ns

it)
 

1,
35

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

1,
35

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

 
Su

bt
ot

al
28

,1
61

,9
50

$ 
   

13
,0

20
,0

00
$ 

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

1,
22

0,
00

0
$

  
24

,9
60

,0
00

$ 
   

-
$

 
4,

11
5,

72
8

$
  

4,
31

5,
19

6
$

  
55

,0
00

$
 

75
,8

47
,8

74
$

  

B
U

S 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

FU
N

D
$3

M
 P

ER
 Y

EA
R

 (M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 +
 

SB
1 

ST
A

&
SG

R
)

1/
16

/2
02

4
4

FY
24

  C
ap

ita
l B

ud
ge

t P
or

tfo
lio

 - 
 R

ev
is

ed
 0

1-
26

-2
02

4

Attachment B

10.9B.4



SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 T

R
AN

SI
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T
FY

24
 R

EV
IS

ED
 C

AP
IT

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

/P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
AS

 O
F 

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
26

, 2
02

4

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

  

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

T/
A

C
TI

VI
TY

FE
D

ER
A

L
FU

N
D

S
TI

R
C

P
ST

IP
LC

TO
P

LP
P

VW
 G

R
A

N
T

PG
&

E 
R

EB
A

TE
S 

&
 

M
B

A
R

D
 

ST
A

-S
G

R
(S

B
 1

)

M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 
(X

FR
 F

R
O

M
 

O
PE

R
 B

U
D

G
ET

)

O
PE

R
AT

IN
G

 &
 

C
AP

IT
AL

 
R

ES
ER

VE
 F

U
N

D
TO

TA
L

B
U

S 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

FU
N

D
$3

M
 P

ER
 Y

EA
R

 (M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 +
 

SB
1 

ST
A

&
SG

R
)

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 P
ur

ch
as

es
, R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 &
 C

am
pa

ig
ns

-F
le

et
 E

le
ct

rif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

ts

28
19

-0
03

7

4 
ZE

Bs
 &

 4
 C

ha
rg

er
s 

- H
ig

hw
ay

 1
7 

(F
TA

 5
33

9c
 F

Y1
6,

 
M

ea
su

re
 D

, H
VI

P:
 $

48
0K

; P
G

&E
 R

eb
at

es
: $

9K
/B

us
 &

 
$2

5K
/C

ha
rg

er
)

0
$

  
13

6,
00

0
$

 
-

$
 

13
6,

00
0

$
 

29
19

-0
04

1
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 J
KS

 F
ac

ili
ty

-Z
EB

 Y
ar

d 
C

ha
rg

in
g

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e
23

8,
63

9
$

 
23

8,
63

9
$

 

30
23

-0
00

3
1 

ZE
B 

& 
C

ha
rg

er
 (F

Y2
0 

LC
TO

P+
In

te
re

st
+H

VI
P:

 $
13

8K
+ 

PG
&E

 R
eb

at
es

: $
9K

/B
us

 &
 $

25
K/

C
ha

rg
er

 )
-

$
 

34
,0

00
$

 
34

,0
00

$
 

Su
bt

ot
al

0
$

  
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

17
0,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

23
8,

63
9

$
 

40
8,

63
9

$
 

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 P
ur

ch
as

es
 &

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts

31
21

-0
00

6
Se

rv
ic

e 
Tr

uc
k 

(F
TA

 5
33

9a
 F

Y2
0)

14
,2

46
$ 

 
   

8,
50

0
$ 

 
   

22
,7

46
$ 

 
   

Su
bt

ot
al

14
,2

46
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
8,

50
0

$
 

22
,7

46
$

 

Fl
ee

t &
 M

ai
nt

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

32
21

-0
00

4
G

ol
f C

lu
b 

Pa
rt 

W
as

he
rs

 (F
TA

 5
33

9a
 F

Y2
0 

+ 
R

es
er

ve
s)

80
,0

00
$ 

 
   

10
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
18

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

Su
bt

ot
al

80
,0

00
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
10

0,
00

0
$

 
18

0,
00

0
$

 

O
ffi

ce
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  

Su
bt

ot
al

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

M
is

c.

33
23

-0
00

4
M

is
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

on
tin

ge
nc

y-
$8

00
K 

- 1
1/

15
/1

9 
BO

D
+$

10
0K

 
5/

21
/2

02
1+

$1
M

 0
3/

25
/2

02
2

28
1,

53
9

$
 

28
1,

53
9

$
 

34
24

-0
00

5
Se

cu
rit

y 
U

pg
ra

de
 (s

er
ve

rs
 +

 c
am

er
as

 a
ll 

si
te

s)
20

0,
00

0
$

 
20

0,
00

0
$

 

35
24

-0
00

8
O

ffi
ce

 F
ur

ni
tu

re
 - 

Fi
na

nc
e 

(2
 +

 w
or

ks
ta

tio
ns

); 
O

PS
-

M
as

sa
ge

 C
ha

irs
:$

8K
38

,0
00

$
 

38
,0

00
$

 
36

24
-0

01
1

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
Tr

ai
le

r &
 W

ra
p 

fo
r T

ra
ile

r 
21

,0
00

$ 
 

   
21

,0
00

$ 
 

   
37

24
-0

01
6

Bl
ac

k 
Bo

xe
s 

fo
r P

C
 - 

de
sk

to
p 

45
,0

00
$ 

 
   

45
,0

00
$ 

 
   

Su
bt

ot
al

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
58

5,
53

9
$

 
58

5,
53

9
$

 

TO
TA

L 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TS
28

,4
91

,5
24

$ 
   

37
,9

45
,0

00
$ 

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

1,
22

0,
00

0
$

  
24

,9
60

,0
00

$ 
   

17
0,

00
0

$
 

4,
11

5,
72

8
$

  
8,

29
0,

87
4

$
  

15
,8

75
,1

91
$ 

   
12

1,
06

8,
31

7
$ 

   

1/
16

/2
02

4
5

FY
24

  C
ap

ita
l B

ud
ge

t P
or

tfo
lio

 - 
 R

ev
is

ed
 0

1-
26

-2
02

4

Attachment B

10.9B.5



SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 T

R
AN

SI
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T
FY

24
 R

EV
IS

ED
 C

AP
IT

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

/P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
AS

 O
F 

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
26

, 2
02

4

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

  

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

T/
A

C
TI

VI
TY

FE
D

ER
A

L
FU

N
D

S
TI

R
C

P
ST

IP
LC

TO
P

LP
P

VW
 G

R
A

N
T

PG
&

E 
R

EB
A

TE
S 

&
 

M
B

A
R

D
 

ST
A

-S
G

R
(S

B
 1

)

M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 
(X

FR
 F

R
O

M
 

O
PE

R
 B

U
D

G
ET

)

O
PE

R
AT

IN
G

 &
 

C
AP

IT
AL

 
R

ES
ER

VE
 F

U
N

D
TO

TA
L

B
U

S 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

FU
N

D
$3

M
 P

ER
 Y

EA
R

 (M
EA

SU
R

E 
D

 +
 

SB
1 

ST
A

&
SG

R
)

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
 

Fe
de

ra
l S

ou
rc

es
 o

f F
un

ds
:

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

s 
(F

TA
)

23
,6

91
,5

24
$ 

   
23

,6
91

,5
24

$
  

-
$ 

 
  

U
SD

O
T 

20
22

 M
ul

tim
od

al
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 G

ra
nt

 (M
PD

G
)

4,
80

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

4,
80

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

 
-

$ 
 

  
St

at
e 

/O
th

er
  S

ou
rc

es
 o

f F
un

ds
:

-
$ 

 
  -

$ 
 

  
St

at
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 (S
TI

P)
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

Lo
w

 C
ar

bo
n 

Tr
an

si
t O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 P
ro

gr
am

 (L
C

TO
P)

-
$ 

 
  

-
$ 

 
  -

$ 
 

  
Lo

ca
l P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

ro
gr

am
 (L

PP
)

1,
22

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

 
1,

22
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
 

-
$

 
St

at
e 

Tr
an

si
t A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
(S

TA
)-

Pr
io

r Y
ea

rs
-

$ 
 

  -
$ 

 
  

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
fro

m
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Bu
dg

et
 (S

TA
-S

B1
)

-
$ 

 
  -

$ 
 

  
ST

A-
SG

R
 (S

B1
)

4,
11

5,
72

8
$ 

   
  

4,
11

5,
72

8
$ 

 
   

 
-

$ 
 

  
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

fro
m

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Bu

dg
et

 (M
ea

su
re

 D
)

8,
29

0,
87

4
$ 

   
  

8,
29

0,
87

4
$ 

 
   

 
-

$ 
 

  
TI

R
C

P
37

,9
45

,0
00

$ 
   

 
37

,9
45

,0
00

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
 

  
VW

 G
R

AN
T 

24
,9

60
,0

00
$ 

   
24

,9
60

,0
00

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
 

  
PG

&E
 R

EB
AT

ES
 &

 M
BA

R
D

 
17

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

17
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
-

$ 
 

  
Lo

ca
l S

ou
rc

es
 o

f F
un

ds
:

-
$ 

 
  -

$ 
 

  
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

an
d 

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
 F

un
d

15
,8

75
,1

91
$ 

   
15

,8
75

,1
91

$ 
   

  

TO
TA

L 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

FU
N

D
IN

G
 B

Y 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
E

28
,4

91
,5

24
$ 

   
37

,9
45

,0
00

$ 
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
1,

22
0,

00
0

$
  

24
,9

60
,0

00
$ 

   
17

0,
00

0
$

 
4,

11
5,

72
8

$
  

8,
29

0,
87

4
$

  
15

,8
75

,1
91

$ 
   

12
1,

06
8,

31
7

$ 
   

R
es

tri
ct

ed
 F

un
ds

28
,4

91
,5

24
$ 

   
37

,9
45

,0
00

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
 

  
-

$ 
 

  
1,

22
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
 

24
,9

60
,0

00
$ 

   
17

0,
00

0
$ 

 
   

4,
11

5,
72

8
$ 

   
  

8,
29

0,
87

4
$ 

   
  

10
5,

19
3,

12
6

$ 
   

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 F
un

ds
15

,8
75

,1
91

$ 
   

15
,8

75
,1

91
$ 

   
  

TO
TA

L 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

FU
N

D
IN

G
28

,4
91

,5
24

$ 
   

37
,9

45
,0

00
$ 

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

1,
22

0,
00

0
$

  
24

,9
60

,0
00

$ 
   

17
0,

00
0

$
 

4,
11

5,
72

8
$

  
8,

29
0,

87
4

$
  

15
,8

75
,1

91
$ 

   
12

1,
06

8,
31

7
$ 

   

* 
N

O
TE

: T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
lis

te
d 

he
re

 re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 a
w

ar
de

d 
gr

an
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

w
ill

 n
ot

 e
qu

al
 th

e 
$3

M
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
Bu

s 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t F

un
d 

in
 a

ny
 g

iv
en

 y
ea

r. 

1/
16

/2
02

4
6

FY
24

  C
ap

ita
l B

ud
ge

t P
or

tfo
lio

 - 
 R

ev
is

ed
 0

1-
26

-2
02

4

Attachment B

10.9B.6



FY24 CAPITAL BUDGET/PORTFOLIO 
RECONCILIATION BY PROJECT

AS OF JANUARY 26, 2024- 1st REVISION

FY24 FINAL CAPITAL BUDGET/PORTFOLIO ADOPTED JUNE 23, 2023: 83,081,176$    

CAPITAL PROJECT PJT# SOURCE AMOUNT TOTAL

Revise Project Budget Balance: Multiple Projects 19-0001 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE (7,164)$    
19-0002 MEASURE D (14,930)$    
19-0004 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE 54$    
19-0006 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE 31,622$    
19-0006d OP & CAPITAL RESERVE (17,220)$    
19-0027 MEASURE D (183,757)$    

PG&E REBATES 136,000$    
MEASURE D

19-0041 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE 8,127$    
FTA 14,246$    

OP & CAPITAL RESERVE 8,500$    
23-0004 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE (61,814)$    
22-0005 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE 55,000$    
23-0003 PG&E REBATES 34,000$    

FTA 80,000$    
OP & CAPITAL RESERVE 100,000$    

24-0007 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE (2,200)$    
24-0008 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE 23,000$    

Reason: Adjust available budget based on prior year spending + new 
requests (24-0008 Massage Chairs & Additional Office Equipment)

Change Project Scope & Description and Adjust & Add Funding 
Sources: 44 HFCBs: $1.4M/Bus (TIRCP,LPP,BRF,VW,FTA 5339 a & b 
+ HVIP: $240K/Bus) FY25: 22 Buses; FY26: 22 Buses) 23-0001 LPP 18,000$    

MPDG 4,800,000$    
FTA 5339a 1,500,000$    

FTA 5339 Discretionary Caltrans 1,980,000$    
FTA 5339c FY23 Low & No-Emiss 7,983,050$    

VW Grant 20,640,000$     
BRF: Measure D 918,000$    

BRF: SGR  1,142,962$    

Reason: Description change due to change in scope; Additional Funding 
Sources Available 

Remove Projects: 23-0001a & 23-0008, 24-0006 23-0001a TA 5339 Discretionary Caltrans (1,680,000)$   
MPDG (4,800,000)$    

VW Grant (2,000,000)$    
BRF: SGR  (1,300,000)$    

BRF: Measure D  (5,340,000)$    
23-0008 VW Grant (1,200,000)$    

BRF: Measure D (1,000,000)$    
BRF: SGR  (2,000,000)$    

24-0006 OP & CAPITAL RESERVE (100,000)$    

Reason: Projects 23-0001a is combined with project 23-0001; 23-0008 and 24-0006 have been canceled

Change Project Scope & Description and Adjust & Add Funding 
Sources:  9 HFCBs: $2.13M/Bus (FTA FY23 5339c Low-No, VW Grant, 
BRF: SGR, HVIP:$240K/Bus) 24-0015 FTA 5339a (1,024,778)$    

FTA 5339c FY23 Low & No-Emiss 11,898,900$     
VW Grant 4,320,000$    

BRF: SGR  1,677,544$    

Reason: Description change due to change in scope; Additional Funding 
Sources Available 

19-0037

21-0006

21-0004

01-26-2024 FY24 Capital Budget Revisions Template-Attachment C 1

Attachment C

10.9C.1



FY24 CAPITAL BUDGET/PORTFOLIO 
RECONCILIATION BY PROJECT

AS OF JANUARY 26, 2024- 1st REVISION

CAPITAL PROJECT PJT# SOURCE AMOUNT TOTAL

Add project: 24-0016 Black Boxes for PC - desktop 24-0016
OP & CAPITAL RESERVE _ 

Misc. Contingency 35,000$    

Transfer Funds: Funds needed for new project 23-0004
OP & CAPITAL RESERVE _ 

Misc. Contingency (35,000)$    

Reason: System upgrade required new equipment 

Add project: 24-0017 15 40' CNG Gillig Buses (Riverside Transit) 24-0017 BRF: Measure D 1,350,000$    

Reason: New Project (due to service expansion) 

37,987,142$     

FUNDING SUMMARY:

OP & CAPITAL RESERVE 37,905$    
FTA 20,751,418$     

LCTOP -$    
LPP 18,000$    

MEASURE D (4,270,687)$    
VW GRANT 21,760,000$     

MBARD -$    
TIRCP -$    

STA-SGR (479,494)$    
PG$E REBATES 170,000$    

CTC SB1 SCC GRANT -$    
TOTAL CAPITAL BUDGET REVISIONS THROUGH 01/26/24: STIP -$   37,987,142$   

FY24 REVISED CAPITAL BUDGET/PORTFOLIO AS OF JANUARY 26, 2024: 121,068,317$    

01-26-2024 FY24 Capital Budget Revisions Template-Attachment C 2

Attachment C

10.9C.2



 

DATE: January 26, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Margo Ross, Chief Operations Officer  

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING THE CEO/GENERAL MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE A 4TH CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH CLEVER DEVICES 
LTD. TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT TOTAL BY $402,750 FOR ITS AND 
APC RETROFIT OF 15 BUSES 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Board of Directors (Board) authorize the CEO/General Manager to 
execute a 4th contract amendment with Clever Devices Ltd. to increase the 
contract total by $402,750 for Intelligent Transit System and Automated 
Passenger Counter Retrofit of 15 buses, thereby increasing the total contract 
authority from $2,487,957 to $2,890,707. 

II. SUMMARY 

• The Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) has contracted with 
Clever Devices Ltd. (Clever Devices) for an Intelligent Transportation System 
(ITS) and Automated Passenger Counters (APC) on its buses. 

• METRO has recently acquired fifteen 40’ Gillig buses from Riverside Transit 
Agency. 

• These buses will need to be retrofitted with the installation of ITS and APC 
systems that are compatible with the rest of METRO’s fleet before they are 
ready for service. 

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND 

METRO has contracted with Clever Devices for purchase and installation of ITS 
and APC on its buses.  On September 22, 2023, the Board authorized the 
expenditure of $300,342 with Clever Devices for an ITS and APC retrofit of ten 
articulated buses acquired from the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System. Now, 
METRO has acquired fifteen 40’ Gillig buses from Riverside Transit Agency, and 
these buses also require an ITS and APC retrofit.  

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the CEO/General Manager to execute 
a fourth contract amendment on behalf of METRO with Clever Devices for this 15-
bus retrofit.  Isaac Holly, IT and ITS Director, will continue to serve as the Contract 
Administrator and will ensure contract compliance. 

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
Transit District 

 

10.10.1



Board of Directors  
January 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Clever Devices Amendment for 15-Bus Retrofit 

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This amendment would align with the following Strategic Priorities: 

• Service Quality and Delivery 
• Internal and External Technology 

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

The required funding in the amount of $402,750 is included in the Revised FY24 
Capital Budget Portfolio and the funding source is Measure D (Bus Replacement 
fund). 

Adding this amount to the contract with Clever Devices will increase the not to 
exceed total from $2,487,957 to $2,890,707.   

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE 

N/A  

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

• None 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A: Fourth Amendment to Contract 22-11 with Clever Devices 
 
Prepared by:  Joan Jeffries, Purchasing Manager  

10.10.2



10.10.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



 
20307217.1  

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 
FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT NO. 22-11 

FOR PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF AN INTELLIGENT  
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 

 

This Fourth Amendment to Contract No. 22-11 for Purchase and Installation of an Intelligent 
Transportation System (“ITS”) is made effective January 26, 2024 between the Santa Cruz 
Metropolitan Transit District (“Santa Cruz METRO”), a political subdivision of the State of 
California, and Clever Devices, Ltd. (“Contractor”). 
 

I.  RECITALS 

1.1  Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor entered into a contract for the purchase and 
installation of an ITS (“Contract”) on January 14, 2022. 

1.2  On December 1, 2022, Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor entered into a separate 
contract, No. 23-02, for an Automated Passenger Counter (APC) System. 

1.3  The Contract allows for amendment upon mutual written consent. 

1.4  One February 1, 2022, the Parties amended the Contract to incorporate an updated price 
proposal and to increase the fixed price.  

1.5  On July 1, 2022, the Parties amended the Contract to incorporate the Pricing Quotation for 
SpeakEasy Solution, a public address system, on 96 buses.  

1.6  On November 7, 2023, Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor executed an amendment to the 
Contract which incorporated elements of Contract 23-02 into the Contract, specifically, 
Part III of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, as these elements shall govern the deployment and 
operation of the APC System. 

1.7  Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor now desire to amend the Contract to increase the total 
number of buses upon which the ITS and APC systems are installed and maintained by 15 
buses. 

Therefore, Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor amend the Contract as follows: 
 

II.  INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE LAW 

Article 2, sub-article 2.1(3) is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

3) Exhibit B (Contractor’s Proposal)  

Contractor’s Proposal to Santa Cruz METRO for Purchase and Installation of an 
Intelligent Transportation System, as accepted by Santa Cruz METRO, which 
includes the following:  

• Forms/Licenses/Org Chart 

Attachment A

10.10A.1



20307217.1 2 

• Scope of Work (SOW) and Deliverables, revised January 7, 2022

• Updated Compliance Matrix

• Updated Pricing Proposal dated January 24, 2022

• Hardware Warranty and Software Maintenance Agreement, dated December
13, 2021

• Contractor’s Quote dated March 11, 2022, Attachment A to the Second
Amendment, for purchase and installation of SpeakEasy Solution on 96
buses.

• Contractor’s Quote dated November 13, 2023, Attachment A to the Third
Amendment, to increase the total number of buses on which the ITS and
optional APC system will be installed and maintained by 11 buses.

• Contractor’s Quote dated January 11, 2024, Attachment A to the Fourth
Amendment, to increase the total number of buses on which the ITS and
optional APC systems will be installed and maintained by 15 buses.

• End User License Agreement (Attachment B to the Third Amendment)

III. COMPENSATION

Article 5.1 is amended to add the following language:

Under the terms of the Fourth Amendment, the Contract fixed price is increased by 
$402,750.00.  The new Contract fixed price amount is $2,890,706.79.  Contractor 
understands and agrees that if it exceeds the maximum amount payable under this 
Contract, it does so at its own risk. Contractor will invoice Santa Cruz METRO in 
accordance with the Deliverables-Based Milestone Payment Schedule in Attachment A to 
the Fourth Amendment. 

IV. REMAINING TERMS AND CONDITIONS

All other provisions of the Contract, as previously amended, that are not affected by this Fourth
Amendment shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

V. AUTHORITY

Each party has full power to enter into and perform this Fourth Amendment to the Contract and
the person signing this Fourth Amendment on behalf of each has been properly authorized and
empowered to enter into it.  Each party further acknowledges that it has read this Fourth
Amendment to the Contract, understands it, and agrees to be bound by it.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE 

Attachment A

10.10A.2



 

20307217.1  3 

 
 
Signed on         
 
 
 
 
Santa Cruz METRO –  
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN  
TRANSIT DISTRICT  
 
Michael Tree, CEO/General Manager   
 
 
 
Contractor –  
CLEVER DEVICES, LTD. 
 
Andrew Stanton, Chief Operating Officer/ 
Secretary   
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
Julie Sherman, General Counsel   

Attachment A

10.10A.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. ______ 
On the Motion of Director     
Duly Seconded by Director   
The following Resolution is adopted: 

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF  
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY MEASURE K AND CITY OF SANTA CRUZ MEASURE L 

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2023, the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors 
adopted Resolution No. 215-2023 calling an election for the purpose of submitting a 
countywide measure to raise the retail transactions and use tax (sales tax) in the 
unincorporated area by one-half cent and directing the consolidation of the election with 
the regular election of March 5, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2023, the Santa Cruz City Council adopted 
Resolution No. NS-30,245 calling an election for the purpose of including a ballot measure 
for the City of Santa Cruz to impose a one-half cent sales tax and requesting the 
consolidation with the regular election on March 5, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, according to the sponsors, the ballot measures would provide 
revenue for critical needs such as road repair, emergency response, and expanded 
services for mental health and connecting unhoused persons with resources—significant 
issues impacting Santa Cruz METRO's operations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT, that it hereby supports and 
urges an affirmative vote to the following ballot measure questions: 

Measure K: "To fund essential Santa Cruz County services, including wildfire 
response/prevention/recovery; affordable housing to support working families and 
frontline workers including nurses, emergency responders, and educators; mental 
health crisis programs for children/vulnerable populations; substance abuse 
programs; improved public safety, road maintenance/pothole repair, 
parks/recreation; and programs to reduce homelessness, shall Santa Cruz 
County’s transaction and use tax (sales tax) be increased in unincorporated areas 
by one-half cent, providing approximately $10,000,000 annually, until ended by 
voters?  Yes__ No___" 

Measure L: "To protect and maintain essential services including homelessness 
response/prevention, emergency shelters, case management/connection to 
services; cleaning up/addressing the impacts of encampments; keeping pollution 
out of local rivers, creeks, and streams; supporting local food programs; preparing 
for wildfires; maintaining/repairing streets/potholes; and improving/maintaining 

10.11.1



Resolution # 
Page 2 of 2 

neighborhood parks, beaches, and public safety, shall the City of Santa Cruz 
measure to enact a one-half of one percent sales tax be adopted, raising about 
$8,000,000 annually for general government use until ended by voters?  

Yes__ No___" 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of January 2024, by the following vote: 

AYES: Directors - 

NOES: Directors - 

ABSENT: Directors - 

ABSTAIN: Directors - 

APPROVED 

_______________________________ 
SHEBREH KALANTARI-JOHNSON 
Board Chair 

ATTEST 

 __ 
MICHAEL TREE  
CEO/ General Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

____________________________________ 
JULIE A. SHERMAN 
General Counsel 

10.11.2



10.11.3



10.11.4



11.1



11.2



11.3



11.4



11.5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 
Resolution No.      
On the Motion of Director:     
Duly Seconded by Director:    
The Following Resolution is Adopted:  

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE SERVICES OF  
ANNA MARIE GOUVEIA AS OPERATIONS MANAGER: FIXED ROUTE FOR THE 

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) was formed to 
provide public transportation to all of the residents of Santa Cruz County, and  

 
WHEREAS, the provision of public transportation service requires a competent, 

dedicated workforce, and 
 
WHEREAS, METRO, requiring an employee with expertise and dedication, 

appointed Anna Marie Gouveia to serve in the position of Operations Manager: Fixed 
Route, and 

 
WHEREAS, served as a member of the Operations Department of METRO for the 

time period of August 10, 1987 to December 28, 2023, and 
 
WHEREAS, Anna Marie Gouveia provided METRO with dedicated service and 

commitment during the time of employment, and 
 
WHEREAS, Anna Marie Gouveia served METRO with distinction, and 
 
WHEREAS, the service provided to the residents of Santa Cruz County by Anna 

Marie Gouveia resulted in reliable, quality public transportation being available in the most 
difficult of times, and 

 
WHEREAS, during the time of Ms. Gouveia’s service, METRO improved existing 

and built new operating facilities, converted the fleet to a CNG propulsion system, 
developed accessible bus stops, improved ridership, responded to adverse economic 
conditions, assumed direct operational responsibility for the Highway 17 Express service 
and the Amtrak Connector service, and assumed direct operational responsibility for the 
ParaCruz service, and 

 
WHEREAS, the quality of life in Santa Cruz County was improved dramatically as 

a result of the exemplary service provided by Anna Marie Gouveia. 
 

12.1



Resolution No.     
Page 2 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that upon her retirement as Operations 
Manager: Fixed Route, the Board of Directors of METRO does hereby commend her 
efforts in advancing public transit service in Santa Cruz County and expresses sincere 
appreciation on behalf of itself, the METRO staff and all of the residents of Santa Cruz 
County. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be entered into the 

official records of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th Day of January 2024 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Directors -   
 
NOES: Directors - 
 
ABSTAIN: Directors - 
 
ABSENT: Directors - 
 
 
 
 
Approved: 

Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson   
Board Chair 

 
 
 
Attest: 

Michael Tree   
CEO/General Manager 

 
 
 
Approved as to form: 

Julie Sherman, General Counsel   

12.2



 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 
Resolution No.      
On the Motion of Director:     
Duly Seconded by Director:    
The Following Resolution is Adopted:  

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE SERVICES OF  
MICHAEL PENO AS PARATRANSIT OPERATOR FOR THE  

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) was formed to 
provide public transportation to all of the residents of Santa Cruz County, and  

 
WHEREAS, the provision of public transportation service requires a competent, 

dedicated workforce, and 
 
WHEREAS, METRO, requiring an employee with expertise and dedication, 

appointed Michael Peno to serve in the position of Paratransit Operator, and 
 
WHEREAS, served as a member of the Paratransit Department of METRO for the 

time period of October 22, 2018 to January 2, 2024, and 
 
WHEREAS, Michael Peno provided METRO with dedicated service and 

commitment during the time of employment, and 
 
WHEREAS, Michael Peno served METRO with distinction, and 
 
WHEREAS, the service provided to the residents of Santa Cruz County by Michael 

Peno resulted in reliable, quality public transportation being available in the most difficult 
of times, and 

 
WHEREAS, during the time of Mr. Peno’s service, METRO improved existing and 

built new operating facilities, converted the fleet to a CNG propulsion system, developed 
accessible bus stops, improved ridership, responded to adverse economic conditions, 
assumed direct operational responsibility for the Highway 17 Express service and the 
Amtrak Connector service, and assumed direct operational responsibility for the ParaCruz 
service, and 

 
WHEREAS, the quality of life in Santa Cruz County was improved dramatically as 

a result of the exemplary service provided by Michael Peno. 
 

12.3



Resolution No.     
Page 2 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that upon his retirement as Paratransit 
Operator, the Board of Directors of METRO does hereby commend his efforts in 
advancing public transit service in Santa Cruz County and expresses sincere appreciation 
on behalf of itself, the METRO staff and all of the residents of Santa Cruz County. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be entered into the 

official records of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th Day of January 2024 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Directors -   
 
NOES: Directors - 
 
ABSTAIN: Directors - 
 
ABSENT: Directors - 
 
 
 
 
Approved: 

Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson   
Board Chair 

 
 
 
Attest: 

Michael Tree   
CEO/General Manager 

 
 
 
Approved as to form: 

Julie Sherman, General Counsel   

12.4



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Resolution No.  
On the Motion of Director:   
Duly Seconded by Director:  
The Following Resolution is Adopted: 

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE SERVICES OF  
DAVID VALDEZ AS LEAD VEHICLE SERVICE WORKER FOR THE 

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) was formed to 
provide public transportation to all of the residents of Santa Cruz County, and  

WHEREAS, the provision of public transportation service requires a competent, 
dedicated workforce, and 

WHEREAS, METRO, requiring an employee with expertise and dedication, 
appointed David Valdez to serve in the position of Lead Vehicle Service Worker, and 

WHEREAS, David Valdez served as a member of the Fleet Maintenance 
Department of METRO for the time period of April 18, 1996 to December 29, 2023, and 

WHEREAS, David Valdez provided METRO with dedicated service and 
commitment during the time of his employment, and 

WHEREAS, David Valdez served METRO with distinction, and 

WHEREAS, the service provided to the residents of Santa Cruz County by David 
Valdez resulted in reliable, quality public transportation being available in the most difficult 
of times, and 

WHEREAS, during the time of Mr. Valdez’s service, METRO improved existing 
and built new operating facilities, converted the fleet to a CNG propulsion system, 
developed accessible bus stops, improved ridership, responded to adverse economic 
conditions, assumed direct operational responsibility for the Highway 17 Express service 
and the Amtrak Connector service, and assumed direct operational responsibility for the 
ParaCruz service, and 

WHEREAS, the quality of life in Santa Cruz County was improved dramatically as 
a result of the exemplary service provided by David Valdez. 

12.5



Resolution No.     
Page 2 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that upon his retirement as Lead Vehicle 
Service Worker, the Board of Directors of METRO does hereby commend his efforts in 
advancing public transit service in Santa Cruz County and expresses sincere appreciation 
on behalf of itself, the METRO staff and all of the residents of Santa Cruz County. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be entered into the 

official records of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th Day of January 2024 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Directors -   
 
NOES: Directors - 
 
ABSTAIN: Directors - 
 
ABSENT: Directors - 
 
 
 
 
Approved: 

Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson  
Board Chair   

 
 
Attest: 

Michael Tree  
CEO/General Manager   

 
 
 
Approved as to form: 

Julie Sherman, General Counsel   

12.6



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. ______ 
On the Motion of Director     
Duly Seconded by Director   
The following Resolution is adopted: 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 
TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING ON MARCH 22, 2024 

REGARDING THE REIMAGINE METRO SERVICE PROPOSALS 

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2022, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 
(METRO) Board of Directors (Board) awarded a contract to Jarrett Walker & Associates, 
LLC to analyze METRO’s existing fixed-route network, complete a Bus Network 
Reimagining Plan for near and long-term service improvements, and conduct public 
outreach; and 

WHEREAS, the Board received an update on existing fixed-route network 
conditions and opportunities at its March 24, 2023 Board meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Board received the draft Reimagine METRO Alternatives Report 
after the June 23, 2023 Board meeting, and initiated a public comment period which 
remained open through August 15, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 2, Section 3.2.202 of Title III of METRO's Administrative 
Code provides that the Board will hold a public hearing prior to taking action on a "change 
in 25% or more to the Service of any route;" and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 22, 2023 for Phase I of the 
Reimagine METRO service proposals; and 

WHEREAS, Phase II of the Reimagine METRO service proposals also involve a 
change in 25% or more to the Service of certain routes, thereby requiring another public 
hearing, proposed to be held on March 22, 2024. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT that: 

A Public Hearing shall be held on March 22, 2024, during the 9:00 AM Regular 
METRO Board Meeting regarding the Phase II Reimagine METRO service proposals.  
Public comments shall be solicited prior to and during the hearing as directed by the 
CEO/General Manager.  

13.1



 
 
 
Resolution # 
Page 2 of 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of January 2024, by the following vote: 

AYES: Directors - 

NOES: Directors - 

ABSENT: Directors - 

ABSTAIN: Directors - 

 

 

      APPROVED 

 
 
      _______________________________ 
           SHEBREH KALANTARI-JOHNSON 

Board Chair 
 

 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
 __ 
MICHAEL TREE  
CEO, General Manager 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
JULIE A. SHERMAN 
General Counsel 

13.2



VERBAL PRESENTATION

CEO ORAL REPORT

14.1



- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK -




